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Dear Fellow Shareholders

Fiscal Year 2004 ended on a high note for Immucor
when, on April 26, 2004, we received sooner-than-
expected FDA clearance to market the Galileo®, our latest
innovation in blood bank automation. This milestone,
along with our continued investments and technical
advances in product development, keep the Company
on track to generate sustained long-term growth.

Opverall, 2004 was another year in which Immucor
delivered outstanding performance. We are pleased to report
that in FY 04, Immucor generated record revenues of $112.6
million. Over the past three years, the Company has
achieved a compounded annual revenue rate of 14 to 15%.
Our net income of $12.5 million in FY 04 was down $1.8

million compared to the previous year. This decrease is
primarily attributed to a reduction in gross margin from
inefficiencies in our three manufacturing facilities, in-
creased reagent sales through our distributors in Europe,
and expenses related to regulatory approval for product
distribution in Europe (CE marking). In addition, our
net income was affected by a noncash, pre-tax charge of
$924,000 related to securing a more favorable credit facilicy
from a new bank.

We continue to be pleased by our revenue growth and
expect to maintain solid revenue growth over the next three
to five years. After assuming the role of President last year,

Nino De Chirico put together a plan which we discussed

. DR. GIOACCHINO De CHIRICO
! President and CEQ




in last year’s Annual Report. The plan is called our “Enter-
prise Strategy.” A large part of the overall program is to put
the proper controls and measurements in place to reduce or
eliminate the variables affecting gross profit. This is a three-
year program, and we believe the result will be the attainment

of significant and sustainable improvements in gross margin.
Enterprise Strategy

We have made significant progtess this year in the four

main areas of our Enterprise Strategy.

1. INCREASE COMPANY EFFICIENCY.

This is a major part of our strategy and there are several
subsets. The primary focus of this objective is continuous
improvement as it relates to meeting our customers’ needs.
One of our first goals in FY 04 was to eliminate manufac-
turing of redundant products in our three manufacturing
facilities (Norcross, Georgia; Houston, Texas; and Dart-
mouth, Nova Scotia). We were manufacturing some of
the same products at three different locations and were
not providing any additional value to our customers. By
improving our Company efhciency, we can direct our efforts
to improving the technical specification of our products.

The Company had 295 Stock Keeping Units (SKU’s)
prior to implementing the Enterprise Strategy. By the end
of FY 04, we eliminated 96 SKU’s, and while doing so,
increased revenue by approximately $1 million on an
annualized basis.

Our red cell manufacturing was consolidated to Norcross
from Houston at the end of May, and from Dartmouth in
mid-August. This consolidation allowed us to improve
manufacturing efficiencies and reduce our workforce by 30
positions, thereby improving gross margin. In addition, we
will be able to reduce the waste associated with the production
of human-based red cells.

We continue to focus on our core customer product
needs. Immucor follows the 80/20 rule. Eighty percent of
our revenues and profits are derived from the largest 20%
of our customers. With the introduction of Galileo, our
second-generation automated instrument, we are posi-

tioned to meet the needs of our medium-to-large customers.

2. VANAGE THE BUSINESS WITH A CLOBAL PERSPECTIVE.

The development of a worldwide, cross-functional team

has permitted us to improve communications while we

seek to identify and eliminate redundant processes within
our manufacturing facilities. Another key growth strategy
of the cross-functional team is defined by our operational
focus on innovation and new product development. This
has allowed us to identify and invest in new reagent and
instrument product lines for the future of blood banking.
Additionally, we have two major projects in the early stages
of implementation: paperless communication and global
distribution. The end result should be additional improve-

ment in gross margin.

3. FOCUS ON EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE.

We have dramarically enhanced all levels of communi-
cation, and we are measuring the goals and objectives set
by each operational department on a monthly basis. All
departmental goals and results are shared throughout the
Company; as a result, collaboration is encouraged. This
initiative continues to strengthen employee performance,
which in turn helps us serve our customers better. We
believe that serving our customers well will result in
satisfying work for our employees and profitable growth

for our business.

4. CONTINUE TO [MPROVE THE QUALITY-CONTROL SYSTEM.

The improvement of our processes has led to a better
product for our customers. In our production of human-
based red cells, we have reduced the number of batches
destroyed by 80% over the past two quarters. From a
quality perspective, FY 04 was a milestone year. The
Company successfully completed certifications for CE
marking for approximately 290 products manufactured
for the European market.

The steps outlined above will allow for continuous
improvement in our gross margin. In the coming
months, we will persist in looking at the number of
products we produce and the consolidation of additional

manufacturing operations.
Calileo Update

Galileo continues to be our flagship product. We added
an additional 76 placements in Europe during FY 04,
bringing our total number of worldwide placements to
136 over the first two years. We received FDA clearance
to market the Galileo in the United States on April 26,

2004—only 83 days after our product submission.




This early clearance reflects the performance of the
instrument and the very high quality of our regulatory
employees. Shortly after the close of FY 04, Galileo
was cleared for market in Japan and Canada on July 1
and July 16, respectively.

We are not aware of any competitive instrument in the
world that has the test menu or the throughput of
Galileo. The product is targeted for medium- to large-
volume customers, ar_ld we believe the total available
market worldwide is approximately 2,000 facilities. We

expect Galileo to drive our results for the next three to four

years and the reagent trail should allow us to improve margins.

In the following pages, we will elaborate on Galileo

and its phenomenal initial success.
d its ph [ initial

What's Next?

In March 2004, we announced the development of a
third-generation instrument, presently called the G3. This
product is a fully automated analyzer with the same test
menu as Galileo. The instrument is very lightweight and
has an addressable market of 5,000 to 6,000 small- to

medium-sized customers worldwide. The G3 is targeted

EDWARD GALLUP
Chairman of the Board

for European launch in early FY 06. The same reagents
that are currently used in Galileo will be used in the G3.
The launch of the G3 will position us well for sustained,
long-term performance. We believe our strategic plan is a
sound one and that we will increase our market share by
the end of 2006, making Immucor the world leader in
blood bank reagents and automation.

These are very exciting times for your Company. We

continue to be very proud of our employees and apprecia-

tive of our customers and shareholders.

PN vl
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Galileor.

Welcome to America.

Galileo has enjoyed great success in
Europe since its launch there in June 2002.
Confident of the same warm reception for
this ground-breaking instrument in the
U.S., Immucor filed for FDA clearance on
January 30, 2004. Just 83 days later, on
April 26, Galileo was granted clearance for
marketing in the United States.

Now Immucor’s bloodline of innovation
continues in the U.S. market: four
renowned hospitals have installed Galileo
in their laboratories at press time, and

favorable reports are pouring in.



Galileo’s Time Has Come.

Galileo” is the newest, most sophisticated
automated instrument in the blood banking
world. Combining unprecedented speed,
quality, safety and versatility, Galileo is
designed to fit into any workflow

It can process as many as 224 samples
at once, offering transfusion services the
flexibility to quickly run any test at any
time, and giving donor centers and clinical
labs the highest throughput in the industry.

Although Galileo is new to the U.S,, it
is a proven technology. There are currently

more than 135 Galileo installations in

Europe, producing more than one million
test results each month.

And now, with Galileo available in the
U.S., there has never been a better time for

blood banks to automarte.




GALILEO’S FIRST STEPS.

ild an instrument that meets

laboratories worldwide, we

arisons, and pro/

eatures and benefits
e important steps
neering and soft-

Galileo.




BUILDING THE GALILEO TEAM.

By 2000, our in-house R&D team
was ready to put our Galileo concepts
and ideas into tangible form. At this
crucial point, Immucor partnered
with Stratec Biomedical Systems AG

of Birkenfeld, Germany. We chose

Stratec for their commitment and

expertise in developing instruments
for the medical diagnostics industry.
It was obvious that the synergy
between Stratec’s engineering
mastery and Immucor’s serology
prowess was leading to an instrument

in a league of its own.




Tapping Into A
Worldwide Market.

© There are more than 2,000 high-

R o volume facilities around the world that

0 } can benefit by using Galileo®.

- ) . o To date, we have more than 135
:j)"/ o .- placements in Europe, producing more
5 l than one million test results monthly.
A2 © ! © In November 2003, Galileo was
\ 05 J unveiled in the U.S. at the American
5 Association of Blood Banks exhibition

in San Diego, where more than 120
customers expressed high interest in

the instrument.

© Since January 2004, more than 60
U.S. customers have visited our Norcross,
Georgia facility, spending one day working
on the instrument in-depth—and
expressing strong enthusiasm for Galileo.

© By July 2004, Immucor had gained

approvals for marketing Galileo in Japan

and Canada.



“In my 32 years in the diagnostics
industry, I have never seen a product
receive such an enthusiastic response

from customers.”

MIKE POYNTER
Vice President of U.S. Sales

CLEARED FOR U.S. LAUNCH . ..o,

On May 6 and 7, just 10 days after receiving
FDA clearance to market Gallleo in the
United States, Immucor heid a National
Product Launch Meeting at its headquarters
in Atlanta, Georgia. We flew in our sales
team from across the country, as well as our
application specialists and the entire execu-
tive management team. The mission: devise
a strategy for launching Galilec to the 500-
plus potential customers in the U.S. Within
several weeks of launch, four distinguished

American hospitals had placed their orders

tor Galiieo.
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Galileo is positioned for success for one
primary reason: it meets the needs of

medium- to high-volume customers

better than anything else on the market.

Immucor learned what blood bank
laboratories wanted, and we gave it to
them in the form of three industry-

exclusive features.
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INSTANT ACCESS™.

Galileo offers continuous, uninter-
rupted access to samples and reagents, so
technicians never have to wait. They can
run any test, in any order, anytime. Plus
they can add or access samples, replenish
reagents, read barcodes—all without

interrupting or delaying tests in progress.

DYNAMIC SCHEDULER.

Timing is everything for pre-transfu-
sion diagnostics. Galileo’s Dynamic
Scheduler completes the work in the
most efficient manner possible, allowing
shorter incubation times to cycle through
faster. Results are delivered in record

time, and reported with record accuracy.

ABSOLUTE DEDICATION.

Galileo goes to markert as a brainchild
of the blood banking leader. Our un-
swerving focus is on the needs of our
customers, and we prove it every day
with best-in-class customer service and
an in-house R&D division constantly

exploring the next innovation.



Four Pr@gtigmus [nstitutions

Choose Galileo.

Henry Ford Health System

One of the largest hospital-based blood banks in the
country, Henry Ford Health System welcomed Galileo
to its pathology department in 2004.

Henry Ford is the major source of blood for medical
centers in several Southeast Michigan communities. And
volumes have been up by 20 percent at the institution due
to increased demand by patients seeking organ transplants.
Since rapid turn-around times were desperately needed,
Henry Ford was a prime candidate for Galileo’s leading-edge
automation.

“In a tight labor market, we have to leverage technology,”
says John Waugh, director of Henry Ford’s laboratory
operations. “But as people will see, purchasing state-of-the-

art technology also offers enhancements to patient care.”
As Henry Ford’s blood bank supervisor, Linda Cardine,
puts it: “This automation allows us to focus on each cus-

tomer as if they were our only customer.”

“This automation allows us to
focus on each customer as if

they were our only customer.”

Linda Cardine, MT(ASCP)SBB

Blood Bank Supervisor
Henry Ford Health System
Detroit, Michigan




“At Northwestern Memorial Hospital, we have

incredibly high standards for patient care.

Galileo can provide autcmated processes
for our blood bank operation and has the
opportunity of reducing hands-on time

required from cur medical technologists.
With our bloed bank fully automated, our
staff has the flexibility to focus on solving
difficult patient cases and performing the
more skilled tasks they were trained for.”

Susan R. Masarik, MT(ASCP), MBA

Manager, Pathology
Northwestern Memorial Hospital
Chicago, lllinois

Northwestern Memorial Hospital

Northwestern Memorial Hospital is one of the country’s
premier academic medical centers and the primary teach-
ing hospital of Northwestern University’s Feinberg School
of Medicine. Northwestern Memorial, together with its
Prentice Women'’s Hospital and Stone Institute of Psychia-
try, encompass 744 beds, more than 1,200 afhiliated
physicians and 5,000 employees.

This heart-of-Chicago institution is recognized for
outstanding clinical and surgical advancements in cardio-
thoracic and vascular care, gastroenterology, neurology and
neurosurgery, organ and bone marrow transplantation,
oncology and women’s health. In Consumer Checkbook’s
2002 survey, Northwestern Memorial was ranked as the
nation’s fifth best hospital. And the U.S. News & World
Report issue of “America’s Best Hospitals” this year listed
Northwestern Memorial in eight specialty categories.

For Northwestern Memorial, automated procedures are
key to the smooth operation of the hospital. Galileo fics
in with the hospital’s strategy to reduce hands-on time

required from medical technologists.




“Galileor will change the way
the blood bank laboratory is
operated today.” B8

Emory Universicy Hospital &
Emory Crawford Long Hospital

As the largest and most comprehensive health system in
Georgia, Atlanta’s Emory Healthcare comprises three
hospitals and several additional health facilities, including a
clinic and a children’s center. The 579-bed Emory University
Hospital is renowned for cardiology, cardiac surgery,
orthopaedics, oncology, and neuroscience, and has become
one of the region’s largest multiple organ and tissue
transplant centers. In 2004, U.S. News & World Report

named Emory University Hospital one of “America’s Best

Hospitals” in five medical specialties, including cardiology
where Emory is included in the Top 10.

“After seeing the Galileo in operation,

our team was impressed by [Galileo’s]

compulerized multi-tasking and true

walk-away, random-access operation.”

Darrell M. Demeritt, MBA, MT(ASCP)SBB
Assistant Director

Emory Medical Laboratories

Emory Healthcare

Atlanta, Georgia




St. Joseph’'s Hospital 8 Medical Center

“Galileo fits into our strategic plan to increase
automation within the clinical laboratory. With
medical technologist shortages, streamiining
processes in each service area contributes to
performance and quality-improvement initiatives.”

Craig Kielbowicz

Administrative Director
St. Joseph's Hospital & Medical Center
Phoenix, Arizona

Located in downtown Phoenix, St. Joseph’s Hospital
and Medical Center is a leader in tertiary care, medical
education and research. The hospital is home to the
nationally recognized Barrow Neurological Institute, St.
Joseph’s Children’s Health Center and a Level One Trauma
Center. St. Joseph’s currently has more than 500 patient
beds and is in the middle of an expansion project that will

make it the largest hospital in Arizona.

“St. Joseph's Blood Bank chose Immucor’s
Galileo for several reasons: to offset
increased testing velumes, to upgrade our
current automation—including the addition

of a bi-directional interface—and to take
advantage of multiple tests on one instrument.
We're confident Galileo will streamline our
workflow even more!”

Lawrence C. Rodriguez, MT{(ASCP) BS MT

Supervisor, Blood Bank
St. Joseph's Hospital & Medical Center
Phoenix, Arizona




Committed To
The Future.

Our Company has a number of top priorities and
commitments for FY 05. We are confident in the future
of Immucor because we are building on a strong foundation
and a commitment to the blood bank industry. Excellent
employees are doing great work throughout the Company.
Our high standards, focused management and worldwide
operational efficiency will help us stay the course. We're
putting a significant effort behind successfully launching
Galileo® in the U.S., while building stronger marketing
positions for our key blood bank reagent products. Quality
enhancements in all of our manufacturing facilities will
continue. And, we will persist in investing in the research
and development of future blood bank automation plat-
forms, such as the G3. Above all, we remain committed to

the healthcare professionals we serve.

DR. GICACCHINO De CHIRICO
President and CEQ
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The ‘BAloodli‘n'e ‘C'ont_in‘uesl i .

.Founded in 1982 Immucor, Inc a Georgra corporanon (“Immucor or the “Compan)ﬁ ), develops manufactures and sells a complete'

| ::_‘ line of reagents and automated systems used" prrmanly by hosprtals clinjcal laboratones and blood banks inl 2.number of tests

fperformed te detect and 1denufy certaln propertles of the cell and serurh components of human blood prror to bleod. tiansfusion. oL
’ The Cornpan\ conttnues to: place mcreasmg emphasrs on the dev lopment and sale of mstruments and 1nstrument sy: stems that use thet L

.. Ga/z/eo® FDA c/earance to market On Apnl 26 2004 ‘the Company announced ‘that the US Food and Drug ’
ERR ~Adm1.mst_rat10n had’ “cledred its: Gahleo 1nstrument for marketmg in-the Unrted States Gahleo is'the Compauys second
- ‘generanon brdrrectlonal full\r-automated walk: awav rnstrument for the. hosprtal blood bank transfusron aboratory donor. ,‘
T centers and’ reference laboratones The 1nstrument provrdes connnuous operator access while performmg all the routine
blood bank tests 1nclud1ng hlood grouprng, annbod} screemng, crossmatch and ant]bod\ Jdenuﬁcanon A thh throughput .
. rnstrument "Gal JlCO can process up|o 224 dlfferent Jsamples-at once.. Tests are automaucal_ly scheduled to optimize instri- -
IS ‘mentusage. The Compan} believes there ma; bean opportunrty to install approumately 400.- SOO Gahleo instruments
= L inthe United States overthe: ne\t several years.: The Companv expects, to‘r_nstall apprommatelv 50i instruments in N orth

" ‘AmeTica dunng fiscal: 7005 through drrect sales and reagent rental agreements under uhlch the Company recovers the cost
“of: the mstrument thr tigh . icing.- : . o : o

¢

Ga///eo® market expansron Durmg the )ear the Company submrtted a de\flce hcense appllcatxon to Health Canada for S
a clearance o market the Gahleo in Canada. Health Cariada cleared the: Galrleo® for market in. Canada on July 9, 2004 .
“The Companv beheves there are. approumatelv 50. Gahleo placement opportunrtres in Canada over the niext several yeats S

- Durrng the yéar, the Compan\ submrtted a fequest to regrster the Gahleo® fof marketmg wrthrn Japan wrth the japanese
: \'hnlstry of Health. On July 1, 7004 the Company recelved ‘the ; regrstratron from the l\/hmstrv of Health The Company S
, beheves there are approxrmatelv 400 500 opportu tles for’ Gahleo placements in Japan over-the next several years. The C T
'Companv eapects to install 10 Gahleo rnstruments 1n‘]apan dunng ﬁscal 2005. In ﬁscal 2004 the Companv placed one f," c » R
; ;}Galdeo eachrnAustraha ]apanandlsrael e Sl SRER i _ oo B . .

,;-a

N Ga///eo® European market penetrat/on Frscal 2004 was 4 successful year for penetrauon of the Gahleo mstrument ORI
T mto the European market The Compan\ placed 73§ mstruments durmg fiscal 2004 bnngmg the ,total ‘Galileo® 1nstalled base s '
' to 133 The Companv exptcts 1o’ place approxrmatelv 70 Gahleo mstruments m Europe durrng F scal 2005

: SlOCk Sp/lls Immucor rmplemented twWo t.hree for two stock spllts in ﬁsca.l 2004 mcreasmg dle number of shares of com-
mbn stock by, 16,611 915 shares durrng the year. The stock sphts were the ﬁfth and, sixth for. the Company since ifs Initial -
pubhc offerrngm December 1985 All share and per share amounts drsclosed in thrs document have been restated 10 reﬂect

) the unpact of the- above stock sphts L L : L

. _‘Share repurchase The Compam 1nst1mted a repurchase program in ﬁscal 1999 for up to 2 700 ODO shares of its common
Y .- stock, of which 2, 416 500 shares’ had been purchased priot, to fiscal 2004; leavmg 283:500.5hares available’ for repurchase. -

~ . InJune 2004, the Companv eapanded the' | program to. cover At additional 300,000 shares and e\panded the: program again’’
i August 2004 to coveran addmonal 500 OOO shares Singe the- begrnmno of’ fiscal 2005, thie Comparly has repurchased

: 3 ‘an addltronal 285,300 shares brmglng the aggregate number of shares to 2, 702 300 repurchased under the program and an;

e aggregate of 797 700 shares remarnlng aval able for repurchase - -

e . Human Cof/agen Deve/opment Agreement In ]une 2003, Immucor lnc ﬁnal_lzed a development agreement for the
T producnon of human collagen miesh with lnamed CorporatJon (NASDAQ IMDC), a global healthezré’ company and the
* . iarket léader i in the dermal ﬁller market Under terms <ofthe agreement Gamma Biglogicals, Inc., Houston, Texas, ‘a Whol_lv
: 1owned subsrdrarv of Immucor \vrll optlmlre thc manufactunng process for the producnon of 2 human collagen raw materral
fot Inamed. Gamina has proven éxpertse: ‘i the growth of human cell hnes for the producnon of monoclonal antibodies.
o Durmg the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004; the Company shlpped its frst human collagen matetial to Inamed The Company
:eapects to sell between 33 0 m.llhon and $4 O mthon of human co agen to Inamed durmg fiscal 2005

o
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4‘ to serve small to mediuvm accounts the largest segment of the Compant s customers Whlch number approxlmatel\ 7, 300
’worlcl\nde The Companv has entered into an’ agreement with Bio- Tek Instruments Inc ‘to dev elop a third generauon )
instrament.’ The 1nstrument as deslgned will be over twor t_tmes faster and prov1de mote efficiency than the ABS2000 and
is e‘(pected to appeal to customers throughout the world. The cost of development totaled $0. & million in fiscal 2004 and’
is expected to reach $2. 8 rmlhon in fiscal 2005 before dropprng to Sl 5 million i in. frscal 2006. European launch is currentl)
pto1ected for fiscal 2006 “The instrument is designed for serxlce uuhzrng a “depot approach (1 e, the customier delivers an
: instrument to 2, Company clepot for servicing ancl recewes a loaner nstrument to use until servicing is complete) that should
R S ‘stgmfrcantl\ reduce serwce costs. - .~ U RN : : '
. New Sen/or Cred/t FaC///ty On December 19, 2003 the Compan\‘ announced it had. completed i 'new $27 O mrlhon
. o secured credtt facrhtv \vrth SunTrust Banl\ The new crédit: facrhtv matures in December 2006 and is comprrsed of 2 $15.0- ‘
4 mllhon rev olver and a SlZ 0 mllhon term loan both at terms ‘mote fm orable to the Companv than its former credrt facrhtv o

. CE Markmg Durlng the year the dJrecme for CE marlung all- products destmed “for sale Wlthrn the European Union

" became eftectrve This CE marking: svmbohzes that the product conforms to all apphcable European Commiunity prov: isions
~and that the approprxate conformity assessment procedures have béed completed The Company successfull\ completed

' ceruﬁcanons for CE marl-ung for approxlmatelv 290 products manufactured for the European market

““lmmucor is part of the 1mmunohematologv mdustrv \vhlch generallv seeks to prevent or cure certam dlseases or condrnons through
' the transfuswn of blgod and blood components. , In the us;, the FDA regulates human blood-as a drug and as:a brologlcal product,
©and it regu.lates the transfusron of ‘blood as the adnumstranOn of a drug and of a biological product The FDA regulates all phases

. of the 1mmunohematologv 1ndustry mcludrng donor selectioh and' thie. collection, classification, storage, handhng and. fransfusion of
‘ " blood and blood-components. " The FDA requlres all facilities. that manufacture products used for any. of those purposes and the ’
products themselves 1o 'be reglstered or, hcensed bv the FDA See “Regulauon R RN

The prrncrpal components of blood are plasma (the flurd poruon) and red cells. Blood also contains antlbodles and antrgens
Antibodies are protetns that aré naunal_lv produced by the human bodx in response to the mtroductlon of: forergn substances (anngens)

. Antigens are substances that stimulate the' productron of antlbod1es Red blood. cells, which transport owgen from the! lungs to other
“ patts of the body and return carbon dJO\Jde to "the lungs are. categorrzed by four blood groups (A B, AB and O) and rwe blood tvpes

. Rh posmve and Rh- neganve) based on the presence ot absence of certain anngens on the surface of the cells, Tris cruclal that the.

" health-care provrder correctly 1dent1f\ the annbodles and anngens present inpatient z and’ donor blood For example; if 2 donors red

' blood cells cortain antigens that could react wrth the correspondrng antibody in the patient’s plasma the’ transfusron of the red’ blood

cells rnaV resu.lt in the potentxallv life- threatenmg destructlon of the transtused red blood cells. ” Lo

L PR “ ,

: Because of the crrncal 1mportance of matchmg pauent and donor blood procedures for testmg companbllm are generallv performed
by hlghly educated technologlsts in hospltals blood banks and laboratorles At present, with few e\cepnons these tests are. performed

manuall\ using procedures Wthh the Compam believes can be srgmfrcantlv 1mpr0\ ved using'its. mstrumentanon md sohd phase system '
g automate the testmg procedures See “Instruments and Instrument Systems . S T i :
- '»"L'The Compan\ behex es that the WOIlCl\MdC market for tradlnonal blood bank reagents is approumatelv $400 mll_llon and that this
o market is. relatively-mature grven ‘curtent technolog\ The industry is 1abor- mtensne and the Company estimates World\wde mdustrv

' labor costs approach $1.0 billion. Therefote the mtroducuon of labor-saving products wnll prov. 1de addluonal growth in the matket.
" The Compam believes that its blood bank autdmation. and solid phase testing systems 1mprove fest results and-reduce the tlme
e neeessary to perform certain test procedures thereby offering a cost- effecttye alternatrve for its customers, . The: Company anncrpates

. 'that automatlon “will increase the avarlable market for tradmonal and automatecl reagents o appro‘nmatel\ %575 mllhon while

. decreasrng the overall cost of blood testmg by reducmg the labor component bv approumately $300 mllhon

o

. Immucor 1s focused on mcreasmg \XOIlClW’lCl€ farket share i in. the next three \'ears with a focus on the. United States Western ]:urope
“-and ]apan The Companvs strategyis €0 furthér strengthen its competmve position-in the blood bank testing market by resructuring

the market through automation of the transfusion laboratory and to. firmly estabhsh Immucor as the wotld le’tdet in blood banL auto- - - '

.l

“mation.  In order o 1mplement this strategy, the Compan\ mtends tor e S
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.t . . .

MaX/m/ze /nstrument P/acement The Companvs strategv is to. strengthen its leadersth posrnon in the
automanon of blood bank tesnng by estabhshing a large’ base of installed i 1nstruments that future market entrants must . R
‘overcome, To facrhtate instrument placements the’ Compan\ offers customers a seléction of . automated anal\ rzers, which ™
address the various needs of low, medlum and hlgh ~volurie; testmg facrlltres The Company has successfully rntroduced
and commerc1ahzed the’ ABSZOOO the ROSYS Pl’ltO the DIAS PLUS and. the second generauon Galileo® automated G R :
anal\ zets, all of which ‘operate excluswel\v‘\t ,th Immucor s propnetarv solid phase Capture® assays. ' The Companv unlJ7es
‘2 “razot/razorblade” busmess model When the- customer procures an instrument from the Companv they must also
purchase proprretarsv reagents trom the Company ln order to sansfy the broad. spectrum of customers operanonal and
-financial criteria; the Compan\ mtends t6 contifnie to. offer several rnstrument procurement opnons mcludmg third- -party
ﬁnancrng lease drrect sales and reagent rentals and to expand the range and prlce pomts of its 1nstrument offermgs AR ‘

e ‘;'-var:'lt .
A//gn Prrces Wlth Costs In the past reagent manufacturers were faced W‘ltl’l mcreased costs of manufacturmg
" while, durrng the same penod market prices for. blood banl\ products decreased The Company“has utilizedits market -
leadershrp position in: the. United-Statés €0 increase its prlces o ahgn them, w 1th its'costs. The Company expects these
ad]ustments will continué ro*have srgnrfrcant favorable 1mpact on'- the Compa ﬁnancral performance while adding onlv KRN

shghdv to: the cost of a panent transfusron

3 n . S »‘ —,

/\//aXl/TNZG Revenue Stream Per lnstrument ,/acement Each Jnstrument placed tvplcallv provrdes the
Companv with a ‘recurring ‘revenue stréam through the sale of reagents and- supphes Immucor’s famJlV of, blood bank _ ‘
" testing. S\rstems operates e\cluswel} WJth the Compan\ s~propr1etar§ reagent | hnes and C'tpture technologv Because - -
“ these reagents ‘have beenr developed for automated technologv they-commarida premium price over traditional products o
' The average annual revenue per 1nsrrument placement 1s‘$20 OOO to $100, OOO dependlng on facrhty testmg volume The
) Companv also connnues to. develop hew reagent apphcanons and upgrade svstem software and hardware in oxder to’ -
L e\pand rnstrument test menus, therebv mcreasrng reagent usage per placement S LA R D _‘ R
Deve/op l\/ew and Enhanced Pfoducts Immucor connnuall\ seeks to 1mprove e\dsnncr reagent products and
: develop new reagent products to enhance 1ts ‘market share and i improve gross margins. . The Companv has successfully -
" introduced and commerc1ahzed the ABSZOOO the,ROSYS Plato; the DIAS PLUS and the second-generanon Gahleo®

" automated analy zersy all of whlch operate excluswe; with: Immucor propnetar) sohd phase Capture® assays . T

- Propnetary Technology Platform e C e

Under. tradmonal agglunnauon blood testmg technrques the technologlst mixes serum. mth red blood cells ina test tube performs i
‘several addmoml procedur s -and then examrnes the mr\ture to determme whether thete has been an agglutrnauon seaction. A posrnve c
reacnon will occur if the cells afe d_rawn together in clumps by the presence of correspondlng antrbodles and anngens However, when- .*

the mixture remams in a ﬂmd state, it is somet_tmes dlfﬁcult for the tCChnOlOngt o determme wherher a posm\e reacnon ‘has occurred

. . L~

{ . . ';‘ RS Co. s . ‘.
Due Ries the cnncal 1mport'1nce of matchmg panent and donor blood tesnng procedures usmg aggluunwon techmques are usuallv )
pcrformed manually b\ l'ughl\ ¢ducated: techno ogists, Dependmg on.the technical proﬁcrencv of ‘the person performrng the test, the o
. process can take. from 30 mmutes to one hour and, if the test results aré ambiguous the enttre process ma) need to be 1epeated Thus ’ . "'-

Ca srgnrfcant amount of . e\pensrve labor is 1nvolved Ay fmanual agglutmat]on tesnng Based on Jndustr\ sourees, the Companv beheves C o

that abor costs are the largest componenr of the! total cost of opermng a hosprtal blood bank The Companv belleves that jts solrd
‘phase’ blood testing system improves test resu.lts and reduces the time necessarv to perform certaln blood tesung procedures related to
rhe transfusron of blood and blood components : R

L . 3

SO//O’ Phase Tec/’mo/ogy “In the Companys propnetarv sord phase blood test svstem Jonie of the reactants (elther an anngen e v
.or an annbodv) is apphed ot bound 16 a'solid support such asa \vell in'a mrcronrranon plate Durlng testtng, the bound feactant B S
captures other reactants in a fluid state and binds those fluid. reactants to the solid” phase~(the bound reactant) The bmdlng of - the: - ‘ ‘
‘ flmd reactants mto the solid phase occurs rapldly and results m clear Iy defned test: reacnons that are often easiér to” mterpret than the S .
sub}ecuve results sothetimes obtained from e\rtmg agglutlnanon tcchnologv Based on results obtamcd wrth Capture-P®, Capture -R®, v

Capture Cl\fV® Capture- S and.the Compan\ S ongorng ‘rescarch; thé Companv believes, that so 1d‘phase fest results in batch test mode

T

can generall\ be obtamed i substannall\ Tess tlme than bt e\rstmg techmques

Immucor has obtamcd FDA clearance 'for sa_le of flve test svstems usmg its sohd phase technolog\r a P atelet Annbodv Detecnon
S\ stem Capture P® a Red Cell Anuhody Detecnon S\ stem’ Capmre “R%; Capture R® Se]ect used for anubodv screerung, 1dennﬁcanon

s . . A Lo N
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phenorypmg, crossmatchrng and in thé Weak D test and two Infecnous Drsease Test . Capture Cl\/IV® and Caprure -S. In: these four
. test svstems antlgens are applied and bound to ‘the surface of a small well i in al plasnc mierdtitration plate and panenr or donor serurhy+
“or. plasma is placed . ‘the well: After the addmon of spec1a1 proprletary lnchcator cells manufactured bV Immucor posmve reacnons .
- 7 ‘indicating the ptesence of blood: group annbodres adhere o the well as a thm laver and negatxve reacnons do not adhere but settle | o
" thebottomasasmallcellburton T Lo s e
. : . e s ) " .“. .‘. S ~";' v‘ (’, “, . ,.‘ - 5 - Ny :« oo . . .
Reagents T T T L S R
Most of. Immucors current reagent products are used in tests performed prior to blood transfusrons fo- determme the blood group v
‘and type of patient and doner blood, in‘the detecnon and identification of. blood group arftibodies, in platelet annbod} detéction and .’
m prenatal care. The FDA réquires. the accurate testing ¢ of blood and blood components prror to transfusrons usmg onlv FDA licensed
reagents such as those manufactured and sold” bv the Companv I C » .
‘ The followmg table sets. forth rhe products sold by or excluswelv‘for the ~Smpany, most of which are manufactured by or exclusively == °
R for rhe Company L e T S PR SRR o s ’
Piddmt Gro;fp e e Pringpal ',Uré_‘ T '
v S i . - : - ) . L - - " '
- ABO .Blvo‘od‘Grouping_j‘ IR Deect and 1dennfy ABO anngens on red blood cells in order to classrfv a specrmens blood
S e «‘".‘-‘;'1groupase1therABABorO v ; S R o
Rh Blood Typing, .-+ .- Detect Rh anngens in order 6 classrﬁ a specrmen as elrherRh posmve or RH neganve and to.
o ; 3 detectotherthranngens R e “.-‘ o LT R
Anti- human Globuhn S - Used with other products for routine crossmatchlng, and annbody detecnon and
Serums (Coombs Serums) o ddentlﬂcanon allows a reacnon to occur by brldglng between annbodles thar bv themselves
LR T . o could. not causeareacnon Do e e !
" Reagent Red'Blo,o'déGells SR Detect and 1dent1fy annbodles in panent or donor blood conﬁrm ABO blood groupmg results .
RV oo S o and vahdate r.he performance of anti- human serum in the test system. 7 Vi :
: 'Rar'e Serums : .ADe_t'ec’t‘the pr_ese'nce or ab‘sence‘rof rate red c‘e]l "antig‘ens.“,.,‘" L B a R
‘b . .o Lo - - ) :,‘ '. ‘_" ‘j‘. v ‘.' :»‘ ) : , —— - m‘ . C "’_ o
"'Antibody Potentidtor ' " Increase the sensitivity of antigen-dntibody tests. . .
Qué]iry ’Conrrol Sysrems % .- 1 Daily evaluation of the reactivity of routine blood :teéting reag'enté,. T AP :
Monoclonal (H}brrdoma) . . Detectand identify ABO-and.Sther z2ntigens on red.blood cells. -7+, Lo L
Annbodv-based Reagents . O N . IR e SRR LA
Technical.Proﬁciency. Systerns N .Reagent tests used to determlne techmcal proﬁcrencv and prowde contmumg educatlon for e
. T “'technical staff .'- R R B T
- Fetal Bleed Screen 'Kit™ RN sed to de‘te'ct.’eXcesﬁsivfeL fetal-maternal hemorthage in Ri-negative women. .77 = © ;
. :ca'pm’e'-l?@ o8 .+ Used for the detection of ‘plateleg antibodies.. . . L
’ Caprure R® ‘, DL Uéed to d,et'ec't _énd1-identifyrunekpeeted-‘blood group antibodies..". ST AT
- , y ‘";\ . o ' ...": ‘ 5. 4 : Lo ) B ".‘ R . R . -, , o~ X _“ )
Capture C\/W® B . '_Uéfed fot the detection of antibodie§ to C}ftome_gzrlo'virus;‘ ) R T
Capture S . . “Used fot. the "d'et'ecvrio‘n of ‘andhprd antibodies for syphlhs 'scre'en'ing.‘ e E
: .-“-‘,Cgrptur'e"-R@fS.elvect A R Used for antiho,d)r ;s‘c‘rejening, 'idenriﬁcation; phe‘notyﬁin‘g,l crossmatehing and in: rhe weak D test. ..
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etection.of certam mfecnous drseases by the methods of Capture® ELISA

- iy

Infectious Diseasés'
) S IR ' o LT e, ) s
K Immunoﬂuorescence and Late\ Shde Tests T T, e L e

. Cl.lnlcalChesztry e

Tmmunoﬂuorescent Monoclonal
. Annbodres i -

. results of rndependent workﬂow studres the Companv beh_ s that 1ts instruments. and 1nstrument systems srgnlﬁcantlv reduce the

amount of blood bank techno ogrst ume requlred to perform routme blood compaubrhtv tasts.

ABSQOOO Fu//y Auto 7 ated B/ood Bank System Thrs automated “wall\ awav” blood bank analvzer uses Immucors .
proprletarv Capture reagent product technology 0, perform blood bank panent testmg and Is manufactured e\clusrvelv for Immueor

-y

« by Bio- Tek Instruments Inc a wholl‘ owned subsrdrarv of Lr eart Technologres lnc T i Sl L ‘_ e EE L S

clrn]cal reference lahoratorles and large hosprtal transfusron lahoratorres \wth automated hqurd and sample handhng for processmg of
- rrucrontrauon plates arid also uses [mmucors propnetary solrd phase Capture® assays e IR g . s : :

. ’ B
B : ;o ¢

o

D/AS PLUS H/Qh Vo/ume Mrcrop/ate'“
laboratorres wrth automated batch processmg and posmv sample 1dent1ﬁcanon~of rouune blood donor tests and uses the Companys
Capture R® ‘Capture C’\/IV® and Capture S products LoVl ) ’

Soaa . N ‘_\, N

GAL/LEO® H/gh Voluma Mlcrop/at":

- Processor The systemrprovrdes hosprtals chmcal reference laboratorres and blood .

donor centers 4 fully automated soluuon 0 petform a].l the routme blood bank tests 1ncludmg blood grouping;- antrbody screening, - -

crossmatch and anubody 1dent1fcatton A high throughput mstrument Gahleo can process. up.to 224 different samples at once. *

The Galileo® uses Immucors propnetar) Capture reagent product_ technologv and is' manufactured exclusrvelv for Immucor by
Stratec : oot : : o '

'

Mu/t/reao’er P/US M/crop/az‘e Reader ) ‘hrs sémi- automated spectra photometrlc m1crot1trat10n plare reader reads and mterprets
n test results of Immucors proprretarv Capture products Together wrth the ROSYS Plato or the DlAS PLUS the Mulureader Plus
\ completes a semr-automated blood bank sy stem

Tl T referencelaboratorles

L

Immucor cont_lnua.lly seeks to 1mprove its. exrstmg products and to clevelop ne\» ones m order to enhance its market share Pnor to : -

therr sale any new products wrll reunre hcensmg‘or pre: market approval b\ the. FDA “The Companv emplovs several petsons: in the .

- U S \Vhose Specific duties are 1mprovrng ex]stmg products and developmg new products fot the Company’s exrstlng and potent\al

L . customers. The Companv also has estabhshed relauonshrps' with, other rndrvrduals ad instrutions that provrde similar services and t} t
Company e\pects that it \xrll contmue o form and maintain such relatronshlps The Companv intends to continue focusmg its product '

devclopment efforts prrmanl} . the areas: of blood banl-. automatron and solid phase technologv and in several other areas that mav

-
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‘ ’also be useful'in connecnon Wltl‘l the development of these products For the fiscal yeats ended \Iax 31, 2004 2003 and 2002, the
' ‘Compam spent approxrmatel; 83. 7 million, $2.1, mrlhon and $2. O miillion, respecn\ elw, for research and development The Companv\

_may in the fataré acquire related technologles and product lmes or the compames that O\xn them o 1mpr0\e the Companvs abrhn to

meet the needs of its- customers e R, AR

N

'B/OOd Bank Automat/on The. Compan; beheves that the blood bankmg mdustr\ todav is labor»mtensrve and. tl’l’lt a market exists
'for Further automation of blood compa’nbrhtv test currentlv bemg performed manual} by hosprtal and donor center blood bank

.technologists I R RS L e L -

‘On ]anuaﬂ l9 2004 the Compan\ entered into an instrument purchase agreement mth BIO Tek Instruments Inc for the .
‘ ‘development ofa third" genération automated assay insttument. The Companv has 1dent1f1ed the need for a fast; llghtwerght Fally-
- automated instrumeént. This-instrument will serve small to medrum accounts, the largest segment of our customers, which number - ‘
g approumatel\ 7,500 worldwide. The Jnstrument as deslgned will utrhze the Companvs propnetarv Capture‘”’ technology and will be. a
. iox er two times; faster than-the ABSZOOO The cost of dév; elopment totaled $O 8 mrlhon m flscal 2004 and is e)tpected to reach $2.8 -
millién i in ﬁscal 2005 Before d_roppmg to $1.5 mrlhon in Hscal 2006. European latunch i evpected in mid-2006. The'instrument will
be serviced utrhzmg a depot, approach that should srgruﬁcantlv reduce service'costs. Upon acceptance of ‘the engmeermg model, the
- Companv will have been deemed ehgrble to 1ssue a purchase ordet for 100 uruts There is;no ‘minimum. purchase requlrement to.

" maifntain: exclusrvxt) “-A : s R S

: C’Add/ttona/ SO//O’ Phase App//carlons The Companv plans o contlnue to develop and reﬁne its, patented sohd phase technolog;
‘Recentl\ the Companv has developed a screening test for the detectlon of weak D antlgens ori donor red cells, that is available to

Galileo® customers in Eu.tope and became available’ to the us. market when the Galrleo was approved b\ the FDA The Companv .

has also developed a riew Capture product Capture R® Select “Capture- R® Select uses an anti-human RBC- specrﬁc monoclonal

o 1mmob1h/e unwashed human red blood cells. Tt has been’ developed for use, on. r_he Gallleo® for anmbodv screemng ‘antibody | ¢ ‘

| xdenuftcanon phenot\pmg crossmatchmg and in the vveal\ D test The antr human RBC—specrﬁc monoclonal s grown at the i\ o

-Companvs Houston facrhtv Capture R® Select became available to the Us. market when the Gahleo was cleared for marl\et by ..
. the FDA ‘ i SEE .

- . A sl . L -

uMonoc/ona/ Am‘rbod/es \Ionoclonal antlbodles aré derrvecl bx fusmg an annbodv—producmg cell wrth a tumor. cell resultmg
+ in‘a‘hybridoma cell that manufactures the ongrnal annbodv The Company is actively engaged in the development of additional |
monoclonal antibodies for a variety of uses, 1ncludmg the detectron of* blood group and infectious disease antigeris and for use in

' 1ts solid phase test systems. Monoclonal antxbodres ire hrghl\ specrfrc a trdit which, allows them to detect and identify-antigens. with

greater efficiency than‘other reagents Product quaht) and consistency is ma.rntamed from productlon lot to producnon lot. The
“Companv contmues to pursue the development of such ant_lbodles prmcrpall\ through its Gamma and Domrmon subsrdranes :

' Umversn‘y of Vermont P/ate/et Marker Test Agreement In Aprll 2003 Itnmucor Inc. and Bro Tek Instruments Inc the
‘manufacturer of Immucors ABS2000 fully- 'tutomated blood 'bank i msttument announced the signing ¢ of an agreement Wrth the
‘University of Vetmont to: commerclahze an in-vitro dlagnostxc test o 'measute platelet markers-uséful i in and- platelet pharrnacolocncal
drug development and potenuallv to improve real-time treatment of. cardlovascular disease. The assay will be useful i in determmmg
“the risk assocrated v»lth increased platelet activity (thrombotlc occlusron ot vessels whlch can lead to a mvocardra_l mfarct) and . o

- decreased function (e*ccess bleedrng) ‘The need for an assay that’ chn’ quanutatrvel\ differentiate pauents at low; as opposed to hrgh

sk of a detrrmental heatt event is crmcal in the pharmacologlcal treatment of these panents In. addmon the method offers promrse L

. . ‘for the prediction’ of . corooary artery and cerebrovascu ar. d1sease in panents w. ithout.a previous disease history: The Companv spent
R approxrmatelx 30 1 mrlhon in fiscal 2004. to facilitate thrs pro]ect and. e\pects to: spend 5550 000 i in ﬁscal 2003 .

4

M'afrk"et’i‘n,g' en'q': D'is«t’rib'u_t‘i'on‘ S I T T RN
v L . 75. .‘
. . ‘Immucors potentlal Us. customers are apprO\Jmatel) 6 OOO blood banks hospltals and chmcal laboratorles The Company maintains-
Can active client base of over 5,500 customers Worldmde and no smgle clistormer purchases in* e\cess of 2% of -the Companv

-curtent- annual sales \olume The Companv belJeves there is a slrght amount of. seasonalm t0'its sales’ acuvrtv as fewer donatrons :

and electtve surglca procedures are performed in 1ts ﬂrst quarter Gune August) and third quarter (December-February) There is no

. :materla_l “backlog of reagent revenues' At Ma) 31 2004 the Companv had a backlog of mstalled but unrecorded instrument sales of
‘_‘apprommatelt Sl ZOOOOO R R TR ~: A e T S

.

- Durlngﬂsc_al 1999; the;Companv impleme_nted its _strateglc plans to co_nsoli'date the US bloo’d banlt_marl;et, lea'ving‘;lmmucor‘ and,




“the Companv seeks to. contmue to, increase its. worldwrde market share through the use of its e\perlenced direct sales force and :

‘ "The Bloodline Gonrinues

[

’ e\ecuted its p ans through a serres of acqulsmons The Compan} behe\ e$ it is now the marl\et leader m North Amenca In. addmon

through the expansxon of i 1ts product lJne o offer customers a ull range .of products for their reagent needs. The Companv beheves it

can mcrease 1ts market share bv marl\et.mg products based ‘on its blood bank automauon strategy and sohd phase technology

f

- approxrmatelv $44 9 nnllron 338 4. million: and $31 8 rnrlhon respecm‘ely These sales accounted for apptca\lmatcl\ 39.9%, 38. 9%

-a S\’StCH’lS onented otganlzatron the Compan\" conducts C)\tCﬂSl\

. mformatlon for each of ouf last thrcc fiscal years attrlbutable to the dlfferent geographlc areas in swhich. the. Compan\ does business.”

Sp'un ‘and Belgmrn In addmon the Compan\ utth?es 10 sales agents

" in Italy The Company has hlred personnel whom the Companv conslders to be hlohlv expenenced and respected for thelr l\nowledge

' caplta sales ttalnlﬂU of 1ts sales force and specrahzed capltal sales

K representam es lmmucor also sponsors Workshops-rn the US Furope Latm Arnerrc'l and A51a fow l’UCh customers are invited to hear

the latest developments inr the ﬁelcl

The Company also matkets its products mternattonall\r th.tough dlstnbutors located throughout the W orld For the fiscal )GR.I‘S ended

May 31,.2004; 2003 and 2002 the Companv had foreign’ net sqles mcludmgD net. domesttc export sales. to unafﬁhated customeérs, of

and 37.7%,6f the Compan\ s “total: net sales for the respectlve fiscaly )ears Dumng the years ended Mav 31,,2004, 2003-and 2002, the S
Companvs US opetatlons rnade net e\pott sales to, unafﬁlmted customers of. apprO\Lmately 34 9 mllhon $4.8 million’ and '$5.3 million]” '
respecuvel “Most of the Companvs foretgn sales occurred in Europe and Canada Wherc the Companv mamtams subsldrarles The -/ B R
Companys German operauons made net e\port sale to unafﬁhqted customets of appro S matelv $4.9 ITlll.lIOl’l, 53‘1 million and $2.3- : o

-milliori for the vears ‘ended Ma\ 31,2004, 2003 and, 2002 respecuvelv The Companys Cacadian operatxons ‘made net export sales to”

unafﬁhated customers of apprO\lmatelv $2. 2 mJllJon S2 2 mtlllon and $2 1 n’ulllon for the \rears endmg May 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, e

E

: respectlvel\' The Companvs Itahan operamons made sales 1n Ital\ of $9 6 mllhon S7 6 rntlhon and $6.0 mllhon for the vears endmg - -

May 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respecuvely Please réfer to Note 14 to our consohdated ﬁnancral ‘statements for revenue and profit

.. ‘Revenye is, allocated bv geogtaphrc area based on, the subsrdlarv from w hlch the sale ongrnates Fluctuauons in forergn éxchange

" constaht agamst the dollar for the ) mont_hs ended ]u v 30 7004 and exchange ﬂuctuatrons had lJttle aﬂ"ect on foretgn net sales. .

.Suﬁbnefs‘7fgv'ﬂj}t,}‘ f{

- financial statements) and Serologlcals Inc,; the joint | manuchturet of sorne of the Compan) s‘monoclonal anubodv—based produets ‘

. cornmencement of supply could take one to’ two. vears L PRI

' multlple US' Canadran Eutopean and othet country specrﬁc statutes regulat]ons and standards that genemllv include hcensmg,

‘ ‘An’ FDA.tacillt}v licénse is issued for an .indeﬁnjte'pe‘riiod’of;time, subjec.t tO'the FDAs ,rightvtg' revoke the ljcense. As [aart of its .

rates, principally iwith the- us. dollar versus. the Euro cou Id-i 1mpact opetatmg results when tmnslauons of the Comp'm\ s subsldnnes

ﬁnanclal statements are: made in accordance wrth current accountlng gmdehnes For the \ear ended Mav 31 2004 forelgn net sales

.increased 54 3 nulhon due to the. exchange flictiation of the, Euro.. Sifce the.end’ of the fscal Vear the Euro ‘has remamed relatlvelv‘

4
)

e\cept for certain: manufacturers of 1nstrumentauon 1nclud1ng onnheatt Technolog1es lnc for the ABSZOOO and our thlrd-

éenerauon automated assa\ mstrument w hen a\:u labl le, Stridtec BlOI’ﬂCClJCﬂ] AG for the’GalJleo ; (seel Noté 11 of the. consohdqted '

" (see Note 8 of the consolidated ﬁnancral statemcnts) The Company beheves that i its, ‘business relatlonshlp \Vlth its supphers is-

. e\cellent Management believes.that if the. supply of mstrumentauon were mterrupted altcrnate supphers could be found but the

EE

)

Certam of the. Companvs products are; denved from bloocl h”mng parttcular ot yaré combmauons of anubodres or anogens \Vl’llCl:]

are found i a limited number of 1ndlvrdual : The Compan\ to "date has not e\petreneed any ma]or drtfcultv in obtammg sufficient .

quantmes of such blood for dse in manutactunng 1ts products but- thete can be no, assurance that a sufﬁctent supp y of such blood .

\wll always- be aval able to the: Compamr

v
«

negutaﬁaﬁ}»;lf, SRR

¢ -.'- I o

: The manufacture and'sa eof blood banlxmg products is.a hjghl} regulated buslness and i 1s sub ect o contlnumé comphance wtth . B o

' product testmg, facllmes compllance product abehng, post marl\et \1gtlance and - consumer dlsclosure Seé “Industrv

b “ . .o e

, R TN - . o h .
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5

' “In additton each product manufactured by the Companv is, sub]ect to formal product submlssrons and réview processes by the FDA

: . e ‘ . g . A

ox erview- responstbrhty the FDA maLes plant “and. factlm 1nspecnons on an unannounced basts Further a sample of each productlon

lot of many of the Companys products must be submttted [ee8 and approved by, the FDA pnor to its sale or, dlstnbutlon -The
Company operates under US. Government; Estabhshment Llcense No. 836 granted by the: FDA in December 1982 to. Immucor Inc.
for the Norcross facrllty and US. GO\ ernment Estabhshment Ltcense No 435 granted by the Nanonal Insntutes of Health in, 19/1 to7 -
Gamma Blologlcals Inc for the Houston factllty : ‘ : e

A

R

B In ]une 2003 the FDA 1nspected the’ Irnmucor Inc facihty in Norcross Georgla and reported thiee minor observattons The :
Company responded to the, observanons in- late July 2003 In December 2002, the DA 1nspected the Gamma Blologrcals lac. facility™:

~in Houston Texas and reported three mmor obsery at10ns The Companv responded to these observattons on ]anuary 31} 2003. The
FDA acknowledged recerpt of the. Companvs responses and lndlcated that the Company’s responses would be. Venﬁed durmg the ne}\t :

3 1nspecnons s LT

ro
A C i, |
i

and other regulatorv bodies, Such as- Health Canada a European recogntzed Notifiéd Bodv and the japanese Mrnlstrv of Health prtor S

.. t0 authorizatiod o market Stgmﬁcant changes to the Compan) s products or faclhtles can requtre addttlonal submlsslon and rev iew

pnor tO 1mp ementanon . L
Ty L

-

- For e\amp e, the Company holds several FDA product hcenses to manufacture blood groupmg reagents and- human globuhn reagents SRR
C and teagent red- blood cells. The Compan\ must prepare brologmal product hcense apphcanons or 510(k) pre- marLet nonﬁcanons S
L to the FDA to. obtain, product licenses or marhet clearance for:a new product or instrument. To accomphsh this, the Compam must

) submrt detatled product 1nformat10n to the FDA perform a tlinical trtal of the product and- demonstrate to the sansf'lctlon of the

© FDA that the product meets certam efﬁcac; and safety standards There can be o assurance that any future product hcenses or -

1

"
xnstrument clearances will be. obtalned b) the Company

In 2003 all Immucor manufactunng facilities. worldwtde were 1ssued cernﬁcatlon or~cert1f1canon reuewal to the ISO 13485 1996

‘ standard for its quahty management svstems “Thit | s an 1nternattonallv recogmzed standard and certtﬁcatton is requrred in order .

to connnue product dlstnbunon inkey ‘markefs: such as Europe and Canada Tn addition; to contiriue markenng its products to.

~“the European Union, the Compan\ is requlred to ma.tntam certlﬁcatlon under the EC' Full Quahtv Assurance System- Assessment

if accordance wrth the requtrements of Annex IV-of theIVD \Iedlcal Devxces Dlrecttve 98 / 79/ EC. Thrs cernﬁcatton authonzes
the use of the CE mark on Company products that allows products free access to'all countries w1th1n the European Uaion. The .
Company successfullv completed cernﬁcanons for CE markmg on all products manufactured for the European market e
In addltlon to the Us, Eutope and Canada there dre multlple countries worldwtde that also 1mpose regulatory barrlers to marl\et entry
The Company connnues to mamtam product reg1strat10ns and approvals necessary to. maintain access to forelgn markets oo

[

In North Amenca the Company has htred and retamed several: emplovees who are htghlv e)tperlenced in FDA and other regulatory

authontx comphance and-the Company: beheves that its manufactunng and on gorn quahty control procedures conform 0 the

‘ requlred statutes;: regulanons and standards T R LT L kS

S . . . . . . .

- ‘:‘Sin‘cel1986, the U:S. Patent Office has issued?to lmmucor stx patents pe’rta.inlngv'to ‘it‘s"soljd pha‘s‘e’ techno_logy. RE :

Immucors solid phase technology 1ncludmg patent rtghts was acqu1red from ﬁve researchers at the Commumty Blood Center of .
Greater Kansas City (“Blood Center”) pursuant to'an agreernent entered into on March 11 1983, and afmended i in’ 1985 and 1987, In

- 1987, one of the' researchers orned the Company as Director of Research and Developmennto contmue to’ develop new products '

l us1ng the sohd phase technology The agreement terminates on, August 26, 2006; the date on whlch the first patent 1ssued on the S

technology expires.  The Companv has agreed to pay the Blood Center royalttes equal to, 4% of, the net sales from products utlhzmg
the solid ‘phase technology For the ﬁscal years’ ended May 31, 2004 2003 and 2002 the Company patd rovaltles of approxlmately S
3451 OOO $463 OOO and $473 OOO under this agreement See Note 10 of the consohdated ﬁnancral statements ERCE :

B i C

B The Compam has remstered the t.rademark “Immucor and sex eral product narmes; such as, “ABSZOOO” : “ImmuAdd” “Capture

) “Capture -P”, “MCP” “Capture -R”; “Readx Screen” “Ready-ID” ‘and “Capture-C’\/[V Domtmon Btolog1cals Lmuted has regstered
Ll the’ trademark “\IOVACLONE” Gamma Blologlcals Inc has reg1stered the trademark “Gamma ‘ - -




: 'C-omtpe.ti,t-i‘;on';*"“"

- ’ licenses- to. manufacture a’ complete line of blood bankmg reagents in. the Umted States. ’The Company beheves that it became the '

T In june 2603 Ortho Chmcal Dlagnosncs announced that its Mlcro Typmg Svstems subsrdlar

; Competmon is, based on quahty

customer ¢ servtces and contmulty of product supplv ln the ast several year_‘
‘and 1 trarnrng The Companv belleves that Ortho Clmcal Dlagnosncs a]ohnson & Johnson companv is its $ole’ comperitor with *

- The Gahleo lnstrument was'mtroduced to- t_he ma]or European counmes srarnng m une 2002 Throughput for the routine battery
3 Umted States in Apnl 2004 b,
: markenng the Ortho ProVue

: srgmﬁcant pnce savmgs over the ID Mlcro TypmgTM Gel TestTM requ1red for the ProVuejM e

I , o
. v

of product pnce and: talent of sales torces ablhtv to furmsh a range.of emsnng and dew products

the mdustry expenenced aggressrve price compenuon o

= parncularlv among manufacturers that targeted large hosprtals and 1nst1tutrons as Key customers In spite’ ‘of 'this' cornpentlve S A
. .envrronment the Company ‘has rnamtarned 1ts \vorldwrde sales\and incréased i its. domesnc reagent market share. Management belreves .
T that T_l‘LlS is due o, the Companvs emphasrs on product quaht\ the 1ntroductlon of new products spec1alty products, customer servrce: A

North Amerlcan market leaderm terms of sales durmg fi scal 1999 and remalns the North Amencan market leader

of tests Is, 70 per hour TlllS is verv 1mportant 0 the European market smce in most ‘cases the laboratoriés are open } fot one shift- only

“and; the testmg is condensed mto -an erght-hour penod Vérsus-a 24 hour perlod inthe Unitéd States The Compam believes: that none

of 'thé i 1nstruments marketed b\ its’ compentors can: approach the speed of ‘the Galrleo® ‘The Companv belleves that the i mstrument
speed \Vlll give Gahleo® the advantage in/ the US market as well The Companv recelved FDA clearance ton market the Gahleo - in the e

'hroughpur for. ABO/Rh and annbody screemng 1s elght to 2l tests per hour and is.to0 be.used in

. ,con]uncnon with the propnetary ID:Micro, Tvptng“I Gel TestTM forboth ABO/ Rh type and anttbody screed; The “only Immucor
. Instrument with Wthl’l the ProVueT\l competes dlrectly is, the ABSZOOO Immucor management beheves the ABSZOOO s use of
- tradltlona I reagents | for ABO and Rh type,., combmed WJth its’ propnetarv technologres for antlbody screen,’ offers the customer

o Olympus Amenca lnc has developed an automated analyzer for the b ood donor market The 1nstrument known ds the PK?ZOO
' :-has been on the market for a number of vears The mstrument performs onlv ABO/Rh tesnng and does not perform antlbodv

" screening. s ‘The O} vmpus 1nstrument users, current]y must dJlute ABO and Rh reagents for the: macl’unes use: Gamma hds developed

. the Olvmpus dlluted reagents or Olympus mstrument wrll hax
. .NorthAmenca T N

_-"dJluted ready-for-use reagents for: Olympus and ‘has’ recelved clearance from the FDA; for the last of these reagents ih late fiscal. -

European competltors for blood bank products 1nclude Dramed a Swrss companv and Blotest AG Both of these cornpames

2003. ‘Olympus. has begun the conver51on of therr customers to the dlluted ready—for—use reagents Management does not belleve Ce

3 an adverse effect on the Companys revenue ot instrument sttategy in”

I --,". e !

have been established longer than- the Company and may have greater financial and other’ resources than. the Company In' Europe

"vDiamed rnarkets the Walk Away Dlana mstrument that is manufactured by anols a Spamsh company Thls system utlizes Dlameds ‘

) Dramed has a larger global market'share than the

‘ propnetar\ gel’ cards and s the same 1nstrument t:hat Is marketed as, the l:’roVue1M by Ortho Clrmcal Dragnosncs in the Uruted States

- - P . . gt", L N

A ! B L

B 1 . L e o . . '

! However the Companv beheves that it is \vell posmoned to compete

) : favorably in the busmess pnncrpally because of the completeness of its product line, quahtv anhd prlce of its products the sale of-

innovative products such as blood bank automatton the Company s Capture products (see Reagents and. Instruments and Instrument

Systems), connnumg research efforts in the afea of b ood bank automanon (see Products Under Development) ‘the expenence ‘and

' ,‘e\rperttse of its 'sales personnel (see Marketmg and Dlstrrbunon) and the evpernse of 1ts techmcal and customer support.staff T

.

nec,

Blotest AG a German pharmaceutlcal ancl dragnosttc companv presendy has FDA llCCI‘lSCS for six reagent products Since the product

" linéls mcornplete there is, no e\udence that Brotest wﬂl be ina posmon 1n the near. term ] market 4 complete “viable commerctal product hne

the ABS2000’s se of tradrt.tonal reacrents for ABO and Rh type combmed w1th 1ts proprjetary technologxes for annbody $creen, wtll

) voffer the customer stgmﬁcant pnce sav1ngs over the use. of gel cards oL R

.
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‘.”.Employees

oL At lulv 30 7004 the r‘ompanv ’1I1Cl its' subsldrarres had a total of 531 emplox ees. The Companv had 366 full time emplovees i the
'EUS of whom 41 werg in sales and markenng, »283 were 1n manufactunng, research and dlstnbutlon and 42 were in admmlstrauon :
‘In Gerrnanv Portugal Ital}, Spain, Cdnada, and Belgiam, the Compan\ “had 165 full time employees of. whom 73 were in sales and’

T _‘marl\enng, 60 were in; research drstrlbutlon and admlmstratlon and 32 Were in rnanufacturmg , e B

) ’The Companv has expenenced alow turnover ‘rate among its: technlcal and sales staff There are 10 Company emplovees that are S

' represented by a; umon The Companv conslders its’ emplo3 ee relatlons w0 be good :

i

Avai-labl‘e Informatio;n'
" Immucor ﬁles reports proxy statements and other«mformatron under the Securmes E\change Act of 1934 as amended (the “1934
Act”) \Vlth the Securities and Exchange Comrmssron (the Comrrussron ) The pubhc may réad and copy’ any Compan\ filings at
~" the Commission’s Public Reférence Roomat 450: Fifth Street \l\W \‘Vashlngton D.C.20549. Informauon on the operadon of
:’:the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling ¢ the: Commlssron at 1-800- SEC- 0330 Because the Compm\ makes filings
T “to the Commlsslon electronrcalh 1nformatjon may also be. accessed at the Commrssrons Internet site (http //W\vwsec gov). This .
“site’ contains reports, promes and mformauon statements and other 1nformatron regarding i 1ssuers that file. electromcallv with the . '
) uCommrsslon Electromc versions of the Companvs annual report on Forrn 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10- Q, current, reports o
"o Form 8- K and any amendmients to these reports filed or furnishied wrth the SEC may, also be: accessed through the Compan\
“_rwebsrte At WAWW. 1mmucor com. under “About Us/Investor Informatlon/SEC Flhngs”k All such reports are av, ailable thrOugh the -

vlCompan\ s website free of charge

- Item 2, I', P rope rties - SR
o The Compam leases approxlmately 120 000 square feet m Norcross Georgla a suburb of Atlanta as its executive offices, laboratorres _
“and manufacturmg facilities. Rent chatges for the fiscal year ended \/Iay 31, 2004 Were approxrmatels $806, 000. The. term of the lease
. is for a six- -year penod endmg Auguist 2007 witht a right to. renew: for an addrt]onal five, yeats. The Comp'mv owns a 41 OOO square foot
~"_bulld.mg on.a three acre tract ‘of land i 1n nort.hwest Houston whlch is used pnmarrlw for rnanufacturmg v '
In Germanv the Compam leases 2 300 square meters neat. Frankfurt Rent expense for the ﬁscal }ear ended Mav 31, 2004 totaled
: apprommatel& $244,000,” Theé term of the lease i’ Germam is through Aprll 2009. . In: Italy, rent expense for the ﬁscal year ended. \Iay .
- 31, 2004 rotaled apprommatelv $117,000 for 850- square meéters. The Compam has ﬁ\e separate lease agreements for the facrhtv in
N %Itax with terms expmng bet\veen September 2004 and Nov ember 2007 In Portugal the Compam leases 110.square metets of ofﬂce
~'space and rent e\pense “for the fiscal year.ended Mav 31, 2004 was apprommatelv $14, 600, In Sparn the Company leases 330 square .’
" :meters of ofﬂce space: and fent expenise for the fiscal xear ended May 31,-2004 was approxrmatelv $56,000. In Belglum fhe Company.
-owns land and 2 1,400 squate mrieter building sub]ect to afirst hen mortgage.. In’ Canada,, the. Conipany owns'a 15,000 square f foot ..
’ bulldrng on approumatelv one acre. of land. The Company beheves all of its facﬂmes and lease terms are adequate and smtable for S

“the Companys current and 1nt1crpated busmess for the foreseeqble future R

s

I Item 3. l Legal Proceedlngs
: Vl‘Vo matenal proceedmgs are. pendmg agamst the Compam and no: ‘shenilar proceedmgs ate known bv the Companv to be contemplatedv'

+ by governmental authormes .

".';fltem-4r“l-‘_‘S'-‘ub'rnii ssion of '_M‘avtt‘ersft'o/é"‘Vot'es,.;of'tS'ec.:_'uri:t“y Holders - -

Not"applicable._, . L ) E - 4
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*ltem 5: IMarket for Reglstrant s Common Eqmty, Stockholder Matters
and Issuer Purchases of Equrty Securltles S

LN

S BLUD:- The followmg table sets forth the quarterlv thh and lou prrces of the common stock for the fiscal perlods 1nd1cated as:
. vbreported by NASDAQ These prlces represent mter dealer quotauons Wlthout ret:ul mqu\ups markdowns ‘or commlssmns and mav

e

o Hgh e 2 Low

Uots w2yt o s1823

,Flscal Year Ended May 31 2004

- First Quarter §$‘J 1136 ) ‘:‘ . .$'v‘8;46V

<" "Second’ Quarter A PR S, s ! 15507 '{' 1067 -
| Thied Quarcer” %l UL h T eear ST 1087
’ Fourth Quarter ’ s b o .7',‘::1‘“‘ 120967 10 50
‘Flscal Year Ended May 31 ,200,@;;_""7"'3 Vel ey e T e L e
"FlrstQuarter " Lo s gse T s 482,‘ S
Second Quatter . < o AT i/ SR Y/ B
'Thlrd Quarter S r RN o B 11.52. Y vL700
»_Fourth Quarter\ . ' B 1036 - T 819 Lo

.l -
~

; "As of July 30 2004 there Were 290 holders of record of the Companvs common stock The ast reported sales prlce of the common' g
stockon\suchdatewas 52026 o e T e R ;/ e )

L Immucor has not declared anv cash dJVJdends Wltl:] respect to 1ts common stocl\ The Compan} presentl\ mtends to contmuc to
B ’retam all eammgs in connecuon \wth its busmess The Companvs 1greernent wrth its prmcrpal lénder- contams certain financial and
- 'other covenants that, among other: thmgs lJrth annua capltal expenditures, limit pavment of cash dedends and the repurchase of
" stogk, limit the incurrence of addmonal debt and thU.er the mamtenance of certain ﬁnancral rauos - See Note 3 of. the collsohdatcd IR

_— ﬁnancral staternents \

*Immucor dlstrlbuted a three for—two stockspht effected in’ the form of a 30% stock dJVJdend on Seprember 13, 2002 o shareholders :
) ;of record on August 20, 2002 .which resulted Jin, the 1ssuance of 4, 128 630 shares of common stock lmmucor distributed a three for—_i -
" two stock split, cffected in the form'of a 50% stocl\ div 1dend on November 14; 2003 to-the shareholders of ‘record-on October 24,

= 2003 \VhJCl] resulted in the 1 1ssuance of 6, 542 601 shares of common stock net of. 2 ,048 fractxonal shares for’ wl’uch cash dividends .~

© were pzud -On June 1, 2004; the Board of Dnrectors approved a three for two stock spht ffected in the form-of A 50% stock -

s dnldend to, shareholders of record as of. the close of busmess onjune 30,,2004. The stock split was dlstrlbuted on]ul\ 16, 2004. and"l -
' mcreased the number of shares outstandmg by:10,066, 940, nét. of 326 fractxonal shares’ ‘for whichcash dlv1dends were. paid. Thé stock .
' :sphts were the fourth; fifth and sikth for the: Companv since ‘its initial pubhc offering in December 1985 Prevrouslv the Companv S
_1mplemented a three for-two spht in 1991 & ﬁve for four spht i, 1990 anda ﬁve for-four splitin 1987 All share and per shate
' amounts chsclosed in tl’llS document have been resmted to reﬂect the'| Jmpact of the above stock sphts

3
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'fEdyHy'CompéhséﬁonjPMn?hﬁormaﬂoﬁgq‘““

1.

The followmg rable promdes mformauon—as of D \fIay 31, 2004 wrth respect o the shares of our common stock that rnav be 1ssued _

' under our exlstmg eqmty compensatlon plans J S
| w . S . ;- . N

T

' ‘_Number of securmes to‘

T T A . beissued upon, exercise Welghted average exercise, Number of secu.rmes
o S - .o e of outstanding: optlons, prrce ‘of outsta.ndmg optlons, remaining: ava.llable g
" ».Plan category.. . . - warrants and rlghts Lo warrants and nghts - for future issuance " .
N quthy compensauon plans ~"._“ R oo e _' J IR . "‘1 . FEEEE IR
. 'approved by secutity holders * e 19005684 0t 86044 s S f‘22§§1'15 .
PRl ‘;o_~'é‘r_ ‘r>\41 e e
.+ Equity compensation plans ~ - T |- 00 T T o B
.. ‘not approved by security holders ¥ . | . e 1,480,793 00 o | ea 0 82360 ) e 12210,
Cswl. oo vassIasT o | e saes | 0 23738
*Includes the Companvs 1998 Stock Opnon Plan and 2003 Stock Opuon Plan » ; .
For a descnpuon of the materral features of these plans see Note 6 of the consohdated ﬁnancml statements
**Includes the Companys 1990 Stock Optlon Plan and 1995 Stock Optlon Plan S - R TR
For a descnpuon of the matenal features: of these plans see \Iote 6 of the consohdated financial statements
3“Stock Repurchase Program
) "'”The Companv msututed a repurchasc program in ]une of 1998 for up to 2, 700 OOO shares On june 1 2004 the Board of Drrectors 4 .A
= ‘authorrzed the Comp'my to repurchase uprto’an: addmonal 300,000 shares of § its common ‘stock., The Board of Dlrectors on August
.2 2004, authorlzed the Company to repurchase up to an addmonal 500 OOO shares of.its common stock The Companv’s repurchase L
program does not have an exprrauon date.‘ . : ' ‘ ] . ' S
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,'Item 6 I Consolldated SeIected.}Flnancral Data

Year Ended May 31

_ The Bloodline-Contintds”

‘,3» 8
B

"",Statement of Operatuons Data
'_‘Netsales ‘ ) AT

:' smz 558 598,648y $84 . ";s¢9,7’95
50369 1

vCost of sales

];’2003(1) e 2002 (1) ‘ ,zom,a)- 2000 (1)

427900 - 374777 138086

376 840t‘ -
. 36,408 ¢

: ,62,1,895.;

40,432 )

Gross proﬁt

R

Operatlng expenses.x "

' .'Research and development . VT

T Sellm%» general and admlmstratwe' R

©:55,858. - 46,995*,' v 31709,

o 1894
730,876,

CU2,009
070 - L

) Loss on Jmpeurment of good\vﬂl ARSI ‘ L . _3,063

..

.,‘Total' operating?ekpe'qses‘f R

. KO

L3195 e 35833

33,073

2304 oL 15041070 @124

' Income (loss) from operations.”. -
- . o .":

' Other e
‘ Interest mcome

L L2A406) T T (ASh L TG4

oy

SRI11y ’
© 231 .

ﬂ.Other (expense) mcome net. . e T

N Yoyl

YR8 U 56 ., - 2297

L e
4

‘;Td‘tavl»ot.h_'e,r_fl",“ IR

Jfo',264 T 0183

g Income (loss) before income taxes EETEEA

‘;‘;2;‘(2,:1_271‘)' i (3057) ‘-"i‘(3>465>'*"

@esoy T

4710 -

Iricome-taxes © 7726 ey U 3'189 o 465 o omgog )

: ,__",Ngnq'com;e aa's“;)‘“ R 312,5'3'8' S 514370 L 58795 "!,.‘$:'(S‘,049'> L g28i2 A
"‘Income (Ioss) per share i R S S
“Per common share - L Ll 30736 "l U 3(0:33) T %011 ‘
+Per common share—assummg chlutlon “,_,_"“' o : S 8034 T $(033) - 8000 ¢
: ‘Welghted average shares outstandmg - i R T A

245900 26033

“ 29,505 " 38203 "

- Common shares

,Common shares - assummg dllutlon R L 31,329 30,315 24,590

..-28755 -,

© o May 31,7

2003 . ,'-:'*‘2'00,"2 o 2001
"Balance Sheet Data : T ; L T
. Workmg cap1tal

I

' -Long term obhganons Jess currem pomon R

B

. t_Retzuned eammgs : 43,426“‘ PR

’ .."Shareholc_le;s eqmty

hd

s 40872 . $ 27 7,070, 519,536 .
L6886 T 1013675 1 95813
18231 <. st o0 39951 .
i T 39,057 420262
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i fm’em/ Securities laws. Fofivard- looking staterents ay be zzz’mfzﬁed by words ‘suoh a5 ‘])/mzr, ” “eapm:, “ “Belzeves,”

e m7 -l "Mana_gement"s‘;Di'scussio‘h ‘an'd Analysis of Financial Conditiori and Results of o'pé_rati,onsj |
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Cen‘am rfatementr z‘/yaf I memncor ng) miaks fio o time o z‘mze, mr/z«{mg statements mniamea’ in this reporz constitute” forwarzi /oo/cmg Jtafemem‘r nder the

i e

m‘zwater

» o

prq;em,

"o

aﬂtzﬂpaz‘er,
“ill”, “&/JU!{/ *-and other. words of similar meamzzg u.ted n mr/jmm‘zaﬂ wzl/) aniong “other things, discussions of Juture aperations, finanéial pegfar;ﬁmzra S

prodmt a’eve/opmmt new pmda:t laninches, FDA zmd other regzt/alogv rzpp/zmz‘wnr and apprwa/t, market position and expenditures. Factors that conld
AA canse actival, results o di ﬁ"er materially from these expremd in any forzmrd /ookma statement wade by, oF on be/}aﬂ :j Imimzor include the fo//owmgg some
- of which are described in greater detail /;e/ow the de[ztzml of rmiomem 17 defer mpzfa/ Jpeﬂdzﬂg, zrzmeared competition in the sale oj instrupients ‘and rqueﬂf; v l
) pmdmt dwe/apmeﬂt or ngu/afar] obrlaf/at, changes in; zntgrert mz‘e;, rbanger in demand for the Compmy/f buman ro//agen préduct and geﬂera/ economiic

rwzdzfzom In addzfzon, the tz‘renglbmzfgg o the dollar versus the Eunro w oild adversély wwipact, reported-Enropean results. . Investors are. cantioned ot fs p/ace
Hndue re/zame opt any fomfﬂrd /ao,émg statements. Immmcor cantion's that /memz/ mzz/tr r/wz//d net be re/zed ypon as zﬂdlmz‘zom of fu/zrre pezformame

LI PR

' \X’e have 1dennﬁed the: pohc1es below as cnncal to. our bustness operanons ‘and the understandlng of our results of operanons The:

" N ‘impact and any assocmted risks related to these pohc1es on our business opetations-is dlscussed throughout Managements Dlscussxon

. in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10 K- \lote that our preparanon of this Annual Report on Form lO K. reqmres us to make

) Operatlons dlsclosure with the Audit Commrttee of the Boatd of Dlrectors

“Revenne Remg;zz’fz’ozz R

nd Analysis of FJnanc1al Condmon and Results of Operattons where such’ pohcles affect our. reported and e‘cpected ﬁnanctal results

~Fora deta1led drscussron on the apphcatton of these and other accounttng polxcles see Note 1 of the consolldated ﬁnanCJal statements ’

' esnmates and’ assumpnons that affect the reported amounts of assets and hablhtre dlsclosure of ¢ontingent assets ‘and liabilities.at the -

dare of our ﬁnanctal statements and the reported amounts of tevenue and e\penses durmg the: reportmg pertod Actual results could
differ from those estxmates and certain assumpttons could | prove to betincorrect: Semor management has' discussed. the development )

. and seléction: of critical. accounting ¢ éstimates. and related Managements Dlscussmn and Analvsrs of Flnanclal Condjtlon and Results of

s B . ;

‘The Companv recogm7es reveriué when the followmg four basrc criteria have been met (l) persuastve ev1dence of an arrangement ;‘

exists] (2) delivery has occurred or sérvices rendered (3) the feé is’ ﬁxed and determmable and (4). collecnblhtv is reasonablv assured
Should changes in condmons cause management to determme these cntern are; not met for certain future transacnons revenue
recognlzed for any repofting perlod could be adverselv affectéd. Revenue from the sale of the Company’s reagents in the us. market :

is recogruzed upon shlpment When both title-and- risk of loss transfers 1o, the customet upon shlpment Revenue from the sale of

.the Companys reagents in the export market is recogntzed FOB customs clearance When both title and r1sk of loss transfers to the

' customer. Revenue from the sale of ‘the Companys medjcal instruments is recogmzed upon shlpment and completton of contractual

obhganons relanng o tralmng and/or 1nstallanon based on terms of the related agreements Revenue frorn rentals of the Companvs

- 'medrcal instruménts is’ recogmzed over the life of the rental agreement Instrument seryice contract revenue i3 recogmzed over the life

‘ofthecontract CeE e S AT o

. In somé srtuanons the Companv sells an mstrument to a thrrd -party leas1ng compan; Wlthout recourse and recelves full cash pay ment f, .

2 for the Jnstrument upon receipt of the, ultlmate customers 51gned dehverv and” acceptance ]_n certa.tn hmxted situations 1nvolv1ng thlrd—

party lease arrangements the Company enters into a. repurchase agreement Wherebv if the ulnmate customer ferminates the lease, the -~
Company agrees “to repurchase the i 1nstrument for an amount equal; o the remammg unpard lease payments owed to the third-party.
leasmg company. ‘In these. limited situations, the Comp’mv defers ‘the revenue related ro the sale, along with the correspondrng cost’ of

= sales and subsequentlv recogmzes the revenue over the lease term’as’ ‘the lease payrherits are made to: the thlrd -party leasmg compan\'

: and it 1s clear that the ultlmate customer has not termlnated the related lease e L SR

A; The: Companv aclopted Emerglng Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No OO 21 Arco;mtzwfor Reuem{e Armﬂgementr wzi/J ]Mu/tzp/e
: De/zaeral;/er for agreements entered i 1nto begtnmng in the second quarter of fiscal year 2004. The Company’s medical i mstrument‘ .
. sales contracts involve mulnple dehverables 1nclud1ng the sale or rental ‘of -an instrument (mcludmg training and 1nstallanon) the

. subsequent serv1ctng of “the i 1nstrument dunng the ﬁrst year, and reagent products prowded to the.customer dunng the validation ,'

petiod. The portion of the mstrument sales pnce appltcable to the instrument, ltself (mcludmg t.ratnmg and’ 1nstallanon) which is ~ ;
.determined based on falr va.lue is recognlzed upon shlpment and complenon of - contractual obhganons relatmg to. training and Jor
1nstallanon based on the terms of the related agreement The pornon of the sales prlce appllcable to reagent producns prowded to . ;l




L

g such recognrtron oceurs. when the vahdanon penod is completed .

o . T -

dunng the first year based on fa\r value 1s deferred and recognr

A//owame far Doubﬁu/ Amuntr

. PR f L ’,—. P L . T »_.A . e

Immucor mamtalns 4n allowance for doubtful accounts for estlmated losses resulnncr from the 1nab1htv of its customers to rnake
requrred pavments Current pohcy is.to provide a rrummum allowance of 4% of thlrd -party: gross recelvables whrch is- based on

historical collectton expenence Any specrf c thrrd-part; 1nvorces “over three vears old is provided for in addlnon 0. the mrrumum . T

.allowance Any tthd partv m orces over elghteen months old and under $50 is provrded for rn adchnon 1o the minimum allowance
AL ’\'Iav 3l 2004, thé allowance is apprommatel\ 1.8% of the gross accounts recelvable balance The Compam contmuallv momtors :

the collectlbrhtv of its customer accounts ind \vhen 1nd1canons arise that an atnount is not hl\el) to be collected the amount is. charged

to. the allowance for doubtrul accounts If the ﬁnanclal condmon of an\ of Imrhucor’s customers was o detenorate resulnng in an

1mparrment of thelr abrhtv © make pavments xaddrtlonal aJlowances could be requrred PR

I ;’1 ve;zm'/j

Inventones are stated at the lower of ﬁtst iny. hrst—out cost bor marl\et Cost mcludes materral labor and, manufacturmg overhead The
Company uses 2 standard cost’ S)stem asa tool to- momtor producnon crfcrenq “The standard cost system. apphes esnmated labor and-”
manufactunng overhead factors to mventory based o budgeted producnon and efﬁcrencv levels, stafﬁng levels and. costs of operation;
based on the experrence and udgment of management Actual costs and producnon levels may \arv from the standard established

- and are charged to the consolidated: statement of operauons as a component of cost of sales Srnce us, generallv accepted accounting -

pnncrples require that the standard cost apprommate “actual cost, penodrc ad;ustments are necessary.. The provrsron for obsolete

1nventorv is revre\ved ona quarterlv basrs All. frmshed good réagent products with: less than s I months datmg are written down "
‘zeto.” Anw 12w, mtermedrate ot fmrshed product that hds been quarannned because it: has falled quahty«control ‘needs to be reworl\cd
‘or is past its e\:prranon date is written doun o zero: Should the: product be successfully re\vorl\ed and pass | final quality control checks, R
itis then valied at ifs standard cost Obsolete and quarannned inventory_is phvsrcall) segrcgated from us¢able and saleable 1 mventor) o

-and destroyed accordmg to: regulator} and frscal gurdelmes No rnaterral changes haxe been made,to the 1 mventorv pollcy dunng fiscal = .

estlmated future cash flows and other factors to determme the falr value of the respectrve assets If these estlmates or* therr telated . pE
assumpnons change in‘the future, the Companv may ; be requrred o tecord 1mpa1rment charges for these assets not prev1ousl\' recorded -
On June 1, 2002 the Companv adopted Statemerit of Fmanc1al Accounnng Standards (“SFAS™) No.: 142 Gaoa’wz// and Other Iniarzgzb/r

Agsefs, and i requrred to analyze'its goodwxll and mtangrble assets fot i mlparrment qnran. anaual basis. of more frequentlwf impairment -
4__mdlcators anse In: October 2001 the FASB issued’ SFA\S N 144 Amszma g for the Ilzpazrzzzent or Dzrpwa/ of  Long-Lived Assets. The

: Statement supercedes SFAS No. 121 Amzm/wg for the ];;,pazf//;ent of szg I_de Arrefr ‘and for Loz;w-l_zmd Assets to be Dzrpon’d cy’ howe& er’ . oo
it retarns the fundamental provrsrons of that statement related 0. the’ recognmon and measurcment of the unparrment of long—lwed ‘

‘assets for be “held and used ? The Company«adopted SEAS No 144 effectlve june ] 2002 Wrthout 1mpact on its ftnancral position or,

' ‘.‘..results of” operatrons See \lotes l and 16 of the consolldated flnancral statements B T S L

. The Companvs mcome tax pohcv records the esnmated future ta\ effects of temporarv deferences between the tax bases of assetm S

; assumpnons change tn the future the Companv may be requrred to.record addmonal valuanon allowances agalnst its.deferred.tax

‘o

_"Iﬂgome Toxes . Ca Co T e e

arid habrhnes and amounts reported 1n the accomp’tn\mg consohdated balance sheets, as- well as operanng loss and “tax creth carry-

\ forwards The- Compan\ follows spccrfrc owdelmes regardmg,the rccoverabrht\' of any tax assets recorded on the balance sheet and

provrdes allo“ dnices as requlred The valuanon of the Companvs deferred tax Assets assumes that the Compan\ w1ll be able to

‘gencrate suffrcrent future taxable’i mcome in’certain ‘tax Junsdlcnons based bn estimates and assumpnons If these estlmates and rclated .

- assets resultrng in addigonal 1 mcome ta\ e\pense in the Comp"m\'s consohdated statements of operanons ln assessrng the rcah7abrlrtv
- of deferred rax’assets, management consrders whether t js more. hkelv than not that some poftion or all of the deferred. tax assefs Wlll

. not be reahzed ‘\/Ianagement consrders the scheduled rewersal of deferred ta)t habrhnes pro;ected fature taxable income, carry-back

o opportumues and tax- planmng strategres i maklng thrs asscssment ~Management evalmtes the rcahzabrlltv of the deferred tax assets

: E . ! [ . A . L o . - . -
. . . .

\'..The:Blo'o‘dline" ’Co‘ntinues C
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and assésses t;he need for addmonal valuanon allowarices' quarterly No matenal changes have been made to the i mcome tax pohcv .

; dunng ﬁscal 2004 See Note 9 of the consohdated ﬁnanclal statements.

"jtafk;ha,re?lhEm/@wa Calzrillbmra'zjga B o o . ; o . . ’:lf e g . .

o The Company grants stock opnons for a ﬁxed number of shares to emplovees Wlth an-exercise pnce equal to the faJr value of the ‘
' "shares at the date of the grant The Company accounts for stock option’ grants in accordance Wlth APB Oplmon No 25 A[fatmﬁﬂg

B “for Stock Imfea’ 2 Emp/ayeer and accordmgly does not recogmze compensanon expense for the stock’ opnon grants. In December e
2002, the FASB issued SFAS No 148, Ammﬂzﬁg Jor: Stock .Ba:ea’ Coﬂg)ematzon ~ Transition and Dzrc/omre —an amerzdmeﬂt o EASB S tatemeﬂt
“l\lo 723 Tl’llS Statement provrdes alternative methods of transmon fora voluntarv change to theéfair value based method of ©
_ accountmg for stock- based employée compensanon In addmon this Statement amends the drsclosure requlrements of - Statement .
1123 1o require promment disclosures in both annual and’i mtenm ﬁnanc1al statements about the method of accounnng for stock-
kbased employee compensanon ‘and.the_ effect of the method used on reported results In: deterrmmng the pro-forma compensation -
’—Mexpense management ‘must make estimates of Wolanhty of the underlymg common stock and expected option life, Whlch impacts the’
" 'fopnon farr value.” The: Companv adopted the mtenm dlsclosure reqmrements 1n the penod ended Mav 31, 2003 See Note 1 of- the
. consohdated ﬁnancla.l statements . o SRR : & : :

g'Ove‘r\v'i‘evy S U IR SiTE e Tl e T B
--‘:For ﬁscal 2005 the Companys strategy is focused pnmarrly on 1mprov1ng gross margm and on developmg its thlrd generanon ‘
‘rautomated assay mstrument Whrle the. Companys net sales for the year ended May 31, 2004 mcreased to 5112 6 million from 598 6
o “million for ‘the year ended May 31, 2003, gross margm (gross proﬁt as a percentage of sales) decreased to: 55 2% for the vear ended
g ‘May 31 2004 from 56 6% for the year ended May 31; 2003 R VS T
’ ';A's discussed 'beld\v unv'de'r “Results .of Qp_erations',”; the _deterioratio.rlrin' gross .marg'in”\vas :due‘ ‘t’o.'se‘veral,‘facto‘rs',"including:' RO v

. Incteased producnon quahty and regulatorv costs; "".‘_ ) f :
g . Increased reagent sales to European dlstnbutors it relanvely lower marglns than dlrect sales © end users, N . ’ N
i‘ Increased 1nstrument service burden and .’" , l o S \v R
.°"Costs incurred toi’cé)nsolidéte red cell manufacturlngfac]lmes e v Bl “ P A I ‘f

'
o e < . [ R S
;

Whlle the Compan} plans to connnue European sales through dlstnbutors as the Company beheves that unllzmg dJstnbutors s
estabhshed in key European markets is-far more advantageous to the Company than developmg 1ts own, sales and dlstnbutlon network

K

.
. .

Cin these markets it hag’ 1mplemented steps to stabrllze and 1mprove gross margm mcludmg

.

e The ehrrunatlon of a number of redundant products currentlv manufactured at ‘the Companvs three manufactunng fac1ht1es
parna]lv completed durmg the foutth quarter of ﬂscal 2004 and contmumg through the ﬁtst quarter of ﬁscal 2005

P )

. The consohdanon of the Companys red cell product manufacturlng, prevrously produced at both the Norcross and Houston_ . 4 -
e facrhtles to the Companys Norcross famht}, completed at the’ end of the fourth quarter of ﬂscal 2004 e

AR '

e Obtalmng FDA clearance of the Galrleo® for marketlng m the Umted States and 3 P . -

e The development of a thrrd generanon automated assay, mstrument from whlch the Compam e‘cpects to produce hlgher

- oo ) margrns and lower service costs. when it 1s mtroduced (currendy pro ected for ﬁscal year 2006)
. . . '5 . N

e ,,'

On Apnl 25 2004 the Companv obtarned FDA clearance w0, market 1ts hrgh volume Gahleo rnstrument in the US de51gned for the -
L large slzed hosprtal market. The i 1nstrument tevenue and the related reagent revenue stream are expected to 1mprove gross marglns )
.because the mstrument ‘réquires propnetarv reagents developed for automated technology, thus commandmg a prermum pnce ovet -
‘,,tradrnonal products, ‘As of ]u.ly 21 2004 the Company has placed 133 Galileo® 1nstruments with mternanonal Customers.since . )

.

mtroduclng the Gahleo® to the European market dunng the ﬁrst quarter of 2002 : / AT

. L e P
R . N - - oo . > - S PR ' . s s

"'-Th‘e‘Com"an ""recentl ,announced it is develo in av'third’ eneration instrurnent,,eurrentlvtrefe‘rred to s the:“G3 and planned for
bany.recently. ann | 1t1s developing a third generation instrument, curfendy refefred to as TooAnep




. approxrmately 32 8 rmllron for offsrte placements o

o release in. 2006 The G3 is targeted at the small— to medrum srzed hosprtal market ith largest seoment of the Companys customers
S \vhrch number’ approvmately 7,500, worldwrde to Wh.lCl'l ‘th ‘Compans s ABSZOOO 1nsn‘ument s currentlv marketed The G31i 15
e\:pected to be stgruﬂcantl\ smaller and Fastet than the ABSZOOO but have substannal.ly all of the fearu.tes of ‘the Company’s larger

_,: Gahleo product apart from lower throughput The G3 smaller srze is desrgned e allow “depot servrce *~where a customer dehvers 4

dn rnstrurnent ‘toa Company depot for servrcrng and recerve ‘ loaner mstrument to use unnl servicing’ 15 complete The Company

: expects tlLlS depot method to. be more “cost effecnve than. sendrng reparr personnel to the customers site; and accordmgly expects '

: B mstrument servrce costs Wlll eventua.lly declme as the G3 replaces t_he ABSZOOO s

v

T 2003 and 2002 respecnvely As of May 3] 2004 the Companys cash and cash eunvalents balance totaled 315 7 mtllron an’increase

) As outlmed in the chart below management worl(ed drllgently to reduce the days sales in accounts receiv able Some of the Companv
. ‘forergn sub51d1ar1es have hrstorrcally slower collectlon rates due to thelr respecuve economrc envrronments The Companv has” been

.. succeéssful with- the factormg of Itahan accounts recervable that contmues 0 1mprove the’ Ita.han subsrdraty s financial position. The o

Companv has, ifiade an 18% 1mprovement 1n days sales m recelvables over the past two \ears The Company has also experrenced

)

Davs Sales in Recelvables S : 96 g . :.103. : -

S137 0 b 150

I

PR Days Sales in Inventorv

For the year ended May 3] 2004 357 1 mrllron of cash as used in 1nvestmg acttvrnes pnmanly for caprtal e\pendrtures of $3 0 R

: \let cash ptovrded by operanng activiticd totaled approxrrnately 322 7 mlllron $20 3 rmlhon,;and $13 1 rtnllron for the ﬁscal years' 2004 '

.. -The ‘Bloo_dline,Cont'in‘ues :

' rmlhon for Galrleo® ‘and, other 1nstruments used for demonstranon purposes by the. sales force or placed at- customer sites on reagent o o

o rental agreements £ be deprecrated over the hfe of the- respecnve agreements $2.7 mrlhon for manufactunng consohdauon and

. qualrty system rmprovements at rts Norcross and Houston facilities, $0.8 million for computer hardware and software enhancements :

“of.the enterpnse soft\vare system apprommatel\ 350 5 mrlhon for the human collagen mesh manufactunng suite at the Houston S

; facility and §0.1 mrlhon to refurbrsh the. German facrllty Planned capttal e\pendrtures for ﬁscal 2005 total apprommately $7.3.million, ’

" including’ apprommately $3 7 mrllron for. planned upgrades atits Norcross facrlrty for its manufactunng, qua_hty and support systems, - Lo

e for upgrades at the‘Canadran factlrty

. On December 18 2003 the Company obtamedv a new $27 O mJllJon secured cred.lt fac.llrty Wrth SunTrust Banl\ Proceeds of these o

' borrowmgs were prlmanly “aséd” to- repay ‘the Compan}?s prevrous arrangement Wlth \Y’achovra Bank (whrch was cancelled upon
: “repayment) The Hew: ¢redit facrht\ matures m December 2006.and-i 18, compnsed of a SlS 0 mlll_lon revolver and a $12 0 million term

R loan, The: term loan 1s payable in quarterly mstallments of $l O'inillion. - The térm loan and the revolver bear interést of LIBOR plus o

addmonal percentage pomts ranging: from 1.0% w0l 75%,‘ SunTrust Bank prime | rate plus addmonal percentage points rangmg from
(0 5%) £ 1 0% based on cefrain calcu.lanons as. deﬁned in, the Loan Agreement The loans:are collaterallzed by the caprtal stock of

* all of the Companys suhsrdranes The Company recorded a non cash; pre-tax charge of 3924 000 i in the third quarrer to write off,

unamortlzed deferred ﬁnancrng charges related to its prevrous credrt facrl.tty As of May 31 2004 there was Sll 0 mrlhon outstandrng

© . ow the tefm loan and [non¢ outstandmg on the revolver

~Net cash used in- ﬁnancrng act:vmes totaled apprommately $11 3 nnlllon Approxrmately $26 5 mllhon m payments of long-term debt
T pnmarrly to repav obhganons to* \Wachovra Bank line of credrt and caprtal lease obhganons were made dunng the penod Proceeds
under the’ new secured credrt facthty wrth SunTrust Bank totaled $12 0 million durrng the perrod The recerpt of §3.3, mrlhon in casht,
_from the exercme of stock opnons parnally offset the net cash used in ﬁnancmg actrvmes These opnons were granted in prior, ﬁscal
' vears at exéreise prices equal to the market value of the Companys stock on the date granted See Note 6 and Item 5 “\/Iarket for
. Reg]sr_tants Common Equrty and Re ated Stockholder Vlatters——hqultv Compensatron Plan’ Informanon

N

e‘GalJleo ‘instruments by- the. foréign afﬁlrates, and approx;r_nately $0.57 mrllron
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) The Companv mstltuted 2 repurchase program in _]une of '1998 for up to 2 700 000 shares of Wthh 2 416 ,500 shares had been - v
: ",‘ purchased prior.to ﬁscal 2004, leavmg 283,500 shares available for repurchase On june 1, 2004 the Board of Dlrectors authorrzed
"." the Company to repurchase up to an additjonal 300,000 shares of its common stock In the subsequent two- month perlod followmg )
o the 1mplementat10n of the June 2004 repurchase program, the. Companv repurchased an ‘additional 285 ,800 shares at an average price.
. of . $19. 63, bringing the aggregare number 6f shares to 2,702,300 repurchased to date:since nnplementanon of thie 1998 repurchase -
i program On August 2, 2004, the Board of Drrectors authonzed the Company to repurchase up fo an additional 500,000 shares of ]
lits’ common stocL Wlth the August 2004 authorlzanon and taking into account all repurchases through]ul} 2004, the Companv is -

authorlzed to repurchase up to 797, 700 shares the aggregate amount rernammg aVallable for repurchase under the program

T

‘ ‘At May 31, 2004 and May 31, 2003 the Company had an-intérest rate swap agreement in the Compam"s funcuonal currency, maturmg
\in 2005 with-an initial: nononal principal amount of $la 0 millior, \Vlnch amortizes over the life’ of  the instrument. The fair va.lue o
. of the interest rate Swap agreement represents the estlmated rece1pts or pavments that would be made to term1nate the agreement
.and'is inchided’ with other long—term liabilities. on the balance sheéet.’ At May 31, 2004 and May 31, 2003, the Company would have
pard $156,965 and $422 677 respecm ely, to termmate the agreement in the Company S, funcnonal currency The mterest rate swap -
agreement, with SunTrust Bank is guaranteed b\ ‘the Companv See Ttern 7A—Quant1tat1ve and Quahtame Drsclosures About Market
‘-Rrsl\—lnterest Rates : : - ' : ‘

-

) Management continues to focus on reducrng the lev erage on the Companvs balance sheet and does ot anticipate that there wrll be al

e need for additional borrowings. hlanagement expects that cash and ‘cash equiv alents and cash flows from operations w1ll be sufﬁc1ent
R © support operations, scheduled debt tepayments-and planned capltal expendrtures for the next 12-moriths, as’ well as fund, future long S
“term debt payments. There are no rest_ncnons on the Companv’s forelgn subs1d1ar1es in the matter of sendmg d1v1dends or maKing’ 4
B loans ot advances to the parent Company Contractual obhgauons and commerc1al commitments, prrmarllv for the ne*(t five § years,’ are .
detarled in’ the tab e below Other long term obhganons represent outsta_ndlng unrecorded purchase commmnents as of May 31, 2004 o

Paymems Due b Cy Perrod
) -

o ‘ s (o thousan,
A 'Cohtfactda.l.ObligatiOns - .‘ h llt o Total_ o | : Lessy::ran 1 1-3 years_ ‘: _4:,,5‘ years :After 5 years ;
» - ‘Long-Term Debt and Llnes of Credlt e $ll,458 $5,l90 ) ‘$“‘6;233' % 35 $ B |
_ :A-‘Caprtal Lease Obhganons BT : R ‘;l',bOO,' i 652 - ' 612 ."_ 336 - »
- iij_fOperaung Leases ‘ ' s - 6;034v“ , 1,567 _. S "_—2,774 BB E ',‘-1,66‘4"." : , 29
‘i‘OtherLong Term; Obhganons S oaests | o008 | s | 1819 | 276 )
o Gl G g | 55 | Siea | stsa29 | s3a |5 s |

. :‘ARapzfﬁ/)a';é Ob/zéai{o;rr -(Iﬂ;ﬁume}z{.r) o

. In some situations, the Compan} sells ag 1nsttument t0 4 thlrd part\ leasrng compam Wltl’lOut recourse, and receiv es fu.ll cash pay ment
": for thé instrument upon receipt of the. ulnmate customers srgned dehverv and acceptance In certain Ilmlted situations, currently
“a total of four inv OlV ing th1rd -party: Jeasé arrangements the Compam enters into'a repurchase agreement wherebv if the ultimate -
customer termmates the Alease the Companv agrees tor repurchase the rnstrument for an- amount equal to the temaining unpaid lease, -
) pavments owed to'the third-party leasmg company In these | linited srtuatlons the Comp’ln\ deférs the revenue related to the sa.le
: along \Vlth corresponclmg direct and mcremental cost ot salés; and. subsequenﬂv recogmzes the revenue over the leasé term as the lease ’

pavrnents are made to the’ thlrd party. leasmg compam and 1t is. clear that the ulnmate customer has not termlnated the related fease. .

: ‘ Off-B alance Sheet A 'rr'a:/gaffzg/ztr

P

The Company hasfnorof:f-balance sheet‘ﬁnancial arrange/ments as‘ of szy?}31, 20(‘),4.1 . R




N development agreement w1th lnamed occurred in Mav 2004 and contnbuted $0. 4 mi hon to the revenue 1ncrease

a7

Results of Operatlons '

L For the ﬁscal year ended Mav 31 2004 nét sales totaled 5112 6 rrulhon a $l3 9 mrlhon (14 1%) mcrease over the priot year. ‘Net | »

1nc0me was- Sl2 5. m.tlllon 2%t 8 mJ.IlJon (12 7%) decre'tse over the pnor véar.- Dlluted earnrngs per shdre totaled $0. 400n 31.3: mllhon )

welghtecl average shares outstandmg for fiscal 2004 as compared to chluted earmngs per share of SO 47 on 30 3 mrlhon \verghted

average shares outstandrng for the pnor vear I ', R

’.'.»C,;'mpa;z'ma g‘ffrm Eadgd M@ ;,‘7; 2004 and Maya_r,‘éoaﬁ

":L»N_etjsales‘

e Sales of. tradmonal reagent products 1e products ngt, utrhzmo the Companv’s patented Captu.re technolog), 1ncreased $8 6 rmlhon

or 12.0%, from $71.9 million in ﬁscal 2003 to $8O 5 nul.hon in fiscal 2004 Sales. of Capture produets mcreased appronmately $3 1.

) million o $21.9 mrlhon a 16 5% | mcrease over the prror year The Companv beheves growth 1n reagent revenue rncludrng both |
,tradmonal reagent products and Capture products occurred’ as a result of- approwmately $4. 3 million | m ‘price. increases in’ North

Amerrca approxrmately $4.1 mrlhon in changes in the Euro e\change rate, and approxrmately $3. 3 million i n 1ncreased reagent, volumes L

from i mstrurnent placements v»orldwrde Instrument sales for ﬁscal 2004 1ncteased by apprommatelv $1.7 nulhon, to $9.7 million, an

" increase of 22, 1% over the prior. year. ; lnst_rument rev enue gre\v pnmanlv as’a: result of, increased- sales' of the Galileo® instrument
" to dlstrxbutors in’ Eutope and to 2 $0: 2 mllhon change in the Euro eachange rate. The first shlpment under the human collagen

. PR
3

. 'Gro,s's Pr.oﬁt T e S SR S AT

Gross proﬁt as’a percentage of net sales wag 55 2% xersus 56 6% for the years ended \/[a\ 31, 2004 and 2003 respecuvel)
Manufactunng expenses for the Umted States 1ncreased 33 0. rnrlhon or 12. 6% for the year ended \{av 3l 2004, as compared to -

" the year. ended May 3] 2003 and unfavorab e manutacturmg \arlances had 2 correspondmg 1ncrease of 30.7 mﬂhon or 13.5%, for

“ the year cnded May. 31 2004; as compared to. the year, ended Mav 31, 2003 V[anufacturlng expenses rncreased due to addmonal :

‘ personnel and e\pendrtures to support domestxc and 1nternatronal efforts to’ e\pand Companv presence and assure comphance Wltl'l

the; FDA .The increase in’ rnanufactunng e\penses also mcluded approxrmatel\ $0.4 mrlhon in ‘worldwide expenses: related to CE

a marl.mg and huropean Union quahtv regulatlon complnnce for, products ‘intended for sale wrth_ln the European Union. \la.nagement =
had recognlzed ‘the necd for margm unprovement éarly in the ﬁscal year;and developed a detarled plan to consohdate the manufacture _‘

" of the comple\ Ted cell products into- the: Norcross facrhty The prolect was completed. in \Ia} 2004 at a cost of apprommatel\ $0.3,
miillion: Consohdauon of redundant red cell panels and the accompanymg supplemental products vvlll allow the Company to" produce

a panel that gives the customer a-better selecnon of annbodres and will increase the Companvs efﬁcrency A plan to eliminate a

] ‘number of redundant products Wl’l]Cl’] were manufactured at the Companys three manufactunng facrht}es was parnall) completed

o ,dunng the Fourth quarter of* ﬁscal 2004 and, will conunue through the ﬁrst quarter.of ﬁscal 2005 l%etter mventorv management and

.

‘compared to’ the\ear ended May 31 2003 E L -:c o . a

: productlon plannmg resulted in manufacturmg effuencx 1mptovement of $l 6 mlllron -or43, l% for t:he )ear ended May’ 31 2004 as:

K|

_Gross margm on, tradmonal reagents fell t659. O% for the ﬁscal \ear ended \lay 31 2004 compared \vrth 59 7% in the prror fiscal year, .. s
in spité of the. $4.5 mtllron in prrce 1ncreases due pnmanlv to the 1ncreased manufacturlng expenses addmg apprommately $2.5 rmlhon ;

*in additional cOSts! ‘Gioss. margm on Capture products was 64 8% ‘compared with 68:1% in the prior y year pertod The mcreased

. sales volumie of the Capture products menttoned above \vas prrncrpftll) generated through sales to the ‘distribufor network | ln Europe :
Tat margrns apprommatelv 6% lowet, ,or $1.9 mJJ.hon than achieved through Cl]ICCt sales in the Us.” Increased manufacturrng e\tpenses

translated to approxrmately $0.6 mllhon of the dechne in Capture - gross ‘profit. The gross margm on 1nstruments inc udJng the - _
“impactof the cost of provrdlng servrce was & 3% fot fiscal 2004 versus 1.3% for fiscal 2003 Instrument sales in Europe were made -

at a 32:5% gross margin for fiscal 2004 versus.at.a 23 0% g gross margrn for. fiscal 2003, addmg an additional 30 6-milliot to gross proﬁt

for ﬁsca 12004 Instrument revenue in the Umted States, Wl’tlcl’] incl udes the cost of provrdmg service, was made at & (30 %) gross ..

. rnargrn for ﬁscal 2004 versus ata (32: 8%) gross margm for- ﬂscal 2603, Instrument service continués to be provtded at a loss for the N

- year-as overall 1nstrument placements *have not reached the level reqmred for- service operatrons to break- even ‘and the older model’

ABSZOOO mstruments 1n ‘the’ ﬁeld advance in, age The 1nstrument service burden of $l 0 rmlhon reduced the gross margm bv 9% . oo

The change in the Euro exchange rate 1ncreased gross proﬁt by ctpprommately $l 8 mllJOt‘l :

)
v

" The ‘B'l:‘o'od.lin'e' Contlnues. -
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;O‘pérating expenses - T L b L
v \X/hen compared to the prror vear, research and development costs, for frscal 2004 mereased $1.7 mrlhon or 82. 6% Durmg the year
' 810 mrlhon was; 1ncurred fot contract research fees related to the G3 platelet ‘and Galtleo® US. séftware development proj ects Key
R personnel and résources weré reallocated from manufactunng and admmrstranve funcnons to research and development funcnons for -

N »

these pro ects amounnng to approxrrnatelv $0 4 mrllron Preproducnon collagen costs amounted to- approxrrnatelv $O 3 mrllron

for the year T

L R

Se]lrng and marLenng expenses 1ncreased $2 4 mtlhon for the vear ended Mav 31 2004 as compared o the pnor vear, of whrch
BREER 5 & 0 mrlhon was-a result of ‘the’ change m the Euro to dollar exchange tate, Travel personnel and markenng expense increases in -
"', *assoclanon with the sales efforts to further market the Galileo® in Europe and the ABS2000 | in the Urnted States, to launch t_he
Gahleo .in'the Umted States and o develop Worldwrde product brandrng, accounted for the remarmng 91 4 mrllron increase. for

>

the yeat. ;

Drstnbutlon expenses for ﬁscal 2004 rncreased by $l 5 m]llron compared to the pnor year pnmanly dué to addrtronal personnel and’ . o
expenses -of $0.4 rrnllron inicurred by the German subsrdrarv to establrsh 2 European drstnbunon hub and $04 million i in higher freight :

. and supplies. telated to ‘the shrppmg package reconﬁguranon for the Houston faclht\ The exchange rate effect of the huro versus the
dollar 1ncreased dlstnbunon expense SO 3 mrllron S o Ly L ff :

General and admlnrstranve expenses for the year ended May 31 2004 rose approxrmatelv $1 3 mthon over the pnor year. The change i ‘

1n the Euro’ exchange fate accounted for appro‘nmatelv $0.7 mrllron Approxlmatelv $0. 2 mﬂhon of the i mcrease was: due to hlgher : . ‘ - o

legal debt recovery and stafﬁng costs for the, Companvs Italian subsrdrarx The remarnder of thei 1ncrease was due to’ additional
personnel and expend.rtures worldwrde 1o support dornesnc and 1nternanona.l efforts to expand Companv presence and ¢ assure L s
: comphance wrth European Urnon qualm regulanons and accountrng and regulator\ mandates i the Umted States .

c |ht’ejrest4 Exbense

) K . oo . Lo 3 L. ) Lo o N
\When compared to the pnor year, 1nterest expense decreased Sl 5 rnrllron in ﬁscal 2004 The decrease is. the result of reduced levels

_of long-term debt at more favorable Jnterest rates amounnng to sav1ngs of $1.0- mllhon and a swing i the mark-to market ad]ustment
“of thé iriterest rate swap agreernent amounting to $O 3 mrlhon Lower amornzanon of debr i issue costs due to reduced debt 1ssue costs,

‘ subsequent to the exnngurshment of 'thé Companvs prevrous credrt facrlrty, reduced interest expense by, $0.2 fnrllron for the current S
perrod See D ﬂrrezz’ Cam' in’ Note 1 and anary Ob/zgatzom in Note 3 of ‘the consohdated ﬁnancral statements N i

" Other 1ncome (expense) net for the year endrng May 31, 2004 mcludes a $O 9 rnrllron pre -tax; non’ cash charge to ertetoff .
T unamornzed deferred ﬁnancmg charges related to the Companvs prevrous credrt facility.. Frscal 2003 amounts pnmanlv reﬂected

forelgn currency’ transactlon gams that exceeded forergn currency transacnon losses and a S

2 mrlhon rmparrment of assets See Note

l of the consohdated ﬁnancral statements

K

. .J‘IhcomefTaxesf_‘ T T TERC I

S 'The effectlve tax rate for the year ended Mav 31 2004 was 38 1% VEL‘SL]S 28 8% for the year ended Ma\ 31 2003 Flscal 2004 Jncludes
s . -atrue up of the estunated tax beneﬁt of the 2003 European restructure and ad]ustments for rrnsappl!catlon of Texas franchise tax '
‘rules-for’ fiscal. years 2002 and 2003 ‘that-added $O 1 ‘million: and $0.3 m1lhon to income tax e\rpense respecnvely In addmon a reserve:,
of $0:2 mrlhon was estabhshed to! recognrze the i 1ncreasmgy conservatlve posmons taken b) thé various taxmg “authorites.” I the, ﬁscal ;
year ended Ma\ 31, 2003 the i income tax prousron for’ current )ear earnlngs Wwas offset by a §14 mJJlron '\hbeneﬁt generated through
Ta restructurmg of cersain European operanons that allowed for the unhzanon of tax losses generated in pr1or )ears
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. . R '1' ' apprommately Sl 2 mrllron pnmarrly in: South Amencan countnes that were eapenencrng fmancral drffrculnes and the planned exit
‘from. ClJSttlbuUOﬂ of certarn low- margln thnd partv products of approxrmately 31.0 mrllron Instrument sales for ﬁscal 2003 mcteased
by approumatel\ $2 5 mlllron to $8 0 mtl.hon an. mcrease of 45% over. the pnor year Insrrument revenue grew. pnmanly as a result
of mcreased sales of the Gallleo mstrument o) dlstnbutors 1n Europe of appronmatelv §3.4; mrlhon offset byva decrease in Umted

N

. mrlhon for the ﬁscal year ended ’v[ay 31, 2003 e

.»Gros_s' Profit” ; {'_,.J{,,

oo T 1 "~~ e

. Gross margln ‘was 56 6% versus 55. 6% for the years ended \lay 3l 2003 and 2002 respecuvely Gross margm ‘on tradmonal reagents
L ’ — “was 59.4% for the current ﬁscal vear compared \vrth 56 2% mthe prlor \»ear perrod "Gross proﬁt increased prlman_ly due 1o the

‘ ) :‘. 310 4 mrlhon in pnce ificreases mennoned above Gross rnargm ‘on Capture products § was, 68.67%, compared with 70. 7% in the pnor
['year pe.r_lod "The: increaséd. sales volume of. the Capture products menttoned above was prrncrpallv generated through sales 16 the - : ‘
dJstnbutor network in Europe at margrns to the Compan\ approxrmately 6% lower than achreved through dJrect sales in'the U S R B } .
havmg a negatrve effect on Capture gross profrt of . $Ol mllllon The Gahleo sales in Europe primarily to drsttrbutots were also at " .
o margirs-lower than vvoulcl be achleved through drrect “sales; Wl’llCl’l negauvelv affected gross profit: by $O 5 mrllron Instrument setvice - - ' i
;1 was provlded at a loss for the year as overall 1nstrument placements had not reached. the level requlred for" servrce  operations to break-
“ .. - even. Thei 1nstrument service burden reduced the gross margrn by O 5%. The change m the Luro exchange rate 1ncreased gross proflt '
o by approxrmately $1 9 mrlhon : - : e ‘ : -

When compared to the pnor yeat, research and development costs for ﬁscal 2003 rncreased 2 7% Increases related to preparatlon I
for domesnc ﬁeld tnals or the Galrleo mstrurnent were paruall offsettbv a reductton of 1nstrument development 1n1t1at1ves for the

n 2

J

Sellmg and markenng evpenses mcreased 33] 4 rnrllron for"

l'e )ear ended May 31 2003 ;a8 compared to the prror year of Wl'uch $l O _
. Million was a resultiof the change in' the Euro to dol.lar e\change rate Travel and marketrng evpense increases associated. w1th the w0 o
sales efforts to, market the Gahleo m Europe and the ABSZOOO m the Umted States accounted for $0 4 mrlhon of the mcrease for ‘

| ppmg e\penses related to new customers and the. lmplementanon of a
. ne\v shrppmg package conﬁguratron desrgned to marntaln acceptable env1rontnental ternperatures and preserve product quallty )

: 2003 rose apprommately Sl 1 mrlhon over the pnor vear The change

K General and admlmstrauve eapenses for the yeat ended May .
B . T Lin the Euro exchange rate, accounted for. approxrmatelv $0 5 mrlhon The remaJnrng increase, of $0. 6 million was due to:ddditional:
: personnel and expendltures to support domesnc and mternattonal efforts’to. eapand Companv presence and assure comphance \wth
European Unron quahty tegulatlons and accounnng and reoulatorv mandates in the Uruted Staces” R ~:' S A il o

et L

Amorttzanon e\pense declrned $1. 3 m]lllon for thi 5ear ended Mav 31 2003 as cornpared \v1th the pnor year due tor the adopnon of
SFAS No 142, Goadwz// and Other Iﬂtaﬂgzb/e Arret.t R hJch requrres goodwrll and 1ndefm1te lived 1ntang1ble AS5ELS to be reviewed annually
Lo L for unparrment or more frequently 1f 1mpa1rment factors anse mstead of.: amornzed The Companv tested goodvnll for i 1mpa1rment ‘ _
S ., “as of March 1, 2003 as requrred by SFAS \lo 142, utlhzrng a comblnanon of: valuatron technlques mcludmg the expected present. ' c.
4 l value of future cash flows and a market mulnple approach and otind no 1mpa.lrrnent L e - o . R
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e Jmpact on ltS ﬁnancml statements

‘Immucor,inc. Annual Report 2004 .,

' ’When compared to the prior }ear interest expense decreased $2 0 mllllon in ﬁscal 2003 The decrease was. pnmanlv the result of

reduced borrowmgs on long term debtand-a ‘more, faworable 1nterest rate- that became effecnve 1n Mav 2002 under. the orrgmal loan
‘.-agreement and contmued with the Julv 2002 amendment to the loan agreement Also lower amornzanon of debt 1ssue costs due to

L the teset of long term debt matunt} dates further reduced mterest expense R NP - e

';Oth'e‘rA lhooﬁne (ex'p‘ense) o

o Other income (expense) net; fot the year. ended \/[av 31 2003 pnmarllv reflects forelgn currency transactlon gams that e‘tceeded '

'forelgn currencv transacuon losses and 2 $0.2 rmlhon 1mpa1rment of assets. See Note'1'of the, consohdated financial statements..

. Other income for the prior twelve month perlod wis favotabl\ affected by the drsgorgement ‘of short—swmg tradmg profits by the.

‘Kaxros Group in.the amount of §0.4 mllhon and by $l 0 mllhon from the settlement of a contractual drspute w1th Becton Drckmson T

z

~. "Income TaXes" ‘

In sp1te of 51gmﬁcantly hrgher income levels 1ncome tax expense 1ncreased “only ‘52 6 mllhon for the ﬁscal Vear ended Mav 31, 2003

as compared to- the prior vear. The income tax provmon fot curferit year carnings was: offset by‘a 514 rmlllon taX benefit generated

" :through” restructurmg 'of certain European operatlons that allowed for the, uttllzatxon of tax losses genetated m prlor years Fiscal 2002 o

'had benefited from the utrhzatlon of US net operatmg loss carry- fomards of $2 3 mllhon o

' "Q;«Impact of Recently Issued Accountlng Standards

In ]une 2001 the FASB issued SFAS No 143 Amuntzrxg forAﬁei Retirement O/J/Igalzom (“SFAS No 143”) Statement 143 apphes to -
i legal obhgatlons assoclated with the retlrernent of long-lived assets, that result from the acquisition, construcnon dev elopment and/ v i ;
* or the normal operation ot a long-lived asset For the purposes of Statement 143, 2 legal. obhganon is an obhganon that a party is!
’ » requrred to settle as a result of an existing or. enacted law, statute, ordrnance or Wntten or oral contract ot that is based on a promrse -
. and an’ e\pectatlon of: performance Statement 1431 is effecme for financial statements for fiscal years, begmnmg after June 15 2002 4
‘ -v-j_‘.The Company adopted SFAS No. 143 effecme]une 1 2003 without 1mpact omits, fmancral posmon ot results of operatlons :

' _1'In ]uly 2002 the FASB Jssued SFAS No 146 Acmwztmg far Cort: Am)aated with Esdit or Dzspom/ Aa‘zwtzer (“SFAS No 146”) \Vthh
-addresses-financial accounting and reportlng for costs assoctated mth exit oz disposal activities ‘and- nullifies Emerging Tssues Task -
" Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94—3 Lzabz/zty Rec%mmm far Cermm Eﬂg)/oyee Temzzzzatzan Beizef its and Otber Costs fo Exit an Adtivity (mc/udmo -
rertazn tort: “incurréd i . retz‘mmmng} The provmons of” SFAS No: 146 ate effectlve for exit or dlsposal actmttes that are inigated aftér S
‘ December 31, 2002. At adoptton on januar\ 1, 2003 SFAS No 146 dld not have a stgmﬁcant 1mpact om the Companys consohdated .

.statements of operattons or ﬁnanclal posrtton The Companv does not ha\e any in- process or planned exit or. dlsposal actlwnes ds of

‘May 31, 2004

jIn Nowt ember 2002 the FASB 1ssued Interpretanon No 45, szrafztur: Arcozmz‘mo and Dzr:/orzrre Reqztzremmt.r “for Guarfmfee: (“FIN No

(457 FIN No. 45 fequires a guarantor: to recogmze at the 1ncept10n of 4 ghatantee, a habllm for the fait value of the- obhgatlon it has'’

undertaken in issuing’ the guarantee “The. Compm) must apply FIN No 45 w0 gu'trantees if any, Jssued or modxﬁed after December

: ':31 2002 "FIN No: 45 also requires guarantors to’ ‘disclose certain 1nformanon for' guarantees mcludmg product ‘\VQ.II’lIlDCS outstandmg o ‘

Cat the end of’i interim penods endlng after December 15 2002 At adoption, FINNo. 45:did not have'a slgmﬁcant 1mpact onthe . - "
-Companys consohdated statements of’ operatlons or, ﬁnanc1al posmon The Companv does not have any. matenal \varrantv obhganons . _‘

) "or other guarantees as: of \lav 31, 2004 P v_,_

In Vovember 2002 the’ Emergmg Issues Task Force reached a consensus ‘on Issue No OO 21 (“EITF OO 21”) Rewmze Arrangementr a

) wzz/J Muliple De/zberabtef The Issue addresses certaln aspects of the accounnng for arrangements under Which a vendot will perform--

.multiple’ revenue generatmg dcavities, EITE 00- 21 addresses When a revenue arrangement Wlth mu]nple deliverables should be divided | ..

into. separate units of accounnng and, if separanon is appropnate how: the arrangement conmderanon should: be allocated to the

1dent1ﬁed accounnng umts The Company adopted the. prowslons of EITF 00- 21 effectlve September 1, 2003 wrthout a matenal

o

i Lo o "'_~~

.. See Note l of the consohdated ﬁnanc1al statements for a dlscussxon of SFAS No 148 Amunlzﬂg for 51‘0[/e Barea’ Compemazwﬂ
L Tramztzon and Dzrt/omre - zm amendfmni af FASB S tafemenl l\To 1230 v : S Lo

.t

yoe - Lo e

f
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" The ‘Blo"o‘dii‘ne\Cointinues .‘

. In ]anuary 2003 —the F_ASB 1ssued Interpretatlon No 46 Cam‘o/zdalwn 0f Vamzb/e Im‘erert Entme.r, an Iﬂter pretaizon nf Accozmtmg Rerearcf.l ‘
»_Bt///etm (ARB) No.- 57 (“FIN \Io 46”) FIN No. 46 reqwres certaln varJable 1nterest entities, or VIES to be consohdated by the primary ..
' beneﬁcnry of the’ entrtv if i€ equity 1nvestors in the entity do not. have the characterlstxcs of a conttoﬂmg financidl interest or do not, -

have sufﬁcrent equity at risk for the entrty to. ﬁnance its actlvrtle ,wrthout addmonal subordrnated ﬁnancral support from other parties.
"FIN No: 46 is effecnve for allVIEs created: or acqurred after january 31, 2003 For VIEs created or:acquired pnor to Februarv T (_‘
1, 2003 the prowslons of FIN No 46 must be applxed for the ﬁrst 1nter1m or annua pCllOd begmnjng after March 15, 2004. The

" ‘Company dogs’ not expect that the adoptlon of FIN No 46 wr]l have a materlal rmpact on ifs consohdated statements of operanons or

O

ﬁnancral posmon el e T A

In Aprll 2003 the FASB 1ssued SFAS N 4_ 9 (“SFAS \Io 149”) Amendwentf of S z‘afemem‘ 733 orz Demalzue Iﬁrz‘rmﬂen/r and Hedng{g
Amw/{e.t SEAS No 149 amends and clarlFes fmncral accountmg and reportmg for deriv auve mstruments mcludrng certain - .~ g,
mstruments embedded in othcr contracts and for hedgrng actrvrtres under FASB Statement NO.. 133 Atmzmtma 1g:for Derivative Jmtmmem‘r |

- arm’ HedgzﬂaAr/zwtzer This- statement req ires that contracts with: comparable charactensncs he accounted for similarly. In partlcular e

o

this statement clanﬁes under what. crrcumstances 4 cont jct w1th an initial net mvestment meets the charactensnc of 2, derivative,

o clanf ies when a derrvatxve contarns a ﬂnancmg component amendsvthe deﬁmtlon of an underlyrng hedged rrsk to conform [ hnguage
used in’ FIN \Io 45 and amends' certain other e\rstmg pronouncements THis: statement the promsjons ‘of which are to be apphed '
prospectrvelv lS effective for contracts entered into-of ‘modified after]une 30, 2003 The' adoptlon of SFAS No. 149 on july 1, 2003
7 drd not have a rnaterral rmpact on'the Company ] consohdated statements of operanons or ﬂnancral posmon =

.

In Ma\ 2003 (the F ASB 1ssued SFAS No 150 (“SFAS No 130”) Acmmzz‘zrig for Cm‘am T mazma/ ])zrtr/w/e/iz‘r u/ztb C/Jamn‘mrtm (y" both . N
J_zabz/zlze; aﬂd Eqmg SFAS No. 150 estabhshes standards for how 'ai issuer: ¢ assxﬁes and measures in its statement of financial posmon '

certain Fnancral instraments Wxth charactensncs of: both habﬂmes and equrtv SFAS No 150- requltes that an 1ssuer classify a ﬁnancra_l
rnstrument that is withiri SFAS \‘o 150’ scope as a hablhty (or an asset in some cxrcumstances} because ‘that ﬁnanclal 1nstrument '

4 embodles an obhganon ‘of the issuer, Manv of .those i mstruments were prevrousl) class1ﬁed as equrtv SFAS \Io 150 requn:es an Jssucr
to classrfy the fo]lomng mstruments as hablhnes (or assets in some c1rcumstances) mandatonl\ redeemable ﬁnancxal instruments;’ )
obhgauons to reputchase the issuer’s. equrt\ shares by transfernng assets and certain obhgauons to’ isstie a variable numbet of irs equxtv :
"’shares. SFAS No. 150 s effectxve for all ﬁnancral instruments. entered into or mochﬁed after May 31 2003, and otherwise shall be ‘
effecnve at the begmmng of the ﬁrst interim penod begrnmng after]une 13, 2003. The adoptlon of SFAS No..150, on. September 1;.

3.

< 2003; de not have’ a\materlal eftect on the Compan\ _consohdated statemcnts of! operatlons ‘or ﬁnanc1al posrtron .

3 IR v

' 'Item'.ZA‘: ol Cua"n't.i'ta'ti,\‘/‘e: 'and.,Qu.a‘l'ihta_:tizi\}'e_‘Diseflo‘5ure5’ ':a‘bo"ut* I‘\'/V'Ia'rf‘l‘t“et' Bisk S el

Market R/sk The Compan\ is exposed to vatlous marl\et Tisks nc]udmg changes in forelgn currency exchange rates and mterest .
" rates that. could adverse]y lmpact its results of opetatlons and ﬁnanclal condition: ‘To managt the \'o]atrhty relating to these typical’
busmess e‘tposures ‘the Companv mdy enter. into Yarious derrvatlve transacuons when approprlate The Compan\ does not hold or | -

JSSUC denvatlve msttuments for frading or other speculanve putposes
Im‘erest Raie R/Sk Interest rate swap agreements are’ entcrcd rnto wrth the objecuve of rnanagmg e\posure to “intérest rate changts
The Comp’\nv has entered mto interest rate - swaps to effectlveh convert a portion of vafiable rate, bank debt j into fixed rates.: At May | )
31, 2004 and May 31 003 the Compan\ had an interest rate swap agreement in the Company st functiond] currency; matunng in 2003
wrth an 1n1t1a1 nononal principal amount of $15 0 rnrlhon that amorn7es over the hfe of the mstrument The fair value of the-i mterest
rate swap agreement represents the esnmated recerpts or pay ments that \xould be que to termrnate the: agreement and is included

with other | ong termi hablhnes o the balance sheet r\t Mav{’)l 2004 and (Ma\r 31, 2003 the Compan) \vould ha\e pard $156 965 and -
5422 677, respectlveh to terminate ‘the -agreemént in the Compan\ s functional currency. SeeANote 3 of the consohdated financial
statements., The Company had Sll 5 mJJhon in outstandmg debt at May 31 2004 A 100 basrs pomt ificrease or decrease in 1nterest
rates c0u d decrease or mcrease annual net income b\ %0. 1 mrlhon e .« : o w e :

Fore/gn Currency Operanng income generated out51de the Umted States as a percentage of tota] operaung income was 5% rn
- 2004, 9% i i1 2003 and\

lmpact operatrng results when tr'tns]atlons of the Compa_

%‘ in 2002 Fluctuatlons in forergn exchange rates, pnnclpall\ with the US .dollar versus the Euro, could -

oy

subsrdJarJes fi nancial’ statements are. made rn accordance \wth current

) 'accountmg gurdehnes* It has not been the Compam s practlce 0 acnvelv hedgc its forcrgn subsidiaries’ assets Or habxhnes denommated

in local curfency. Most of thc forergn cutrency. e)\posures are managed loca]ly by the Companys forergn subsdeanes through the .

hedgmg of purchase comrnrtments with the advance purchase of the reqmred non;: functlonal currencjes. Howe\ er, the Companv

_ believes that ‘over time \xeaknesses in ofie parncular currency ate offset by strengths in others In 2004, 2003 and 2002 the. Company‘f
' f\recorded forergn currency transacnon gams (losses) of apprommateh 3491 ,000, 3697 OOO and $(443 OOO) tespecnv ly. . “For. ﬁscal 2004
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the ﬂuctuanon of the Euro welghted average exchange ate 1ncreased net sales by approumatelv $4 3 m1lhon A ten percent change in
the veftr to-date welghted average Euro e\change rate Would have had the effect of mcreasmg or decreasmg net sales by approxlmately
$30nuulon_" - : : : :
Effectxve Januarv 1, 2001 the Companv adopted SFAS No 133 Am)mztz;gg jor Dmuatwe Ifz;tmmenf: and Hedgzng Admtze; SFAS No.
133 requlres the Compa.ny fo recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet ‘at:fait value, ‘For denvatlves deslgnated 4s hedges the ‘
change i the fair value of the. denvanve wrll either be. offset. agalnst the change in the Fair value of the hedged asset llablhtv or ﬁ_c‘m

) commltment through éarnings’ or recogmzed in other comprehenslve 1ncome untll the hedged 1tem is recogmzed in earmngs The ‘
' T meffecme portlon of a. denvatlve s change in fair' Value will be 1mmed1ately recogmzed in earrnngs The cumulatlve éffectof the
. adoptlon of SFAS No. 133 on ]une 1, 2001 resulted ifi'a comptehenswe loss for nscal 2002 (a component of Shareholders Equltv on
the balance sheet) of approxlmately $lO3 000 net of S26 000 in-income, raxes, relatmg to the interest rate swap dgreements. . Smce the .
swap agreement related to the Canadlan line of credlt matured in- December 2001, an ad]ustment of approxlmatelv $15,000 was made
o X to comprehenswe loss’ and teclassified to earnings a as interest expense in ﬁscal 2002 Due to the inéffectiveness of the swap related to",
‘the. US loan approxmately 820, 500 and $20 500 Was reclass1ﬁed from comprehenslve loss to earmngs as 1nterest expense | for the vears
ended Ma; 31, 2004 and 2003, respecnvely The remaln.mg balance of approxlmately $31, OOO WLll be amornzed through December
2005 Apprommately '$266,000 and $53 000 were charged dlrectlv to 1nterest e*{pense for the years ended Mav 31 2004 and 2003 .

TR - PR B . . ‘ .

respecnvely See Note 3 of the consohdatecl ﬁnancml statements R

L O ;I’t.‘e m 6.1 Fi nanc |alStatements andSuppIementary Data S

- '.‘\Thé“follo\‘i'irl;g consoljdated‘ﬁnancilal-s‘télt:ementsl?df;the"Cornpah}",‘nrer’included‘lnnder thjs}ite‘rn:_ |
N ‘Report of Independent Reg1stered Pubhc Accounnng E1rrn o

: ‘-Consohdated Balance Sheets May 31, ‘2004 and 2003 o 7_" '

{e

fi-Consohdated Statements of Operanons for the Years Ended May 31 2004 2003 and 2002 X L l
. '-Consohdated Statements of Shareholders Equltv for the Years Ended \lav 31 2004 2003 and 2002
-Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended Maj 31 2004 2003 and 2002 "

. -Nvotestto Consoh'dated. Emanclaletatements L
L v . r‘_“-'» W - .

Lt

"' Consolidated Financial Stateimeric Schiedule
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i

-To Boa_td of Dlrectors and Shareholders
Immucor lnc 5 e ‘

R L We have aucllted the accompanvmg consohdated balance sheets of Imrnucor Inc; (the “Compan) ) as of \la\ 31 2004 and 2003 and T
’ the related eonsohdated statements of operatlons shareholders eqmtv and cash flows. for’each of- the three years in the penod ended R
Mav 3, 2004 -Qur audlts also-mcluded the financial statement schedule hsted in the lnde*( 1t Item 15(3) These fnancra] statements ;

and schedule are the respons1h1hty of the Companyis

mmagement "Our. respon51b1htv IS¢ .

free of materml m1sstatement An audlt mcludes e\ammmg, on a test basls ewdence suppor ng the amounts and dJsclosures m the'

ﬁnancral statements An audlt also mcludes assessmg the accountlng prmcrples used and srgmﬁcant estlmates made by management as”

In our opmxon the consohdated ﬂnancml statements referred to abo -‘ present falrlv i ql.l materlal respects the eonsohdated ﬁnanaal
RO posmon of Immucor Inc as of May 31, 201)4 and 2003 and. e, conso lidated resu.lts of i its operatlons and its eash flows for tach

-of the three \ears in the perlod ended Ma} 31 2004 m conforrmt\ w1th US: generallv accepted accountmg prmclples Also, in our
opmlon the related ﬁnanual statement schedule \Vhen eonsidered in relatlon to, the basm ﬁnanc1al statements taken asa whole »
presents farrl} inall materlal respects the mformanon set, forth therem ’ PR

-

_AS dJscussed in Note 1 of the Notes to t_he Consohdated Fmancml Statements the Compan\ adopted Statement of Fmancml R ‘. . :
: Accountmg ‘Standards’ No. 133' Ammzz‘mg for Derwatzbe Irz:fruwenft aﬂd Hea’vmg Aclwzfzer 1n 2002 and Statement of Fmancxal Account_mg e
W Standards No 142 Gaodwz// and Ot/JerI/:targngfle A.f!efj in 2003 o - e '

Adanta Georgta
Juy 30,2004 -
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’IMMUCOR INC AND SUBS!DIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

" May 31,

‘ "AS,SET"S : S N n g T o004 -.:*2‘00'3‘5
CURRENTASSE:IS T e U R RS
. “Cash and cash equlvalents . ST T S R I AN S $ 15,697,082 . $ - 11,183,317
", Accounts receivable, trade (less allowance for doubtful accounts of R LT PP

$1,330:305 in 2004 and S1,678,361 n 2003).  © - Tt 26533796 o 25693973

Otherrecewables s ST R T 1‘235 748 - 2,253,206‘
. Inventories’ .. - o 20160858 16921216

" Income taxesreceivable - oo T Ul UL e o L102198 1024429
© Deférred income, faxes | dhe Ceoooleiele T 1545493 0 2,705,281

B ;g.Prcp»ald expenses and othe,I e o - 2 347 ‘906 .’ LT 2,100,890.
‘.Tctai-cc!r‘rent“ aé’ssccsi . R : A‘< " ‘ 68 623 081_ ?. o 61,882,3 12
LONG TERM INVESTMENT e S . | | | 770 ooo.'~ o 770,000 |
~PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Net' : ;',‘.ﬂ‘vi “ .22,_84‘6_,358. . 21051235 _
DEFERRED INCOMETAXES '_ A‘ 504908 o 747089 ”
OTHERASSETS Net | : 1029752 1765376
DEFERRED LICENSING COSTS th 12255301377946

o CUSTOMERLIST Net! 7 '; ‘:_;i __'f; R ,' 1225 000;' 1310000

EXCESS OF COST OVERNETTANGIBLEASSETSACQUIRED Net 28192198 27,982,234

2s 12‘4‘,4’16,82‘7 s 116:886,192 -

i
'
R
t

‘See notes to consolidated financial stateménts. 7. L T e T T T e T e R
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IMMUCOR INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Bl»eod]‘ine'Cq_nr‘inu‘es' :

"CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (contlnued)

ki

P

S R

May31,

ﬂu'AjBJL’IT‘rEs’A'ND{éHZ\'REHo_LD_E.“R's.’f EQUITY. " T a00s

¥

- CURRENT LIABILITIES

: .Current portlon of borrowmgs under bank lme of credlt agreements L $ 146 765“ y

”-’Current portlon of long term debt

-

Accrued salanes and’ wages St

- ,Deferred mcome taxes . 439 271

o o NPRA T 15043450_
~ Current portion ofcapltal lease obhgatrons RO R e, 652,363
4_‘Accountspayable s T e Rt }';38116645 o
‘ 'Income taxes payable 205 A95.
' S T T T 1574758,

2003

LU871,930,521
5,047,195 %
931,934
7,949,590

1,364 426
464, 469

. Other accrued hablhtres L ‘4 183, 648

o -;"L,Tot'a'l Current Iiabiliti‘es"_] o -

: .‘ ‘BORROWINGS UNDER BANK LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENTS Net of

L currentportron T T TR R e L e 146,610

"'LONG TERM DEBT Net ofcurlent portlon _:'i"‘;,f'; S T 6121750

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS Net

o '*DEFERRED INCOME TAXES SR T T 6343
OTHER LIABILITIES ' S T T s

* COMMITMENTS AND CONTTNGENCIES D N S S I

[

- SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock authorlzed 45 000 000 shares $O 10 par Value 1ssued and

- ourstanding 30, 176, 345 at May 31 2004 and 28,947, 251 at May 31 2003 - 3,017,634
'-Addmonal pald n capltal 3 e _; S : ‘ '3."4”3‘07 5.59"‘

ey,

: ::‘Accumu]ated other comprehenswe loss e . P - (328 146)

20 362 395 Y

currentportlon ‘_".947‘,\577-

3 23441.3_"
21,010,635 0

[P

- ,:'l‘1l4~1';43‘1"{'
" .‘ 1:7,1‘3“3:,'4'7‘7 ) |
”956,5'2"9:‘

1,032,440

Camoams’
R Is6719
43426295

(782,262) -

73695477

Toal sharehéIders"‘.equity‘ B S AR B {',92 953,009 .-

AR s 124416827

'$ 116,886,192

PR T T
i, )
. p

See notes to consolidated financial statements. -

- 88,087 1 .
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CINEBTSATES [T e S e dissnors
CCOSTOFSALES: . § . - = o i et 750368849

‘ -‘G,Ro's‘s PROFIT: o ea1s0.067

.'»IMMUCOR INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

:"ACONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended May : 31

e e T 00

AU 2003

} '2002 .

3 ,"OPERATNG EXPENSES: o o oA

‘iINCOME‘FﬁOM:_OPE_RATAIOi\IS W afea0te e

-T-I.OTHER S o o
Interebtmcome“ R R A‘ . B 41 039' FE

X ,Research and development e w0 73749.158 /,
= . Selling and marlxetmg ) - - ‘\. o e "" T 1@2@)3;274 L
‘ ':'Dlsmbuuon L S : o 8,(467“,5845 h ‘

i General and admmlstramve L ] SeL 11,69,.7,4;13 B L

.‘ . ‘$.~98"6,4.7,79‘4 - ‘,‘1 e .~
242,790,100

35857694

72,051,055,

L 1133808386

o 6972373-

. 10353 8247
368,374

) $84472180

37 477 187 R

.

46,,994,99_3 R

1996742
12,453906,

- 6,609,461
-9, 273 176”

2 ,1 620935

. Amornzanon e\pense Lol 369,361

S T a0 asT0st

'

- (881, 527}

Interest expensé-

158,318

' '33,554,012{/ '

22303682

LUizess
(2,406,370) . .

931,954220 . -

i
£ (4,433,802) -
1356143 -

Other (expense) mcome et . B a (597,959

(1 438 447)

" INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES . = .~ .3 263 569

. VI’QCO\{EPERSHARE RIS

Per common share " R o fA B R ‘ ‘50.42-

cowE Taxes

. Vs o s Lo . " RN P,

L2,121214).

| "-.'}«20',182‘,4_68 L

L (3056959) "

B L :CX: P

o 7,725,763

;-

', s o

/

914569757

- 3188904 .

- g'8704010- 0

INETINCOME = 0 e T 610537 606

S0

5036

Pet common share—assummg dﬂumon T IR R $0.40' S o

P

1 . c
W e N
s L
y N o0
s p
- J". . )
: .
2 h
“See notes to consolidated financial statements -
; .

a
:
4
T
o
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8047

5034



r : The'B]o.ofdliﬁe‘;_Co-nfin-Llés’ ;
IMMUCOR INC AN' SUBSlD AR S
Accumulated | S
N B R o Addmona] . Other . Total
.. Commnion Stock- ‘v Paid jn . Comphtchcnswe . Shareholders
"' Shares, ... Amoudt Loss “Equiy
- BAEANCE, MAY 31,2001 . ¢+ S (6385.812) ¢ $29,843.467. .
- Exercise-of. :toc}\ optlons afid warrants 3 326, 769 - 13,470,591
_4,‘4 T’(L\ beneﬁt: rdared o stock opuons and othc ._'. ' - NRTER 7' ° 632 792 ‘ - o --)6.5'2,79_2",
Comprehemwe mcomc H ‘ R : . :
Torelgn currency tmn:lanon qdmstment ‘e 1,426.3‘,(‘)’26. .,1“,263}026
[ Cumulamve ctfcct of the’ adopnon ofy e »
SD\S 133 on]une 1, 2001 net of m\cs - (102,721) - (102 72’1)
Hcdge 1059 reclasslﬁcd mto uammgs . .. 30,809« 1 . 30 809 '
Lo Uil Netmcomu ‘j’_" P S *.=.8794910 -
- :’- . jToml comprehcml\e mcomé A . 0 986 024 3
‘ BA‘;ANCE,J\MY% 2002 e 26,000,18_0f“ ' (5,394.698) - 43 952 874
: ‘\e:cﬁe of stock opuons and warmnts e 3 7 034 523 - : 7,329,229[ B

o Ta.\ beriefits related to <tock optlons and other

v Comprchmswe 1nc0me i

Fozexgn currch\ tmﬂslauon ad;mtmcm

Hedge loss reclas<|ﬁcd mto eqmmgs S

T Netmcome‘ !

. K .‘

X Toml comprehcnsxw mcome o

3431 181 .

[l

" 4591388

. 20,548

Tausgel -t

'

“4501,888
20,548

Y 14369757
18932193'17"'

R "BALANCE MAY 31,2003 . 2894725 . ‘28156719

Jeor Tt ,-wr
PR N RE

. J:,\erqse of stock opuons and warrants ; :
. Ta\ bcneﬁts related to stocl\ opnons and other‘ o AT 53,581,809:

’ Cash pald for: r:acnonal <hqrc< from stock Spht

B
1

. Comp:ehensne mcome
.

Fﬂrexgn currencv Lr'm slauon qd]ustment

Hedge oss reclassmcd mto earmngs

e Net income’

" 2569031 -

433,568
o 20548

C782262)

3695477

v

2,692,145

1 381809

L B254) ¢
433568 -
20548

T 129919207

: . ~’Total comprehenmn mcome i -
S BALANCE, MAY 31, 2004 * - '$73017,634 7. .S 34,307,559 . $35,956,
* . ﬁ'
A.<f . !
: oo s - 2y . }
N ‘. e N ! k e v '
’ Scé notes to consolidated financial statements ' :
i < : b g .

|5 (328,140 >

$92953,009

12,537,806
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‘ ¢MMUCOR

INC ANDSUBSWHAWES

stCONSOUDATEDSTATEMENTS(DFCASHFLOWS e

’

OPERATIN G ACTIV ITIES

\Tet mcorne

' Ad]ustments to reconcﬂe net mcome to net cash
prowded by operatmg activities: :

Deprecmmon and: amornzatton of’ propertv and. equtpment S

o _Amorttzauon of: other assets and excess of cost over net

C Dls_posal of :assets in settlement
- Impairment of fixed'assets -

- 'Impairment of longitermjnvestmem

tanglble assets acqutred

" Deferred tax prov151on

- Prov1sxon for doubtful accounts

o Changes in operatmg assers and habﬂmes:.' '

Accounts recenable trade IR

: Load to ofﬁcer

Cash pfovided by opetéting 'aéti‘vities"

“Income taxes -

Inventories =~

Other receivables | ..

-Other current assets

" Other ldng term‘ass'ets X
‘ .Accounts pay’ able .
Other cufrent hftb!hues ‘

‘Other long term hablhues

* Total ad)ustments

\

- INVhSTING ACTIVITIES

".Cash useéd in investing activities :

Purchases of / dep051ts on propertv and eqmpment R

PP

: Amorttzatlon of debt issue costs

Loss on debt ret]ternents .

See notes to consolidated financial statements.- Ca

W

]

- ‘_‘-Y{ea'r Extded May"Sl‘,

e 1199353‘ .
c 206223

2004
" $12,537.806 -

6,014,044

S369361
- 245971
924,344

' -'(491’,'655)’ 4

102,799,701
" (3322,351).

1,072,069

o402
L (507754)
160,504 -
1,054,774

" 76,020

2003

A

14,369,757
5255526

449817
230,000
- (601,092)
. 641, 996

3T'4'2i;)56,1‘54 .
s, 311)"
‘ ','(2 132,654
(1,785 881)
©35.037)
72,656
"' 143,435

505,393

368374

o631
549,459 -

- 2002

$8,794.910
4,494,661

1620935
620857

806,108
268,539,
(530,583) .
_319,167"

(o 995 826)7

395, 826
3, 605 083

111603 L

1 : (23'8;671) :
- (594,604)
(285,404

. (302,295)

" 104122,696

" 5924060

4,294,855 -

22,660,502 ..

o

20293817

13089765 -

L @a06490)

" 7,106,490)

(5234192

A1)

(3367,016)

@706
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IMMUCOR INC AND SUBSIDIARTES:,f

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Contlnued)

» - ‘.' Ciy ' Yea.r EndedMay3l ) N
' = 2004 L2003 - .. - 2002

LA AU P K . o Ll

FINAVCING ACTIVITIES : ;;‘;," T "'v.“. e L

Borrowmgs net of repayments under lme of credlt agreements ey ) P $ "3 69 940 ‘ $(3,35],S34) . 3 _(496;403) "
e 12,000,000, BEEE R

B RO \.(26,472,‘8,7_4)5;f';“,' (1,578290) .+ (10,978,379)

Borrowmgs net of repa\ments of long term debt to rclated partv '-; o L" ‘ : ‘l . S o '(349:654?

e 32991]6 LTRES001 L L 2,816,097
(8254)“,/.. .
(1:3 080) L a0sogon | (763869

: Borrowmgs of long term debt

’ Repavments of long term debt md mpltal lease

) "Proceeds from e\erclse of stock optlons and walrants

“ .Pavmenc of cash dlvxdends

Lo

,‘Payment of debt issue costs o

e ' ' 3 (11265152) L gotas2y. L O772201)

T Cash used in ﬁnancmg actwmes o .' AR

- TEFFECT or EkCPb&‘\JGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH, R 3005 T 25,955 937,495

_I\ICREASE N CASH A\TD CASH EQUIVALFNTS ::;f,"{ Sl giasiages) 70757 T 888,043,

CASHAND CASH FQUIVALEVIS Cor Ceo e
: 111833170 - 4012560 . 3,124,517

AT BEGINNI\TG OF YEAR

. CASH AND CASH EQUNALENTS e T e e
ATEND,OFYEAR ST T 815697082 0 (S14,183317 - 8 4012560 - RS

i
: \]on cash mvestmg and ﬁnancmg acmvmes

. L - L . e ot

S s 9sgsar o % 695357 8. 419811

Capjml lease obhgauons -

o CASH P]\ID DURIVG THE YLAR FOR : R SR R '
. lnterest " : S 1 368 237 L 082525472 0 - $ 3 397 409 .
Income taxes, e ’ 4 655, 913" R '6,950,840 o 663 252._.
‘See notes toycoﬂsohdated financial s‘iaiéments. ) £
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"“VII\/II\/IUCOR INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

-':_tNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

: been ehmmated in consohdanon

: w}'stockopuongtants i 3 . j_. RO

to stock based emplovee compensatlon

I supphers are excellent

I

1 NATURE OF BUSINESS’AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES e

Nature Of BUSII’IeSS ~The Cornpanys pnnc1pal busmess actlvmes are the development manufacture and: marLetmg of

e 1mmunolog1cal dlagnosnc medlcal products The Companv operates fac1l.1txes i North Amenca and Europe ’

COI’ISO//O’&Z’IOH PO/ICy The consohdated‘ ﬁnanclal statements rnclude the acc0unts ot the Companv and its whollv owned

B substhanes (see Note 14.of the: consohdated ﬁnancml statements) All s1gn1ﬁcant 1nter compan; balances and transacnons have

e

n

Use Of Est/mates The preparatron of ﬁnanctal statements in conformm \Vltl’l US oenetalls accepted accountmg prrnclples

. reqmres management to make estimates and. assurnptions that 1ft'ect the~ amounts reported in the ﬁnanclal statements and

accompan\mg notes; Actual results could differ from those estimates.”

r. . . FE BN - . PO N . -

o . R éc/as’s/ﬁcat/’ons — Cert'ain'prior' \rea‘r balance(s hax're' beén reclassiﬁed to confo'rmto the current Ve"ar presehtatiOn.’ ’

',Stock Based Compensatlon The Compam grants stock opuons for a ﬁxed number of shqres to emplo;ees w1th an exercise
Ry . price equal to the falr value of theshares at “the-date of the grant The Compam accounts for. stock optlon gtants i accordance
- with APB Opmxon No: 23 Acmszmo forjiaoé [:fzzed fo Emp/@eer and accordrngl\r does not recogmze compensatlon e\pense for the e

I fIn December 2002 the FASB issued SFAS No 148 Ammtzﬂg ﬁ)r 510f/e Baxea’ Com pen.ratzoﬂ - Tramztzw/ am{ Dm/omre —an amendmem‘

s of FASB S tatemmt N 123, This Statement prowdes alternanve methods of: transmon for a xoluntarv change to the faJr value based
. method of accountmg for stock based emplovee compensauon In‘addition, thJs Statement amends the dxsclosure reqmrements of ‘- T
Statement 123t0 reqture promment d1sclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounnng .
: ‘.for stock: based emplovee compensauon and the effect of ‘the method used on reported resuls. The followlng wable Lllustrates the::
- effect on net incomé and eammgs per share-as 1f the Companv had apphed the fatr Value recognmon prov1slons of SFAS Vo 123

. . . s " . . . .
<, . ' - ; . e
R N

For the  year ended May 31
- 2004 LN 2003 2002
" Net'incore as reported o 312 537 806 w $14 369 757;' ,_38,«7-94,\9;10 R
Deduct total’ stock-based. t:mplovee compensanon expense determmed & ) Ce TR
undér fair value based methods for all a’wards et of ta\es Lo o ,1‘,1,1 l‘,14‘2; 1‘317 804‘,;. 1,014,068 -
- Pro-forma netincome. | 7. T T USTIA26,664 - 513 051 953[ eT 780842
- Earmngs pét share as reported ' IR T T e
. Per common share s ) 9042 s f$0 51‘ ..o 8036
Per common share—assumtng dtlunon L : '$0.40 7 Ce L8047 o0 L8034 0
+ Pro forma earmngsper share .:' TP A (‘: R A S
' Per ¢ommion share : o © 80390 L 8046, 0 5032
" Per ¢ommon’ share—assummg dtlutron . ’ $0 36 o . W $0 43 - '_*‘ " :’ .SO 30 .

; Concentrat/on of Cfedlt Hlsk At Ma} 31 2004 and 2003 the Companvs entlre cash balance of 815, 697 082 md $11 183 317 ‘
:‘respechvel\f W’IS s.on deposlt w1th thh quahty ﬁnanc1al mstltutlons located pnmarllv i the UsS. and Italy ' :

’ z’_The Compmv obtmns raw materlals from numerous outs1de supphers ‘The Companv is fiot dependent on any smgle suppher
“.‘other than certairi mstrumentat_lon manufacturers (se¢ Note 1 of the consohdated ﬁnanmal statements) and the joint manufacturer ;
R

. of some, of the Companys monoclonal anubody—based products The Compan) bel_le\ es’ that 1ts busmess relanonshlps Wlth 1ts ‘ _‘,~ o

P e

' Certa_m of the” Compftnvs products are denved from blood hav1ng parncular of rare combmanons of anubodles ot. anngens that j IR
- are found'in a hmlted nimiber of. mdmduals The Company to date "has, not e\penenced anv rnajor dltﬁculty in obtatnmg sufﬁcxent ..
: 'qu'mtmes of such blood for use in- manufactunng its products but there can be.t no assurance that the Compam w1ll al\xays have

O
\

o atallable to 1tasufﬁc1ent supply of such blood e T e /' T P

ey,
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“The Bloodline. Contin ues

for doubtful accounts is evaluated The Companv generallv does not quulIC co]lateral from its- customets For certam cusromers
who rouunel tal\e longer t_han oné vear to pav the Companv d.ls ounts these recelvables uslng;a‘4% effectJve 1nterest fate over the .

levels stafﬁng levels and costs’ of operanon based on the e\peuence and ]udgment of mamgement Actual costs and ptoducnon S

levels may vary, from the standard and are charged to the conso 1dated statements of operanons as a component of cost of - sales
: 8 1 Smce us. generall\r accepted accounnng prmclples Téquire that the standard cost approumate actual cost penodlc ad]ustments ate "

) necessarv ‘The provxslon for obsolete 1m entorv is rev 1ewed on a quarterly basig T All ﬁnlshed good reagent products with less than . 7 . 7.7
e six months clattng are wntten down to 7ero Anv raw 1ntermed1ate or ftmshed product that has been quarantmed because it has

S failed quahtv control needs 16 be rewotked or is past its e\plranon date is writterd Off. Should the product be successfully reworked

’ and pass-final’ quahtv conttol checks it is then re- valued atits staidardicost. Obsolete and quatanttned Jnventory is physmall\' e

-and destroyed accordlng o regulatorv and ﬁscal gwdelmes No materlal changes
haxe been made to; the 1nventorv pOl.lCV durlng fscal 2004; 2003 of 2002 ‘

o segregated from useable and saleable mvento,

ountet part\ credlt guldelmes and onlv enters mto transactlons w1th flnanmal mstltuttons of 1nvestment grade or better Asa result

the Companv esnmates the nsk of < counter—pqrtv default to be mlnlmal Effccnve]une l V 001 the Companv adopted Statement of

T the Company to recogmze all derlvames on, the balance sheet at- ffut value based on dealer quotes For den\atlves desxgnated as’

hedges the» change in the f'ur Value of the derlvatlve wrll clther be offset agamst the change in the fa.lr value of the, hedged asset;’

o Ny

\ -
m earnmgs The Jneffectlve portlon as determmed bv companng thc termis of the 1nterest rate swap aoreements and their®. <«

dcsrgnatecl debt mstrurnents of a denvatlve s change 1n faJr value \Xlll be JmmedJatelv recogmzed in eammgs Prior to the adoptlon

-

N ‘, Fa/r Va/ue of F/nanCIa/ /nstruments - The carrwng amounts reported in the: consolldated balance sheets for cash and cash ‘
’ ' equ.lvalents accounts recelvable long—term investment and accounts payable apprommate their fair values: The:fair values of the Sl

Cornpanys long terrn debt approumate the reported amounts id the accompanvrng consohdated balance sheets as their i Lnterest

~ . CRSN . N

rates approxlmate the Mav 31 2004 and 2003 market rates for s1m1lar debt i 1nstruments

e f Property P/ant and Equ;pment - Property, plant and equlpment is stated ar cost less accumulated depreclanon E\pendjtutes R
e for replacements aré capltallzed and the replaced 1tems afe; ret_tred Normal maJntenance and repzurs are charged to operanons IR
) \/Ia,or mamtenance and repatr actmnes th'lt 51gn1f1cantl\ ’nhance the useful life of the asset are. caplta.hzed Gams and iosses from :

PR _thé sale. of plant assets are'mcluded 1n mcome Depreclatxon is' computed using the stralght Zirie method over the esnmated lives
R of the related assets rangmg from three to 30 Vears Certam 1nternal and e\ternal costs mcurred in ‘the development of computer ’ PR
3 software tor mternal use are capltalwed and mclucled 1n propertv plant and eqmpment In, accordance \Vlth Statement of Posmon 98—
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o EXCGSS of COST Over Net ASSG[S Acqwred Excess of ¢ost over net assets acqulred compnses the cost of purchased
. businesses in excess of values ass1gned 0 net tangible assets recewed and was being amoruzed using the’ straight- hne method over

20 t0 30 years. Accumulated 4mortization at May 31, 2004 and 2003 was $7,255,000 and 37 463,000 respecnvely Effectl\ejune 1,

' :2002 "the: Companv adopted SFAS No. 142 Gaaa’wz/[ am{ Oz/m Iﬂtaﬂgzb/e A.r:et.r Under Statement 142 good\vxll and lndeﬁmte hved .
) mtanglble assets are.no longer amortlzed but are rewewed annuallv for 1mpa1rment or more frequentlv if i 1rnpa1rment indicators

“arise.’ lntang1ble assets that have finite hves are contlnumg to be amortlzed ovet then‘ useful lives: The Compan\ beheves that the’ )

carrung value of the- recorded long lived assets is not 1mpa1red Voo e EER U

Long Term /nvestment and Other Long L/ved Assets The long-term investment, represenr_mg an 1n1nal Sl O million +

. commion stock i investmént in Llonheart Technologies, Inc; acqulred in April 1992, is accounted for using the.cost method of

‘LlonheartTechnologles Inc. .o e e LTI T e A -

,‘accounung Bio-Tek Instruments Inc. (see \lote ll of the consohdated financial statements) saw hollv owned subsrdrary of

,

- . . ot

‘The Companv evaluates long _lived assets: for 1mpalrment \vhen events and clrcumstances 1nd1cate that the assets mxght be 1mpalred

and records’an Impalrment loss if the undiscounted’ cash ﬂows esumated ‘0 begenetated b\ those assets are less than'the carrying

amdunt of those assets.” The i 1mpa1rment loss recogmzed is. equal to, the dlfterence betw een the undlscounted cash flows dnd the

' carrying amount of:thé assets.  In fiscal 2003 the Company evaluated the carrw_ng value of the long term inv estment in- Lionkeart.
- Technologles and esnmated that the undlscounted cash flows indicated impairment.’ An i 1mpa1rment loss of 3730 000w as charged
' ‘to other e\pense on the consohdated statement of operations. In fiscal 2002, the Companv evaluated the -carrying value of the’

DIAS Plus instruments inicluded in property, plant and equlpment and estlmated that the undlscounted cash flows’ indicated an

‘other than- temporarv impairment. An 1mpa1rment loss of approxlmatelv $270,000 was charged to cost of sales on the consohdated‘

..stafement of .operations: The settlement of ‘a contractual d1spute with Becton chkmson resulted in 1mpa1rrnent in asset value of

‘ ,'appro*nmatel\ $0.8 mxlhon related to IVIAGV 4nd was, netted agalnst the settlement from Becton along with, $51 OOO in instrument

‘ ﬂnanclng settlement fees i other income ‘on the consohdated statement of operanons fon ﬁscal 2002

Deferred COSI‘S - Deferred llcensmg costs pnmarilv consmt of distribution rlghts for the Company’s complete line of reagents
- purchased from its Canadlan dJstrlbutor Immicor Canada Inc ;on September 1, 1998, and aze belng amortu:ed using the straxoht—
- line method over: ten 'vears: The remalnmg balance i is ateributed to license. feés for cell lines acqulred insthe purchase of Gamma
BlO logicals, Inc. (‘ Gamma N Once a product is developed from: a cell hne the related license feeis amortxzed over, the term.of the "

. respectlve agreement generallv five years: Accumnulated’ amornzanon related ‘to deferred hcensmo costs at \Ia\ 3l 2004 and 2003

- were S1. Smrlllon and $1. 2m1lhon respectlvel) PO : o R ST TE N " N

B . . «
N

'Costs and fees assoclated \wth the Companvs bank line of credlt agreements and debt obhgatlons ate. 1nduded i other assets in.

v the accompanying’ ‘consolidated balance sheets and are amornzed over the term- of the’ related debt acrreements Dunng fiscal 2002,

) -the Compan\ mcurred $930 000 i in deterred nnancmg costs assoc1ated \xlth obtammg a Walver to, certaln ‘loan - covenant wolatxons IR
D las of May 31, ZOOl ‘In the third quarter of fiscal 2004 the Compan\ wrote off 4924, 000 in unamornzed deférred ﬁnancmo costs tTe
2 a result. of .the repayment and cangellation of the assoc!ated debt. Durlng the last: “half of ﬁscal 2004 an addmonal $132,000-

“in deferred ﬁnancmg costs wete recorded assomated Wltl'l the Compam s new credit facility Wlth SunTrust Bank (see Note 3 of L
“the consolidated financial statements) Total net deferred loan costs as of 1 May: 31, 2004 and 2003 were approxlmatelv $0. 1 mllhon

K years ended \Ia\ 31 2004 2003 and 2002 respectrvelv " T

'_'and $1.2 million, respectlvelv Amortxzatxon of these deferred ﬁnancmg costs. is mcluded irl inrerest expense in the consohdated
b statements of operanons Amornzanon related to deferred costs totaled rappro‘nmatelt 5246 OOO S450 OOO and 35621 OOO for the

.

i - [ Vol

_Foreign: Currency Trans/at O/’) The ﬂnanc1al statements of forelgn sub51d1anes have been transl’tted into, US dollars in
, accordance \Vltl’l SFAS No. 52 » Foreign Curreﬂry Tram/zzfzon All'bajance sheet accounts Rave been translated using the’ e\change

Lo rates m effect at the balance sheet dates. lncome statement amounts hqve béen translated i usmg the' average e\change rates for

B each year. The garns ‘and losses resultlng from the changes 1n e\change rates from year to year have been reported separatelv as -

‘a component of comprehenswe 1ncome The effect of - foreign currency transaction gairis, and. losses has been tecorded in the

B accompanying statements of operanons In 2004 2003 and 2002 the Compan\ ‘recorded fore.lgn currency transaction gams (losses)

of apprommatelv $491 000, $697 000, and $(445 000y, respect_tvelt For ﬁscal 2004 the fluctuation of the Eurome]ghted avi erage g
T e\change rate 1ncreased net sales bv apprommatelv $4 3. mllllon A ten percent change in the: \ear-to date Wemhted average Eu.ro '
e\change mte Would have had the effect of 1ncreas1ng or decreasrng net sales bv approxlmatelv $3 0 mllllon

I

) Hevenue Recogn/t/on The Companv recognues revenue When the followmg four baslc crltena have been met:. (l) petsuaswe k

e\ 1dence of an arrangement exists; (2) dellvery has occurred ot serwces rendered (3) the fee is ﬁxed and determmable and (4)

. collectlEnlJtv is reasonably assured Should changes n condlttons cause management for determ]ne these cntena are ‘not’ met for a

e

NN
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-‘certam future transacnons revenue recogmzed for anv reportmg penod could be- ad\ ersely. aftected Revenue from the sale of the -

Companv’s reagents m the U S marl\et 15, recogmzed upon sh]pment W ben both tite 'md risk, of 1dss transfers to the customer upon

v shlpment Revenue from the sale of the Companv S reagents in the e\port marl\et is recogruzed FOB customs dearance when

" stock sphts See Note 7 of the consohdated ﬁnancral statements S -

.. both title and rlsk of loss transfers to the custorher, Rex eflug from the sale of the Compam s medjcal mstruments is recogm?ed
"upon shlpment and completlon of" contractual obhganons relatlng to tramlng and/or mstallanon based on terms of the, related
agreements Revenue from rentals of. the Companvs medlcal instruments 1s recogmzed ovcr the life of the rental agreement O

Instrument ser\qce contract revenue is recocrnued over the hfe of the contract T ey

. 1n some sltuatlons tbe Compan\x sells an mstrument 0 a tlnrd partv leasmg comp’nn\'\wtbout recourse and recelves Fuill cash
payment for thc lnstrument upon recexpt of the’ ultlmate custother’s signied ‘delive ery. and ¢ 1cceptance ln certaln l.lmlt(:d 51tuat10ns
1nvolv1ng thlrd part\ lease arrangements the Compan) enters into'a repurcbase agrecment Whereb\ 1f theé ultimate customer

termmates thie lease; the Company qgrees to repurchas the mstrument for'an amount equal to: «thie?” remalnmg unpaJd lease pavments

owed to,the? th_trd par_t) leasmg companv In these hrmted srtuat]ons the Companv defers the révenue related to'the szle along

w1th correspondlng d!rect and mcremental cost of sales and subsequentl\r recogmzes thc revcnue over the lease term as. the lease |

. . 3 : v‘_>k . ey %

payments ate made to the thxrd partv leasmg comp'znv zmd 1t is clear that the ulutnate customcr has not terrmnatcd the re ated leqse '

The Companv adopted Emergmg Issues qul\ Force ("EITF”) Issue \lo OO 21; A:mzm/zﬂg fw Reven/te Arraﬂgemwzf: with 1\411/17})/3
De/wem/;/m, tor agreements entered 1nto begmnmg in the second quarter of” ﬁscal )ear 2004 . The Companys medical instrament .
“sales contracts in¥olve: rnultxp e dell\ erables 1nclud1ng thc sale'or rental’ of an, 1nstrurnent (mcludlng training and mstalht]on) the
subsequent serv 1cmg of- the'i mstrument clunng the ﬁrst vear and reagent products prOVJded to-the’ customer dunng the validation
penod The'portion of the i 1nst1ument sales pnce apphcable to “the instrament itself. (mcludmg trmnmg and 1nstallat10n) which is
determmed based on: falr va lue 1s recogmzed upon slupment and completlon of- contractual obhganons relanng o trammg and/or |
mstallanon based on the terms of  the’ rehted agreement, - “The pornon of the sales pnce apphcable to reagent products, prO\vlded to:
the ¢ customer durmg the Vahdanon penod basecl on faix value, are recogm7ed when tbe instrument Jtself is recognjzed ‘as generall)

- such’ recognmon occurs when the vahdanon perlod is cornpleted The poruon of tbe sales pnce apphcable to ser\ncrng the
instrument dunng the first year, based of) fair value, is deferred and recogmzed over— tbe firstyear. of 'the contract The allocatlon of
the total conslderatlon recexved based on tbc esnmated fair wlue of the units of\ accountmg reqtures ;udgment by managemcnt

Sh/ppmg ‘and Hand//ng Revenues and COSl‘S - The amounts charged to custorners for sblppmg and hand]_mg of orders

are: c13551ﬁed as revenue and reported in the stateinent oF operanons A net sales as Jnvolcecl The cost of handhng customer’ orders
and the cost of shlpments are reported in the operating, cost section of the statement of operatlons as distribition expense as:
1ncurred The cost of handlmg customer orders ’Uld the- cost of slupments \vere approxlmatelv S8 5 rmlhon §7 0 mllhon and $6.6'

mlllJOI‘l for; the \ears ended May 31, 2004 2003 and 2002 respecnvelv S

Earn/ngs Per Share All earmngs per: sh'lre qmounts reﬂect thejul) 2004 Vovember 2003 nnd September 200') three for—t\vo - _:‘

- - o

ACCOUHZ‘S Rece/vab/e Trade Trade recelvables at May 31y 2004, totahno 326 5 m.llllon and at May 31,2003; totalmg SZS 7+
million, are net'of allowances for doubtful accounts of $1. 3 mllhon and $1.7 mthon respecnvelv ’, The a.llowance for doubtful
accounts consrsts of a. reserve based on- hJstochal collectlon e\penence of tlurd partv recelvables as well as'a speclﬁc 1eserve ‘
prmc1pall\ calculated based on the’ apphcatnon of esnmated loss percentages to- delmquencv agmg totals based on how recently ; _
pa\ments have been feceiv ed: The’ Companv contmmllv monitors. the collectlblhtv of its ‘customier, accounts ‘and when 1nd1canons_

arlse that an arnount is’ not hkel; to be collected the amount- 1s charged to r.be a lowance. for doubtful accounts.

Advemsmg COSI‘S The amounts’ for advernsmg are expensed as.incurred and are classlﬁed as sellmg and marketmg operatmg
expenses: Arlvertlsmg €2\an$€ was $O 7 nnlhon $0.4 1n1lhon and $O 3 million for the years ended May 31 2004, 2003 and 2002

respecuvelv Lo e i . S e L e . . ARSIV

[P B L e o
ool

/mpact of Recent/y /ssueo’ ACCOUI’)I‘//’IQ Standare’s Injune 2001 the. FASB 1ssued SFAS No 143 /-lfmmmﬂgforAmt -
i’ ,Rﬁhreweﬂl Ob/ggaﬁan; (“SFAS \lo 143”) SFAS No 143 apphes to legal obhqanons assocmted with the retirement of long—hved assets ¢ -

“that result from the acqulsmon construcnon development and/or the normal’ opemtlon of a long lived asset For the purposes.

’ of Statement 143," 2 legal obhganon is: an obhganon that a p'\rt}_ls reunred o sert_le as 2 result of an exrstmg or enacted law statute

“ordinance, or wntten ;or oral contract or that is. based on 2 promise and an expectanon of performance Statement 143 1 1s eFfecr.lve

o for ﬁnanclal statements for ﬁscal \ears begmmng afrer’ ]une 15, 2002 The Companv adopted SFAS No. 143 cffectxvejune 1, 2003

_without i Jmpact on ltS ﬁnancial posmon or results of opemnons . o R .

S - - The ‘Bloo'_‘dlvi'ne‘ C~ontinues"
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T \Vtthout matenal 1mpact on its consohdated statements of operanons or ﬁn’mclal posmon

' matenal Warranty obhgattons or other gudrantees as of Mm 31 2004

Ar't‘nue_xlRe;:gort_,2004"‘I T N T R L wo

L E s St X . .

‘ ) In ]uLy 2002 the FASB 1ssued SFAS Vo 146 Armszmg far Co;t.t A:mmzfm’ uzf/? Exzz‘ or Dz{zwm/An‘zzfzfzer (“SFAS No 146”) \VhJCh

: laddresses ﬁnanc1a1 accountmg and’ reportmg for costs assoc1ated \Vlth exit or drsposal actmties and. nulhﬁes Emergmg Issues TasL '
Force (“EITF”) lssue»\lo 94-3, I_za!az/zg! Remgmz‘zoﬂ Sor Certain’ Emp/ojee Tem/matzazz Beﬂef ots and Otber Com 7o Exitan Aftzwgl (z;zr/zm’mo

| -j:eﬁazzz costs incnrred in'a rertrzwiung) The prowslons of. SFAS No; 146 are effectlve forexit or dlsposal activities that are, initiated -

after December 31, 2002. At adoptlon on Januatv 1,.2003, SFAS No. 146 d1d not, haxe a srgmﬁcant 1mpact on the Comp'ln\ s .

- ‘¢onsolidated. statemients of operattons ‘or ﬁnancml posmon The Compan} d1d not have any in- process or planned e\ut or dlsposal-‘
'_'actmtles as of Mav 31, 2004 : AT o "

} In NO\ ember 2002, the FASB 1ssued Interpretatlon \To* 45 Gmmm‘arr Amzr;zz‘wgand Dm/ar;tre Reqz/zre/m;zf: for Cuaraniee; (“FIN

Ne. 457): FIN No. 45 requlres a guarantor to recogmze at the 1ncept10n of & guarantee a habllm for the fair Value of the
obhganon it has undertaken in issuing the guarantee The Companv apphes _FIN'Ne. 45 to guarantees if am, lssued or modrﬁed

- after December 3%, 2002, FIN No. 45 also requires guarantors o’ dlsclose certain informition for guarantees Jncludmg product
N warranties, outstandlng at the end of i mterlm perrods endmg after December 15 2002 At adopnon FIN No, 45 did not have a:
' usrgnlﬁcant impact on the Company’s consohdated statements of operanons or ﬁnancral pdsition. The Compam did not have any

. November 2002 the Emergmg Issues Tash Force reached 2 consensus on Issue No 00 21 Rfuemw Armﬂgeﬂzm[s zmb z\/[u/t p/e ‘
1De/zm‘ab/er (“EITF Ob 217, The Issue addresses certam aspects of the accounnng for. atrangements under which a vendor will

- perform multlple rev enue generattng actmnes EITF 00- 21xaddtesses how 2 revenue arrangement with multtple dehverables

shou,ld be dlwded mto separate umts of accounnng and, 1f separatton i approprlate how the arrangement consrderatton should N

" be allocated to the Jdentlﬁed accounnng units. “The Compan; adopted the prov1510ns of EITF 0021 effecnve September 1 2003 e

See StocL Based Compensatlon above for a dtscuss1on of SFAS \10 148 A[&owzz‘mg for Siatk Bamr’ Coﬂzpe/zmtzmz - Trmmz‘zmz am?
Dz:c/amre = gn zzﬂimdwmf of FASB Slatemem‘ I\m 723 ‘ o k o

)

N In januarv 2003 the FASB rssued Interpretatlon \]o 46 Como/za’atzoﬂ o szali/e ]ntemrt Ezzlztze:, an Im‘erpre/alzon of Aaozmtma Rfmzrdj
' th//etm (ARBJ No 5 7 (“FIN No. 46”) FIN Ne: 46 requlres certam varrable 1nterest enntres ot VIEs to ‘be consohdated by the -

: pnmary beneﬁc1arv of the entrtv if the equity.. investors in the enttty do not have the characterlsttcs of a controlhng ﬁnancxal interest -
‘or do/not have suﬁﬁc1ent equity ‘at tisk for the ennty to ﬁnance its. actmnes ‘without addlt:lonal subordmated ﬁnancml support from

: ~.other paities. FIN No 46 | is effecnve for alL VIEs created or 1cqu1red aftet, ]anuarv 31, 2003 For VIES: created or aequrred prlor B

"o Februarv 1, 20034 ' the provisions of FIN-No. 46, must bé apphed for thé ﬁrst interim or annual petiod: begmmng after March: 1:>

“',‘operatrons or, ﬁnanclal position. 1. o T A R

‘ 2004 “The Companv does not expect that the adopnon of FIN No 46 wrll have a material 1mpact on 1ts consohdated statements of

- N - 1. .

e

In AprlJ 2003 the FASB lssued SFAS No 149 Awe)zdmenlj of Siatw/ent 13301 Derzl)ame Imtmmmtx mm' .Her{gmg Activities (“SFAS
" No. 149”) SFAS No 149 amends and clarlﬂes ﬁnanclal aecounnng and repornng for derwame mstruments mcludmg cettam

" instruments embedded m other contracts and for hedgmg acttvttles undet FASB. Statement No. 133; A[CUZIIU‘./}’IU for Dmmtwe ]

"“Irutrzmzenl; and- Hea’gzizg Astipities. Thrs statement reqmres that contracts ‘with comparable charactensncs be’ accounted for similarly. “%,

o posmon :

' “mstrument embodres an obhgat\on of t.he issuer. Man\ of those instruments ‘wete prev1ously elassxﬁed a§ equm SFAS Ne. 150" .

.*In partlcular this statement clanﬁes under w hat ctrcumstances a cont_tact with an. 1n1t1al net. investrment meets the- charactensnc I

‘of a dertvatxve clanﬁes When a derxvanve contams a ﬁnancmg component amends the deﬁnmon of an- underl\'mg hedged dsk <
] conform to language used in FIN*No; 45 and atends certain other e\1snng ptonouncements This statement, the provisions '
i of. whrch are o be apphed prospecttvely, 18 effecttve for contraets entered irito or modified- after June 30/ 2003 The adopnon of

SFAS \70 149 on. ]ulv 1, 2003 d1d not have a materxal 1mpact on’ the Companys consohdated statements of operanons of ﬁnancral_

In I\Ia\ 2003 the FASB Jssued SFAS No 130 Armszmg for Cerl‘az/z Flﬂal}L‘Zﬂl IIZI}‘ﬂl?iieﬂl‘! with, C/Jmaﬂmﬂm of bat/y ljabz/zl‘ze; afzd Fquzy

‘(“SFAS No 150") SFAS No. 150 estabhshes standards for how an issuer classlﬁes and B measures in its statement of ‘financial
~~posmon certain ﬁnanclal 1nstruments with charactenstrcs of .bath. habtlmes and. equltv SFAS No: 150 requ{res that an’issuer claserv ‘
" financial 1nstrument that is wrthrn SFAS No. 150 s scope as a, habrhtv (or an asset in some crrcumstances) because that ﬁnanclal

) requites’ an issuer toiclassify. the followmg mstruments as, hablhtles (or assets in some c1rcumstances) mandatorrh redeemable

*financial mstruments obhgatlons 10 repurchase the issuer’s equrt; shares by transferrmg assets, and, certam obhgatlons to JSSLIC a

L ‘vanable number of its equity shares. SFAS No. 130 is effecme for. all ﬁnancml 1nstruments entered 1nto or modrﬁed after May 31,

‘1 2003; and other\vrse shall be effecnve at the: begmmng of the ﬁrst mtenm pertod begrnmng after June 15, 2003 The adoptton of -

4" SFAS No. 150 on September l 2003, did’ not have a matenal effect on the Companvs consohdated statements of operanons or

fmancml posmon
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l“Land .

__‘;l\laclunen and eqmpmcntr‘:"

_. Lcss accumulated deprcclanon :

e 'Propcrrv plant ancl cqulpment = net o

- Assets under capltal lcasc , L
N Furruture and ﬁxrures L

B . .‘\chhmery and equlpment , : ;

L Less accumulated deprccmtlon

- 'Asscts under cap]ta leqse - ner . ‘z'

L marurmo Deccmbcr 2006)

" Term Loan A (Acqu]smon term notc) (mtcrest rates: rangmo from LIBOR plus
Term Loan B (Acldmonal term loan) (mtcrcst rate rangmg ftom LIBOR plus

. Revi olvmg lme of credlt - Canadjan subsmhan (dcnommated in Canachan dollars

,: :Secondary Obhgatlons DR - v - S v :
X me of credit — Sparush subsldlarv (denorrunated m }uros at an’ mtercst rate of B T
5% maturmg in March 2005) : ORI Lo L L S 146,765

3 t?Lme of credlt = Spam%h subsldjar\ (denommatcd in Euro: at arl mreresr ratc A;-j.l R ; U
P of FURIBOR plus 045% maturmo in ]unc 2003) B R

*Less current pertion’” "

" .Mortgage fote, payable ——*Belgmn qubsldmrv (clcnommated in, Belomn Francs at an
s ,j mterc%t rate of 6. "5% maturmg m \Tovember 2007) : :

11 484 633

: L e
. . g ‘ e '\"thé,Blo,c‘)dlir'lc“(:lol\li.nués; ,
L v May31
, - " 2004 - 2003
Inventorles S e o )
Raw matcnals ancl supplles _;-5','2.04,792 = 55" 5,894;7V57‘- e
,Worl{ n proces : 3'271“433 ;V ‘ - ‘ 42;190’41‘9.9(, l.

8,835,060

$2O 160 858

g s

. ] 'vBqudmgi and Jmprovements " 7 1452 232 -
) ‘Leasehold 1mprovemenrs - 3 497 934 v
l, Furmturc and ﬁ\cturcs 2 632 609 .
' | {. 29249848 "

816921216 <

Csmsesss
6830566
© 319246
2168558 .
24180716

4’24_3,1,90,441 ‘

U oa083881) L

36952742
| (18,190,562

el 20,206,560

18762180 ¢

e 913
“ 4601002

] 144150'”..,' N
3568490." -

R ‘n

4745915, B

SBTI26A0 LT
(1423585}

el 106; 117)
R 2639798

12289055 " .

s 21 051 23;32-

S $22.846,358

.2 O% to LIBOR plus 2. 73% repald i Dcccmber 2003) L R . -

2 5% to ITBOR plus 3 23% repaJd in December 2003) Qo

“with intefest fate ranging from LTBOR plus 2. 0% t© LIBOR p us 3 25% rcpand —.i S
b) December 2003) N o S

r‘r

P

‘146,610 -

- May31,”.
2004 ' 2003 ¢ .
rfv(" o . ‘~" 44" .
TS 11,000,000, TS : v

LU a3s0000%

: '*165‘20'1' '

“L 60000007

ap3an9

1930521 7
14‘1“,_13‘1"'.’" '

' 206 643[' "

| T
P Ty e

(31902@

11458576 l

24252624' R
C(6.977,716) <

Bt T R P s 6268361

517274908 .
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" A_ Prlmary Obllgatuons C | ST j" IR :, o ‘
‘ On December 18, 2003 the Companv obtarned a new $27 0 mrllron secured credrt facrhtv Wltl’l SunTrust Banl\ Proceeds of these
- borrowmgs were pnmanl\ used to repav the Compan} S prevlous arrangement \xrth Wachovia Bank (\Vthh ‘was cancelled. upon
. repavment) The new credit facllrtv matures in December 2006 and.is compnsed of a §15.0: mlllron revolver and a 5512 0 million term. )
loan The teftm loan is! pa\ able in quarterl\ mstallments of Sl g mllhon The term loan and the revol\ et bear mterest of LIBOR plus ) .
addltlonal percentage points rangmg from 1.0% fo.1: 75%, or SunTrust Bank prime rate plus (ot mrnus) addrtronal percentage poines. . .
-+ ranging from (O 5%) i, 1.0% based ot certain calclilations 4s defined in the Toan Agreement “The loans are collaterahzed by the ~
L capttal qtock of all of the Compan\fs subsrdrarres The Compan\ recorded 2 non: cash, pre-tax charge of S924 000 in the thrrd quarter '
" to write off unamomzed deferred ﬁnancrng charges relqted tor rts prevrous credrt facrl.ttv :
AL \fIa\ 31 2004 there ‘was $15.0 mrlhon 1n funds avulable under the US lrne ot credrt The commltment fee on the unused
borrowmg< is 0 123% . N ot : ‘ : )

Lok,
i

‘..Durrng ﬁscal 2004 the Compan\ paid the 513 8 mrlhon balance on Term Loan A the 56 0 null.ton ba.lance or Term Loan B; and the , L

822 m_Lllron balance on ‘the Canadian revolvrng line.of credrt and renred the’ Spanrsh lme of credrt amountmg to $1. 9 mtlllon The-
. Company also pard Sl O mtllron on the new credrt faerlm w1th SunTrust Banl\ K R :

T The Company S agreement thh s prtnc1pal lender contarns certaln ﬁnancral and other covenants that among other tl'ungs Aimit,
* annual caprtal e\tpendrture limit payment of cash derdendﬂ and the repurchase of stock, hmtt the rncurrence of addttronal debt, and
requtre the m'untenance of certam ﬁnancnl ratlo< 4 ‘ ' o
'At the meepuon of the onglnal aeqwsmon Term Loan Ain October 1998 the’ Compan} entered mto an 1nterest rate- wap agreement .
Swith 'an effective date of December 1, 1998, for a notibnal amount of $1:> 0 million, \xl'uch amortizes over the life of - the i instrument,.
! also maturlng December 2005, This transaction effectlvelv converted Term. Loan As ﬂoatlng rate to.a ﬁaed rate of 5 33% ona
- poruon of- the prrncrpal balance of. $15.0 mllhon at rncepnon The fair valué of the mterest rate swap’ agreernent was $137 000 4t .
~ May 31; 2004 The farr Vqlue of the | interest fate swap 1greement represents the e<t1mated receipts or pay rnents that \vould be-made
1o terminate the agreement and is 1ncluded wrth other long-term ltabthue< on the balance sheet: Atthéi 1ncepuon of the original
= Camd1an revolvrng hne of credit in December 1996, the Company srmultaneousl\ entered into an 1nterest rate swap agreement wrth a
. nActional arnount of 82, 338 166 (83,500,000 CDNS) Th_ts “transaction effecmelv converted thé rev olVers ﬂoatmg rate toa “fixéd rate. of
-6.6375% on the principal balance of $2, 338,166, “The Canadran swap agreement matured in December 2001, Eftectrve June 1, 2001,
: ,the Companv adopted SFAS No. 133, The cumulattve effect of the adoptlon of. SFAS Nov 133 resulted inl a comprehensne oss for- "
" fiscal 7002 (a componcnt of Shareholders Equm on the balanice sheet) of apprommately $103,000, net of. $26,000 in rncome taxes, -
-relaung t0'the interest fate swap agtéements. | Srnce the swap agreement related to the. Canadlan line of credit matured in December
2001, an adj ustment of: apprommately 315, 000 was madé to comprehenslve loss and reclassrﬁed to earnings as interest e\pense 1n :
 fiseal 2002 ‘Due 0. the rneffectlveness of | the %Wap related to'the US. Joar, approxxmatelt $20,500 and $2O 500 was reclassrﬁed -
. from comprehensrve lo%ﬂ to earnrngs as interest expense for the- years ended May 31, 2004 and 2003, respecm iely, and 1pprox1mately '
| 17/$266,000 and 553 000" Was charged ditectly to ‘ihrerest e\pense for the years ended \lav 31 2004 and 2003 respecme The remarnmg
‘ balance of approxrmqtelx 531 000 will be amortIzed over, the remalmncr term of the loan ‘ S

. ‘S"eco‘n‘dary Oblig:ations ) ) »7? A e S — .
At Mav 31 2004 the Company had apprommatel) $270, OOO in funds avi axlable under the Spanrsh hne of cred]t agreements At Ma» 31
’2004 _the Itallan subsrdrarv had avatlable borro\x 1ng capacrtv of Sl 321 809 under a hne of credrt o :
Upon the acqutsmon of "Vledrchrm the Compam assurned a mortgage note that is eollaterahzed b} i ﬁrst hen on Medlchlm S land

" and butldtng The approxlmate carrymg value of the land and burldrng is°$645,000. Medichim also has 3606 000 in line-of credit
agreements denominated in Euros, \xrth one Belgran banL At Ma) 3, 2004 the Compan\ had $606 000 avarlable under these line of

credrt agreements WhJch are guaranteed b) the Companvf." T e e T
g Aggregate ma‘turitles of’»all long—termfobljgations_a_nd- lines of ¢redit for each of the next.five yeirs are as follows:

. ,‘Year Endjng May 31

L 2005 e $ 5190215,-7;”‘
Lo 20060 e L 4188457
S 2007 T 2045

2008 T _
SRR 08 11,458,576
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» ‘»._iMay 31,

The ‘B]_oo'dlir'le Continues

2004 T 2003
‘\'Ianutactutmg equlﬁment bearmg intérest at'rates ra mg from 5 46% P T PR
to 9 89% and with matutities rangmg from Aprll 20§3 to September 2005 . :_:'L‘ Lo 8 9,404 o . §7 268,775 -
Office turmture and build-outs for facﬂjtve\panston bearmg interest. - Loy Pty SRS
at rates ranging from 5:6%.tc 7:63% and \wth maturmes mngmg from a o ool e o
January: 20653 © December 2004 . 7 2 Lt LT L S 17049 e 44,572
- Machinery and equq;ment related 1o the telephone svstem bearmg an interest gL S N
_ rate.of: 7.93% Wit maturities rangmg from januaxv 2004 o December 2008 ° 0 147491 :
>~'Instrument< at-customer 51tes = German’ subsidiaty, beatm mtetest at 2 2% ) S B T . o
v and w1th maurity dates’ tangmg from Aprﬂ 2008 to. Octo er- 2005 e 95,527 . 165,853 - -
Lo Ifstriments at.customer sites - Spamsh ﬁubSJdlatv beatm mteteqt At 5 1.8% A " o
-+ and with maturity dates ranging from ]une 2008 to April 2009 . R ) 9345921 -
: Instruments at customer sites — Tealian subqldmr\ bearmg inrerest rates A o " IR ; e
: ra_ngmg from 2.5% w02.75% ‘and with maturmes ranging ftom jul} 2004 o Apnl 2006 L 395,548 758,946

E Enterpnse resource planmng (ERP) computer svstem “and telated
© equiptient, Jbeating inferest at rates ranging from 2.21% to 8; 23% and with | "
- maturmes rangmg from Januarv 2003"to Decembet 2005 repmd in ﬁscal 2004 T

Office equlpment bearing i mterest at rate§ ranging from 4. 54% 10 10.5% -
and with maturities, rangmg tom Deccmber 20 3 to December 2005 repald

odssa02

in fiscal 2004. ¥ .50 W, ( E A‘”,J“ ‘ oL

Wy y
: Instruments and computcr eqmpment - Belglan subsldlarv denommated
. in Belgian Francsbearing interest at rates-ranging. frdm5.03% t0:10: 29% )

-and %ith magurity dates ramgmg from Noveém et 2002 to Apr]] 2004 o R S

Computer equipment and leaseho Id i 1mptovements - Spamsh suqunar},

o 1'5'7,3\99 '

19 487

18129

bearmg Interest at->. 23% maturmg in NO\ embcr 2004

) '1',8'88,463_ o

,.Less current portion

C(652,363)

(931.934). .

_‘w'.

ST N N . A
- depreaanon e\pense o e e T S S
el ST e ey o L ' . ." 4

. Aggregate rr_iatux:ities'of: capital .leases foreéch ,ofthe 'ne'xt ﬁve years areas follows: * ¢ 7

P - ~

st oarsr

S . 956,529

e All of thc above capltal le"tse obhgatlons are: collatetah/ed b} the mchcated assets Amornzatton on telated assets 1s mcluded in. . )

)

L YearEndmgMaySl ‘ B UL TR :
Co T 05 e g 652,363
S006 T C362,299 7
S 12007 e 249,760
A 2008 Sl 2525017 ¢
- 2009:. ’ e e o 83017
St T T 81,590,940

RN

"Total 1mputed mterest to bL pald out under emstmg capxta leaqes as of \Iay 31 2004 is 566 109

) COMMON srocx L

R AP L

.' Immucor dlsmbuted a thtee for-two stocL spht effected 1n the form of a 50% stock dmdend on’ September 13, 2002 to.” L

B N shareholders of record on August 26 2002 \VhJCh* resulted inthe 1 mquance of 4,128, 630 sbares of common stock. Immucor

‘dlstrxbuted a- three-for- ‘WO stock spht effected n the form of a DO% stock djwdend on November 14, 2003 to the shareholders
of record on.QOctober 24, 2003 “which resu ted in the Jssuance of 6,542,601 shares of eommon %tocl\ net of 2, 048 fracuonal

K shates for which cash dividends were pald On ]une 1 2004 the Board of Diréctors approved a three-for- two stock split, cffected: .

in the;form of a 50% stock. d1v1det1d o shateholders of record as of the close of business on ]une 30 7004 The stoclx split

" was dlstnbuted on July 16, 2004 and mcreased the number of shares outstandmg by 10,066,940, net of 326 ftactlonal shateq for e
* swhich cash dl\ Jdends wete pald The stock sphts were the Fourth ﬁfth and sixth for the Compam since its initial public offenr% Lo
" in-December’ 1985, Prenousl\ ‘the Companv Jmplemented a three fox two split in 1991 a five-for- four spht in 1990, and a five-
“for- fout splitin 1987. AH share and' pet <hate amounts dlsclosed in this document ha\e been restqted to reﬂect the xmpact of the-

above’ stock sphtq TRCRE
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In connectron w1th the acqursttlon of Tedrchlm SA and Immunoclnm s. a. rl the Compam 1ssued to the seller an opnon to

acqulre in whole ot in part, 337,500 shares of Immucor stock at $2.65 per share ina ttansac'non exempt under Section 42) of the o
Secunnes Act. The 337,500 optrons became e\erc15able at the rate of 33% per yéar commercing : March 2001, expire in ﬁscal year "“

2010 and were Valued at $310 000 at. the.date of the acqulsmon and mcluded in goodwrll Durrng]une 2002 all 337 500 opuons

: Werefullve\ercrsed " ‘ e T I . LT e

"

v
‘

if* the Compan} is involved i in certain mergers busmess combrmtxons or asset sales gach nght not owned by the acqurrer or

- o " . : E L

As part of, the acqursrnon of Dotmmon Brologrcals errted m December 1996, the: Compan) 1ssued fo the sellers frve- and -
"ten-year \varrants to acqmre 1ntwhole or in part 1,614; 656 and 506, 250 shares of Immrucor stock at 33 36 and $3.55 per sha.re

2001 une\ercrsed and the ten- year warrants evpmng Jn 2006., Iinrhucor filed ‘a: regrstrauon statement-on Form S-3in Mav 1999
\Vltl'l ‘the Secunnes -and Exchange Commlsslon coveting the 1ssuance of the shares to be issued. upon eaercrse of these warrants.
As of MaV 31, 2004 all 506 250 of the ten-year warrants had been exercrsed and none. were outstandlng RN '

.

. . \,‘,», s e . o s .

"The Companv has a. Shareholders nghts Plan. under WhJch one common’ stock purchase rlght is presentlv attached to and ttades ‘
“withr each outstand_lng share of the Companys common stock.” The nghts ‘become: exercisable and transferable apart from 'the
‘common stock ten:  days after a person or group; without the Companv s consent, acqmres benencral ownershlp of or the nght

to bbtain beneficial ownershxp of, 153%,or more of the Companvs common stocl\ or annourices:or commences a tender offer or
e\:change offer that could result in at least 15% ownershlp T oa person or a group acqmres at least 15% ownetshlp, e\cept in' a
transacnon approved by the Companv under the rrghts plan then each rloht not owned by the 1cqu1rer or relared parues Wlll ent1tle
1ts holder to purchase at the, nghts exercise pnce common stock ot common stock equrvalents havi mg a market value, rmmedratel;
pnor to the trlggermg ‘of the right ¢ of twrce that exerclse price, In addition, after an acqmrer obtalns at'least 15% ownershlp,

,telated persons will entitlé | its holder to purchase at the nghts e;\erase price, shares of common stock of thé other partw to the.’

s

6 STOCK OPTIONS

shares of the Compam s common stock All optlons have 10 yéar. térms-and® vest and become full} exercrsable DO% at the end of

the Companv to repurchase up to:an! addltronal 300 OOO shares of its cornrnon stock: The Compam's repurchase program does

transaction havmg a rharket value 1mmed1atelv prror to the trlggermg of rhe nght of twice that exercrse prlce Once e\erclsable
each right enutles the holder to purchase 3.4 shdres of- the Compan) s common stock At an e\ercrse prlce‘ot 545 sub ect [te)
1d1ustment to prevent drlutlon The rrghts have no vonng power, and until. e\ercrsed no drlutwe effect on net income, per common
““share. Thé rights exprre on Apnl 20, 2009 and in most cases, are redeemable at the dlscrenon of the Board of Dlrectors at $0 01
each All resen ations, of shares of common stock fort purposes other tha.n the nghts plan shall take precedence and be supenor to-

anv reservatlon of shares in connecnon W1th or under the nghts plan ST : o Lot L

s

The Company 1nsututed 2 repurchase program in ]une of: 1998 lor up to 2 700 000 sharcs of whrch 2 416 500 shares had been

respectlvelv Thiese warrants became’ exerctsable one-year. after the i issuance clate -with the five- -year. wargants eapmng int December )

purchased prlor to fiscal 2004, leawng 283,500 shares ‘available for repurchase On ]une 1, 2004 the Board of Dlrectors authonzed

EI . C B g;, e I -

nothaveane\pxranondate ) _‘ e RN T L e . < SRR

Lo

All references to l'ustoncal awards outstand.tng awards ‘and avallablht\ of shares for future grants under Immucors stock plans as
descnbed below and related pricés per share Have been festated; for comparabrlm/ purposes o reflect’ the three for-two stock sphts
dlstnbuted in jul\' 2004 \loxernber 2003 and’ September 2002 oo L o ey

The Companv hac varjous stock opnon phns that authonze the Companv*s Stocl; Opnon Commlttee to grant employees officers

and dlrectors opnons 10 purchase shares of the Companvs common stocl\ E\ercrse prices: of stock opnons are’ determmed bv the

Stock Opnon Commlttee and have’ been the farr market value at the date of the grant . BN -

el I

The Company’s 1090 Stock Opuon Plan authonzes the grant of opuons to emplovees ofﬁcers and dlrectors for up to 2 531 250

. two years, 25 %.at the end of three \ears and 25% at. the end of four vears ‘of contmued emplovmenr S SR

v

The Compan) S 1993 StocL Optlon Plan authonzes the’ grant«of optrons to emplo; ees, ofﬁcers and dlrectors for up’ to 3 368 124

5

shares of the Compan\ s common stocL mcludmg an. amendment bv the Board of Dlrectors in’ ﬁscal 2003 to mcrease shares :

.allocated.  All: opnons have 10- -yeat terms and vest and become fullv e\erCJsable 50% at rhe end of two Vears, 25% at the end of
\three years and 2:i%tat the end of four Vears of contlnued employment y ) : " B :
The Companys 1998 Non- Incennve Stock Opuon ‘Plan authonzes the grant of opnons to emplovees ofﬁcers and drrectors for up |
“to 3 375 OOO shares of the Companvs cornmon stock All opnons have lO year terms and Vest and become full} exerclsable 30%

gt

v
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B 'The Company‘s 2003 Non Incenuve Stocl\ Optxon Plan quthomes the grant of opuons to emplovees officers and dn:ectors for up
r A" L7 o 600, 000 shres’ of the Companvs common stock. ! Al optlons have 10-vear tetms and west and become fullv eaerctsable 50% ar;

. the end of two years 25% at the edd.of, three years and 25% at the end of four Vears of conunued emp10) ment. Lo
- The Company has elected t© follow Accountmg Prmc1p es’ Board Oplnton l\lo 25 Acmzmtmg for Stock Imwd to- Fmp/@:eex (“APB 25”) S
,v.and related; Interpretatlons in accountmg for’ 1ts employee stock optlons because the alternative: fair value accountmg prowded fot A .
- Y under SFAS No 123, Aﬁozmtmg far Ry fo:k. Bam{ Campematzwz requlres tse of optjon Valuanon models that weté not dev. eloped for .

- use “in valuLng employee stock opuons Under APB 25 because the exércise prrce ‘of the’ Companys ernplovee stocl\ optlons equals -

. the. mar ket prlce of the underlvlng stock‘on the date of grant compensauon e\pense is recogmzed

¥ \"(Pro forma mformauon rcgatdmg net income and earnmgs per»share 15 reqmred bv SFAS No 123 WhJch also reqmres that the
' 4,Lnf0tmatlon be determmed as 1f the Companv Fas accounted for its emglovee stocl\ optlons granted subsequent to June 1, 1995

' amomzed to e\pense ove1 the OpthI‘lS vestmg penocls The falr vdue fot these optlons was estlmated at the date of grant usmg a,
Bl ack Scho les opnon pncmg model \Vlth the fol.lowmg welghted averafre assumpdons DR

o
_ e

' 2004 2003 ‘2'002‘. R N

RJSk ftee mterest‘rate ) ¢ 3 68% . 393% s 537%

o Expected life (years) _ 8 0 '-«_ B0 L © 8.0~
. Expected volagility L 68.6% RN ,7’1.4°/o__v~ L TA9Y
: Expected dmdend \'1ed w ,0,0_"/,0_ e 0.0%‘[' L O._O%

. N SO B ; .
. The Black Scholes optlon valuauon mode vas developed for use in estlmatmg “the fair. value of traded optxons that have no Vestlng
restrxctlons and.are fullv transfetable In addltlon optlon valuatlon models 1 requlre the 1nput of hlghly sub]ectlve assumptions, L

mcludmg the expected stock pnce Volatﬂlty Because Immucots emplo> ee stock opuons have charateristics slgn.tﬁcantly d.!fferent ST
T from those of traded opnons and because changes in the SubJCCthC dnpuit assumpdons can rnaterlally affect the fair value. esumates‘ . S
L in managements opm_lon ‘the. exlsttng models do not necessanly ptovrde a reliable smgle measure of the fatr value of i its emplovee R »

stock opuons See Note 1 of the consohdated ﬁnanctal statements for pro forma presentatton TV VT ‘y

'The Compam 1s authonzcd 6 igsué up to 3 618,782 shares of its Common Stock under varrous emplo; ce and chrector stocl.
) \opt_lon arrangements Optlons granted unde1 these: plans become exerCJSable at, \anous ttrnes and unless e\erc1sed expire at.

various dates through ﬁscal 2014 Transacuons 1nvolv1ng t.hese stock optxon arrangements afe summarlzed as follows

T

Range . o Welghted Average .

o p R 3 o S ofExerase T - o - Exercise
R ' ,'; L ER Sha.res RN Prlces sosns . Price
Outstandmg at May 31 2001t SR sir0r. L 05 ;_'s4[5‘5: L 230
‘Granted ... RO 2423250 -; $0.79 . U$5.01Y . oS 191
S N fExercxsed R R NI TR IR ¢ 303 234) 8178 o 8430 .0 08 ‘-‘2:29, .

Co T Forfeiied LY L T (184322) 8079 - $4300 . §72065 , U
: OutstandmgatMay3l 2@0251 : 05773 :»; 8075 L L5010 Y s L
‘Granted . - C179438° 7 1085500 08990 T o § 725 oLt
WBxercised Lo LT 0D T (22575600 75080 84300 T s T30 T
' Torfeited S N 335) TA3083 % :,33 67. '$+2.03 '

eOutstandmg atMay 31,2003 . ‘ ws%sm ~$o75-. gD, 90*’3:"'-, L 240 '

Coel - Gramed . U T Tiegrass C 5005 - 1485 0 Te$1307 oo .
+‘Esercised R A '(1 196971 0 S075 - 8455t . staie .o T
Forfeired e e (75323) ‘_“$O.80 89900 o T8 B07 L

Outstandlng at Mav 31; 2004"“'__'.;.,‘,‘ SR 3381 457 50750 siass o s age Lol

Y

R I

e “At Mav 31 2004 2003 and 2002 opnons for 1 323 092 ; 235 745 and 2 838 710 shares of common stock respecttvelv Were o
o ) exerclsable at welghted average exetcise pnces of $2 42 S’pZ 67 and 32 42 respectlvelv At May 31 2004, 237 325" shares of -

‘ ' "common stock were aVallable for furure grants. Thc Welghted average grant date faut VaJue of optxons granted durmg ﬁscal 2004
C 2003, and 2002 Were 39 69, $7 50 and Sl 34 respecuvelv R . PR t; :
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.+ 'The followmg tab € as of May 31 2004 sets forth b\ group of exercise. prlce ranges the number of shares welcrhted aver’lge

“e‘{erclse prlces and Welghted averagc remammg contractua_l hves of opnons outstanchng, ancl the number and Welghted average

‘e\erclse pnces of opnons currently exercrsable

L o ) ‘, Optlons Outstandmg o .‘ P . Optlons Exercxsable o
Ran eof S : Number o “Werg.hted . Welghted R "Number " Welghted .
g T Average ... - . Average .. . - - S
Exercnse : S of. Exercise '~ - Contractual : Y £ Average :
U Shares bxercise ontractual - 5 " Shares .- Exercise Price. -
Prices - N ‘ - Pricé " . Llfe (Years) B R
5000, - $200_‘ : ‘:1;660,375. : ‘35“1.81- jj 690 F I '/1_-559,37? o0 8 1-87‘-
a0 L age e BIOTA T 274 480+ Lo Tsae. . 275
S - 316,853 .. 74T LU - 8BS0 LV A T
. 401 -7,;_.,‘1«14.00(_ oLl 592935 v d364 9900 -t T 0.00. .
101 igoe o 3081457 s 46Tt dba o o TUTAE3000 0 S 2420
: _‘7’.‘,EA‘R‘N|N'GS P'E.R SHARE '

- .The followlng table sets forth the computanon of carnings per cormmon share and common share - assurmng dllutnon in
‘accordance with. SFAS No. 128, Earhings per Share: Immucor dlstrlbuted a. three for-two stock- spht effected in: the form of a
50% stock d1v1dend on July 16 2004 to shareholders of record on ]une 30 2004. Immucor dlsrrlbuted a three-for-tivo stock split,
o _effected in the form of 2 50% stock dividend on November 14, 2003.t0 the shareholders of récord on Octobet 24 2003. "The |
~Company dlstnbuted 4 three- for-rwo stock spht on September 13; 2002 to shareholders of record on August 26, 2002. The spht
‘was effected i inthe form of a 50% stock d1v1dend All share qnd per share amounts, drsclosed in thls document hqve been restated

i

't reﬂect these stock sphrs :

; : "\ For the'Year Ended May 31,... e
r SRR , L2004 0 . 2003 -0 12002
'Numerator for ba51c and dJ.luted earmngs per tshare e e S T s
Netincome: & - ‘ U $12537.806 ¢ $14369,757 .. . 8794910
a Denominator::-" " | S ’ '1' T L e T Coen el
Fot basic- -earning$ per share welghted dverage shares 295051157 0 T T28202,603 oo . 244658355
o Effecr of dilutive stock optlons and watrants . ST R84 - L 2.112,092 CO1111,250 -
- B Denommatorfordllutedearmngspershare-- ; ) T Coe ey
_ Adj usted Welghtcd average shares S 31,329299 i . .. 30,314 695 S 25769605
: Earmngs_per--common share . e e . ‘, TR (Y - R $0.51 - - 5036
- Ear.nings ‘per common share - assuming-‘dilutio‘n . : B ($Ol40 T 50}47 S 150.34

" The effect of - 580 335 11 230 and 4; 387 733 out-of- the monev opnons and \xarrants were excluded from the above calculanon as
mcluslon of these secunnes WOU.ld be anti- dxlunve for the | Vears ended Mav 31 2004 2003 and 2002; respecnvelv B ;

8 COMMITMENTS AND GONTINGENCIES ™ = -, - = o 0
wLease "Comm_ifg'm'en"r.s,

- The Compan\ leases domestlc ofﬁce and warehouse faclhnes under an operanng lease agreement expmng in 2008 thh a rlght o
renew for an additional five years. The- Compam leases forelgn ofﬁce and warchouse facilides and automoblles under operanng
lease agreements expizing at various-dates through 2009 Total i renta e\pense prmclpqll\ for ofﬁce qnd \mrehouse space \vas
351 896 OOO in. ﬁscal 2004 $l 156 000 in ﬁscal 2003 and Sl 134 OOO in ﬁscal 2002 ’ o :

: ,‘bln Gerrnam the ofﬁce facrhty 1 leased from-a companv owned by the famll'. of a former ofﬁcer Rental pa\ments under this*
‘A'lease were $244, OOO $170’000 ’and $159 OOO for ﬁscal 2004 2003 and 2002 respectlvely, and are- beheved to. be at falr H’I’IL‘J\CI value

o
PRV




) 'non cancelable lease terms in excess of one vear as of May 31 2004

o j,; R “Yei,.;r En'djng‘Ma;r 1o

2005 . a~‘,* °S. 1366985
' P S 1,410,148
1,363,763.¢
‘}999.,2'7.9:;
" 665,251,
© 28790

$ G, 034,216

RQﬁéermmhméms,;ﬁ_j-;vf;ffjf*-~‘1‘;;1]‘ll"

a e

‘v. 61

\{' <

: The foll owrng is a. schedule of approxrmate future annual lease payments under all operatlng leases that have mmal or remammg

‘ 'In ]anuary 2004 the Companv entered into an_ mstrument purchase agreement wrth Bio- TeL Instruments Tnc. for the development

The Bl_ood‘line_ Continues

of a thrrd generation automated assa\ mstrument The ost of development under this agreement totaled SO L3 mrlllon in fiscal”
.- 2004 and is- expected {6 reach 82 8 tnilliom in ﬁscal 2005 before dropplng to §1. 5 mﬂhon in fiscal 2006 Upon acceptance of the

o In September 1999, the Companv entered ints manufacturmg and development agreement \Vltl"l Sttatec Blomedlca] AG T

_ purchase requlrement to malntun exclusmtv See Note 11 of the consohdated ﬁnancnls statements L _"

engmcerrng model the Company will. have been deemed ehgrble 0 issue a purchase order for 100, umts There is. no nnmmum ‘l o

' (“Stratec”) headquartered in Germany Under the agreement,,Stratec has dev eloped and manufactures the fully- automated

" analyzer knowii as, the: Gahleo® In: order to-maintain exclusive European dlst_nbunon rrghts the Companv must purchase 250.-

R . -instruthents by thie'end of ﬁscal 2007 the end of the. ﬁve -year perrod beglnnrng vvrth the: ﬁrst shlpment of producnon mstruments .

) Companv beheves lt erl purchase the requrred number of 1nstruments to malntam eaclusmty '

- The Companv has outstandmg purchase commltments to Serologrcals lnc totalmg approxnnatelv $8. 4 mrllton for some’ of the; .

S IF the Companv purchases less than 250 mstruments over. the penod It wr_ll be allowed Bie) negonate 2 good falth e\rtenslon The .

Companys monoclonal annbodv—based products to be purchased over the next four years ($2 7 million in fiscal 2005 $2.3 mllllon
iin fiscal.2006,$2.2 million jn ﬁscal 2007 dnd’ $1.2 mlllron in ﬁscal 2008) The Company purchased approxlmatel) SZ 5 rmllron in

: monoclonal anttbodv—based products in ﬁscal 2004

" ‘ln Apnl 2003 lmmucot Inc and B1o Tek Tnstruments Incr the manufacturer of Immucors ABSZOOO fully automated blood. bank

. Co mstrument announced the srgnmg of an agreement Wrth the Unlversrtv of Vermont to. commerc]a_h7e an in-vitro dlagnostlc test to

‘ measure platelet markers useful in anti- platelet, pharmacologlcal drug development ‘and potenually to 1mprove real time treatment -

. L A 'of cardJovascular disease. The. assay will be useful i determmmg the risk assocrated with anreased platelet activity (thrombonc

occluslon of vessels which cart lead to:a myocardjal mfarct) and decreased reacnv;tv (e\cess bleeding) and for the. prediction of

Yo coronarv arter) and cerebrovasCular drsease i patrents w1thout a prevrous drsease history, The Company spent approumate y $0 1

T oo L B
- e M

\Vlth the thrrd partv ﬁnancmg company See additional commrtments n: Note l‘l of the consohdated Fnanclal statements.

o ) .C_ontlnge'ne.ijes’_'. T L

e A R e

Sl -+ . < none of whrch inthe’ oprmon of management and i its: counsel are expected to have a matenal adverse effect on the Companys

s T e consohdated results of operatrons or ﬁnancral posrtlon o RO

" million i m ﬁscal 2004 10" facrhtate thls pro]ect and e\pects to, spcnd an addmonal 15 50 OOO in ﬁscal 2005,

H

From tlme to tlme the Company is’ lnvolved 1n certarn legal proceedmgs and cla]ms \Vhrch arlse in the normal conrse e of busrness

e . . ;'ln order 0o sausfy the broad spectrum of customers operanonal and ﬁnanclal criteria, the Compan) offers several 1nsttument ’ S
I - procurement optlons mclud_lng thlrd~party ﬁmncmg eases dlrect sales and reagent rental agreements under- which the Companv ) ' ‘
- recovers the.cost of the' mstrumentathrough mcreased feagent. pncmg In connectlon Wlth certain third-party, ﬂnancmg leases of -- S
_ the Compam S automated systems, the third- partv lessor s customers afe commltted t© purchasmg reagent products exclusively . ‘ o

* from- ‘the. Companv If the Companv is unable t suppl) such products, tl’US could’ represent a breach' of the Companys agreemcnt :
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INCOME TAXIES *' R IR
- Sources of mcome before income taxes’ are, summarlzed belo“ .

LT R s For theYea.r EndedMay31 .
v e D T 2 2004 12003 o 2002

" ‘Domestic Operations ™+~ ..t o TS 19031785 18 19,042, 237 L S11826961
.. Foreign'Operadons .-~ | * R R e 1,231,784 - 1140 231 o “'4 156 853"' |

T

ol eI U So0363560 520182 468 $11983 814’, |
S , The provlslon for' in'cc')me ta'xes,is",;sd‘mrnzarized'es» follows: v ‘ e o ,} C

‘ e DR R , ’,'Fo_r"rtheeyear Ended May 31, IR
2004 o - L2003 2002

Chrrent: A L — —- - —

S Federal o T T g 3293703-'..,_'.5; 3 6114270’ ST 18.2,953,976
S CForeign Lo TR T T 044487 0 0 L 398587 T 489441 L -
e nState . D e T gy 58310 0L e 276070,
oL Tes T T T T '7,098,602 L T096067 i 3719,487

o Deferred: - TIPS L e

CFederal: v T T 687042 I 1181916y T - (638,102

o Foreign .. T ool (492158) C 1009260 - 53745,

SState s L e gagagr T 002366) Tt 48774
L P S LSO YA T Bt (1283356),\‘-‘ T (530583) -

»Inc‘_c}meta‘xes_%" B ps_;7,-7’2'5‘,'76'3‘;‘ s SsiaTi s 3,l88,9b4 e

- Deferred 1ncome m\es reﬂect the net tax. effects of: (a) temporary dlfterences between the carrymg amounts of assets and
: 'hablhnes for ﬁnanclal reporung purposes and 1ncome tax: purposes and (b) operatrng loss carr\ forwards Va,luatlon allo*wances
are estabhshed when, necéssary to reduce deferred tax assets to; the amounts expected to'be reahzed The’ Comp‘mvs Spanish o
N sub51dJarv had ‘net operatmg loss carry- forwards for income, tax purposes of approxlmatel) $193 OOO which expire in 2014, The : g
T Companys German subs!dlary had net operanng loss carry -forwards for i mcome ta‘( purposes of’ approxlmatel\ 5768 000, whxch :
. do not: ‘expire. The German sub51d1arv net operfmng loss carry- forwards for 1ncome tax purposes of* -approximately $0.8 mlllron
’ wefe recogmzed in the current ﬁscal year. Bftsed on an assessment of. all avallable ev 1dence mcludrng, but not limmited to, the _
"+, opetating history and lqck of proﬁtablhtv of certarn subsrcharres the. Compan\ is'uncertaid as to the abrhtv t realize the Spamsh
. net operatmg loss carrv—forward and tax crédit’ and as°a result adeferréd” tax valuation allowance has been recorded agamst this-
.deferred tak asset. The tax effects of 51gmﬁcant 1tems compnsmg the Companvs net deferred ‘tax llabllltv at Max 31 x2004 and
."2003areasfollows b T e L v T
R A IR L FortheYearEndedMay31
B I SR LT 2004 2003
Deferred tax habrlmes LT e
! Amortrzanon B I e o $ (1,562_,71'0) $ (1 630, 158)
Deprecigtion - {70 T ies T T L 1386195) ;' L (1,470,841)
j Other =« -1 e e 1/» (331 225) S ;g e 764)
o Deferredta\assets. S g s : s
- Reserves not cnrrenrlv cleductlble ;
: Operarmg loss carrv—forwards
SO Unrforrn caplta,hzatron

1304350 1373 678 -

961241 L - 1,892,359
148,140 - - -7 509,861

L LA LA e T U (886,399) . o 295,135

. Valuatlon allowance SO L 3 ‘b Dol - 4—/(265371‘4)5 (223,437) T
o Netdeferred tax (habrhq) asset ; »f;.‘ o j ';-". oo e L Tee 152113) 8. 71,698

T

The Companvs eftectlve 1% rate drffers from the federal stqtutorv rate 15 follow s SR . S . ; ‘ o oL
e _ ‘ ‘ - .' T _‘ _‘ o /" L “For the.Year Er'lrded-Ma'y‘Sl',‘ s
e o LR AP B U 20040 - 22003 2002

. _’ ;

‘Federal statutorv taxt  rate : : e - e )
State’income taxes, net of; tederal tax beneﬁt T B A
Extraterritorial income e\cluslon/ foreign sales corporanon commlsslons e 2y (D), (l)
- Difference in effective income'tax fates of other tountries, 7 0w e L) S SRRt I
" Excess 0f cost over tangible assets '1cqu1red net T T B R
. Change in deferred tax valuition allowance R L A T CI T
Tncome. from Spamsh subsrdlarv S R S [
_‘,Other ' A R

F R PN R EIRE: . NI - RS 11 D

S ,'?;50‘/'01'; > 34% L
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. ;l‘he_li'loodline: Continu‘esl ;

" Asa resu.lt of utxhzmg compensanon cost deducnons ar]smg from the e\ercxse of nonquahﬁed emploxee stock options for federal
and staie 1ncome tax purposes the Compmy reahzed mcome tax befiefits of $3, 581 809 $3/431,181 and 3652 797 in.fiscal 2004, .
2003 and 2002 respecnvelv These mcome ta*c beneﬁts are recogmrecl in the accompanvmg ﬁnanaal statements as addltlons
B “to. addmonal pald in capltal rather than ~ reducnons of the respecnveuncomc tax promslons because the related compensatlon
deducnons are not. recognued as compensanone\pense for ﬁmncral reportmg purposes R G T coe

K . BN s i A e . e "‘

LA true up of the est}mated tax beneﬁt of the 2003 European restructure and ad]ustments for mrsapphcatlon of Te\as franchJse
: tax rules for. ﬁscal years 2002 and 2003 added SO 1 mllhon and SO 3 rmlhon to 1ncome ta\ e\pcnse tespecm elv In addmon a- T
T T reserve of 35223 OOO was estabhshed to recoonlze that-th '

: 10 TECHNOLOGY‘HIGHTS

. EN ‘In March 1983 ‘the Compan} acqwred nghts to technology to be used iy developmg dlagnostlc testing products In connéction
il e WJth thls acqulsmon the Companv has. 1greed to.pay: t6 the., Blood Center of Greater Kansas Clty, rovalnes equa.l to 4% of ‘net
: sales through August 26, 2006 Erom products utlhnng the technologv Royaltles under this agreement amounted to approumately w0
5431 000 5463 OOO and $473 OOO in ﬁscal 200 2003 and 200 respectjvel\f S ’ :

REED INSTRUMENT DEVELOPMENT AND MANUFACTURING AGREEMENTS

l.nJanuary 2004 the Compnny entered mto an 1nstrument purchase agreement w1th BIO Tek- Instrurnents Inc for the
deve opment of & th1rd* oeneranon automated assa) msttument The COmpan\ has 1dentlf ed the need for a fast llght\velght
fullv-automated 1nstrurnent Thls mstrument \Vlll serve thc sma.ll to medium. accounts, the laroesr segment of. our customers
S whrch number apprommatel\ 7 500 \xorld\wde Thc mstrument as, desrgned will utxhze the Companys proprletar\ Capmre® o ".
T technolog\ and’ will be ov et two nmes faster thm the. ABSZOOO Luropean launch is e\pectecl in mid 2006. The i mstrument will . ‘
‘be serviced unhzmg a depot approach that should 51gmﬁcantlv reduce service costs Upon acceptance of the engtneermg model o
the Companv will haxe heen deemed ehglble o lssue A purchﬂse order for lOO ‘units. There is no minimum purchase requlrement 0o w

) mamtam excluswr 0

. -

' In Septemb"er\1999“ the Companv enteréd into a m'anufacmring'dnd d'evelopnlent agreer‘nent‘"\vithStretec Biomedical AG L S

(“Stratec”) headquartered in German) Under the' agreement Stratec has’ developed and is manufacturmg a fullv automated . . - <Ll

. -_' analvzer utthzmg the Cornpanvs Capture technologv hno“rn as the Galileo® whrch ~was initially targeted t the European: ~ . ,
T community and has'now begun tQ be marl\eted to customers inithe US -and ]apan “The ‘instrument is mirketéd exclusively ": -’

s, . to hospltal trmsfuslon laboratones ‘and blood donor centers for patent and donor blood tvpmg and antibody screenmg and -~ .
p ; o 1dent1ﬁcat10n In order to mamtaln e\cluswe Europcan dlstrlbutlon rlghts the Company miust purchase 250 instruments b5 ‘the
o TN S end of ﬁscal 2007 the encl of the ﬁve )ear penod begmnlng with the- first shlpment of productron instruments. Tf the Companv
. purchases less than’ 250 mstruments over the penod if WJLl be allowed to negotlate a good faJth e\tensxon The Compan\ R

. T: ' beheves it will purchase the rcqulred number~of lnstruments to mamtaln e\cluswmr et

The Companv contracted WJth Blo TeL lnstruments lnc For the evelopment ov .a fully-automated “wall\ -away” blood banl\

- analyzer l\nown as the ABSZOOO the analvzer ut.lllZCS the Companvs patented quture® technologv a.nd is belng marl\eted i ‘
Furope and; the Unlted States to hosplml transfuslon laboratorles for panent testlng Under the’ terms of the 15°year agreement e
the Compam re1mburses Bio-Tek Instruments Inc for its development costs and the Compan; s granted world\wde marke‘nng

: nghts to sell’ the” mstrument for use in the buman chrucal dlagnosnc marl\et for: testmg of human blood or blood, components i

U wdth centnfuganon BJO Tek Instruments Trc. mav sell'the product in other markets pa)mg the Companv up to a'4% royalty - .-, ‘

" of the selling prlce To date, BJO “Tek has not exermsed this opuon To.maintain. the ‘exclusive: world\v1de markenng rlghts the " =77 .
e ‘Companv Was requlred to purchase 2501 mstrurnents ot er a.six- fiedr perlod hegmmng w1th the dehverv of the'first. producnon N
‘ :mstrument in ﬁscal 1997 The Company Cl]d not meet “this reqmrement bt docs not v1ew the Jloss. of e\cluslwry a8 detrrmental P .
" due o the Fact that the ABSZOOO is deSJgned 1o work solel\ “with- the Companys proprletar\ reagents OnJulv 31, 2002 ‘the - e
. Companv entered 1nto 2533 million’ msttument purchasmg agreemeént with. BJO Tek for developmental woik and ﬁﬁ} ABSZOOO -
) mstruments As of \'Iay 31 2004 all 30 of these mstruments have been purchased e .

1n ﬁsczl 2004 2003 and 2002 the Company mcurred and ekpensed apprO\lmatel\ $923 OOO 3388 OOO and 3625 OOO respectlvclv . B = e

m instrument research and development costs.
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12, '_RET‘iRE'M E‘NTZ_ PLAN

i

The Company maintains a 401(k) retlrement plan covermg its domestlc emplovees WhO meet ceftain age and length of . service

reqmrements as defined in the Plan document The Company matches a pornon of emplovec conmbuuons to the plari. Durmg

o the’ years ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 the Compan\ ] match.mg contnbutlons to the plan were: apprommatelv 5269 000, .

13

- FISCAL2004 . -

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

" First Quarter

" . Fourth Quarter-

B 'FISCAL 2003

First Quarter

. Second Quarter
+ Third .Qué;rte}'. S

" Second Quartér.. -
_ Thlrvauarter R
. “Fourth-Quarter { .- -

- (In thousands, except per share amounts)

' $225 000 and $180 OOO respectlvely Vesmng m the Companys matchmg contrlbunons is based on years of conr_muous setvice, a

' Yv."A'b'

Earnings Per .

) L : ' R ‘Common
] Net ) “ Gross - Income L Net ~ .~ Earmngs Share— Assuming
- Sales Profit fmm Operatlons _Income - Per Common Share * Dilutions
7$027,262 <0 $15310 ° $ 5912 " CULE 3676 5013 % os0a2
L7207 T 452095 L 5749 B4 §042 . - L S0aT
278767 14795 7t a2 Lo 2,038 8007 © 8006
30213 16,875 Co5750°. . 3382 o s0did e 80t
8112558 . §62,189 3521 T2 812538 Cos042 . 8040
L $23300 - -7 S 13434 $ 562 0 $.29%- - s01r v - s0.0
23,760 - 13,734 T5611 0 L 3401 o8042 %011
C2sir0 e aadet o 5991 3750, 8043 $0.12 .-
ChGATS . 14205 L 504600 L 4205 US0450 8014
$98.648. . $55858 -  §22304 <§ 14,370 8051 » 350 47
e
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us

Net reagem sales

‘.Gen‘-ma‘n‘y

k,..

‘ ;: Canada . i Other (1)

" Eliminations”

) l_ Cpr}solidme\d

-~ Unaffiliated customexs' sses 244 510 444 , “~s7,193 S7,862 $.0. 0 - $102,785
Affiliates . 7 9269 2,691 S 5 U v A (12,238) -
'Netmsr_rumentsalcs : " Vo e RN .
~Unaffiliated ¢t <tomers e _.4;31'()} ,' 2 682, L3 AR S DR 2,001 R . 9,773
Affilares 2 TS 3969 T T Bk L 4,162 - S
Tota.l 81,9837 19_,/86) SR E1S L A0 L 10,154 (16,400) - 112,558 -
--‘Deprecmuon DU L1140 L 76 " - 6014
. Amortzation - . A P A P - 1369 L0
* Income- (loss) from R VT AR IR L - Co .
opemgoms . {;17@4;8‘6‘ SRR 2,344 - - (333). 3,026 : »21,7_02 o
Tnterest e\(pense L@y, S ;) S . R - . (882)
1ntercstmcome TS SR L6 - 41
Incomc tix (beneﬁt) o '4 R T A o LA oo
" “expenses v 7070 T (543 " 191 gag 57 2 77260
.. Capital expend]tures ) 3,12'3 B . 938 1965 CUABGLe T 894 - 7,106 ’
" Long-lived dssets - - © 12,291 £37299 123 L2179 22 846«
- Ideéntifizble asscts 114062 - A‘16 992 e 29610 10 853 . (42, 936) 174 417
Vet assetss,, . 93 200 S, 4302, o 5354 et 3206 T (24224)»‘ -'92;953 T

th reagent sa]e< )
Unaffiliated* customcrs )

. $62,000.

" Germany, |

80,433 -

N VAU
D

S gv‘-' -

Canada Other (l)

36343 o 35346

. Eliminations

L
(8,789 - -

) C’o.ngolidate;i . r“:

500,841 .

“Aféiliates’ - 7788 613 ‘ REERRIREE- ¥
\]et instrument $ales: - S, o L s T e ‘ N )
t 7 Unaffilated customers- S 3084 ¢ 1,071 L9200 IR '3,_5,6¢0~" e S 7,807
. Afﬂhates L . 41T 4129 , e = e . - ST (4,170) - s
© Towl 72913 L 5246 L 1615 6456 9377 ~(12,959) . 08648 .-
. Depreciation ‘ 2,755 834" 028 L T 1. C SR B . 5256 ..
AAmom/auon ST T | hoo : R I YA - © 368
Income (loss) from RS S n sl R TR
. operatons. ‘ - 20435 O R 346 C1534 T 44 < (154)" . 22304 .
. Jmczeit expense. s 20y Loe 1y (37) CUEO0Y T @) e e (2,406)
Interest income e SRR PR (PR - :

3lncome tax (beneﬁt)

--expense
Capiral e\pcndltures . 2,487
Iiong-lived assets - 11,795
Idermﬁable assers., 109 166-

Net asset’s .

5378

78502

IR

(183)
1,707

. 3224
14 492

L4660

258,

12,927

18 075

N 10415

)

"

' ,.'_;, 25 -

v

S URTE RIPINE /3 N
T1058 ., 2,087 .
97400 T 10,998 v

,},4;182 (287)

T R S

©) g B

Cusses)
23777 -

127 e

Cosg3t
5234
21,051 .

116,386

7395

) . T : ; Year Ended May 31 2002.‘, E . -
r, ' ‘ e ,‘ - 'U”.S: R Cei‘maqy A Canada Other (1)' i ‘Eliminations - } Cons'oliclgted'_
.. Net reagent sales:” LT e T T o T S B ; .
Unaffiliated customérs.” * $54,180- o %8751 ) SS 645 L $4 687 - 3 $79,124 -

. Net instrameént sa]es

" Affiliates

Unaffiliated: customer{

CTA50 L

3980

IO
928

1397

cT e T ds

RIS _546 C
. Lo A6

(7.606) -

‘('1,139) :

. \‘otc 2 "Revenue is allocated by. gcograpb.!c ared ba<cd on Lh(: suhsxdm\ \\nh \Vhl(:h thc s”tle orlgmatcs T

CAffiliaces’  C L T 165 - o -
. Total : 654750 -7 10528 L ) / 5,689 L O HCRZD T TR N
. Depreciation - : © oo 310500 7 340 0 20 590 S100 U350 - 4405,
. Amortizatiod | - "L L1 ,;_,: LS 277 s e 5y - S e
Income {loss) from DT N - SR R - L
. operations - e 14078 102 - e 1281 - o8y - (103) 15041 - e
* Interestexpense . 7 . (3;832) .- ', (206) o By S(B30) (B - Lo{aassy .
'Imerestmcome PO AT R 20 . Soe el 2 - oLAL
lncome tax ex ense 3 Lo S T T PR o ’ s
o pemse - Ti2700 e 71‘_ e .390' | SR - (4. e,
. Capital eipenditures ¢ 13200 T s01sL 807 75 7 552 - Y3367 L
- Long-lived asséts ) T 11,165 B ,593 2,059, 990" f L1220 " - CrT27
" Identifiable asséts” - 96,581 712,209, 12728 9,140 t8799 (38,090) 101,367 - .-,
Net assets - 51 889 S 4278 4:)5 e 2,885 N (2 290) (13,264) 43,953, ..
‘ ] Note1 Intormauon rclaung to Spain, Portugal ance and Bdgmm is mcludcd in “Othcr” e - :
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Tt

N L vDurmg the }ears ended May 31, 2004 2003 and 2002 the Compan\ S US operanons made net’ export sales to unafﬁhated
v customers of approxlmately 34, 874 OOO $4,842,000, and '$5, 289 OOO respecn\*el} The. Companvs German opemnons made net ©

" export s:ales to unafﬂhated customers of 34 859 000,.$3,089 OOO and $2,301, OOO for the }ears endecl May 31, 2004 2003, and 2002
: respecm ely. The Companys Canadlan operanons made net. export sales to unaffthated customers-of 332 152,000, §2, 152 ,000 and

o 32 102 000 for the years endmg May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 respecmelv Product sales to afﬁlmtes are Valued at market pnces

3 ﬂ‘”5-

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RE

Lt

e The components of comprehensne income for the penods ended VIav 31 2004 2003 and 2002 are as’ follows

) Retamed eammgs/ net income
- Poreign.currency translatlon ad]ustment

oo

Cumulatlve éffect.of the adopnon of -
- SFAS-No.-133- on ]une 1, 2001 net

« of tages

. Comprehensne rncome

-. Hedge loss reclass;ﬁed to’ mrerest expense

‘ Acnvnty Acuvxty v : ]
May 3152001 _FY2002. ° FY2003 o EY2004 ~ . May 31,2004 -
"_s‘go,zet,eze" s 8,794}91’01 $14 3697570 $12537,306 - s 55,964,101
| (6:585.812) " . 1263026, 4501888 0. ‘433568 - (297,330) -
SRz T L oy
e 030,809 0548 0 L 20,548 71,905
 $13,675816 - 39986024 318,982,193

,

Balance S

- ~Activity

D

) »Balnn(fe

§2,991922

e

PAE

N

7855635955

P ;_As a result of the adopnon of SFAS No 133 on june 1, 2001 the Compam recorded an’ mcome tax beneﬁt of. 526 220 in ﬁscal

apprommateh $20 500 per \ear unul December 2005

o

2002 This i lncome tax benefit was recognlzed ‘netted agamst the cumu.lame efféct, in the accompan)lng ﬁnancml $tatements.
" as a component of comprehensrve incoine.’ See Note 3 of the consohdated ﬁnanclal statenients.. The remalmng balance of
. cumulauve unfecoghized hedgmg losses as of May 31, 2004 was approxrmatelv $31 OOO and Wlll be reclass1ﬁed into earmngs at’

. Excess ,olé.chST o'v'En_ NET 'I:AN:GIQB[.'EA)‘A"S}SET'S\‘ A-CQUIR:EQiAND’,,CU‘S:TO'I\III’E‘R‘ALIS“TS‘ o

. As of Mav 31 20{)4 the ﬁnancml statements 1ncluded acqursmon related goodwﬂl of 335 4 mllhon net of prev1ous amoruzanon ’

of 567 3 million: Goodwﬂl net of a_mornzatlon, totaled 317 8 rmlhon $3 O mlll.lon $1 o mllhon and $6 3 mrllron in the US
. Germany, Italy and Ca.nada respecnvely : <

o, ,
R

In June 2001 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 Bmzzzw Combmatzuﬂr and SFAS No 142 Goodwz// ami Other Intaﬂgzb/e Auez‘; Under .

“the new rules, goodmll and indefinite- lived: 1ntang1ble assets are no longeta amornzed but are rev 1ewed annual.lv tor lmpzurrnent Br

. ‘more frequently if i 1mpalrment 1nd1cators ‘arise. The review process entalls assessmg the fair value of ‘the’ net assets underlvmg the

Companvs acqulsmon related goodwﬂl on a business- bV-busmess basis! If the fait value i is. deemecl less«than the related carrymg

. value; the Company is requlred to'reduce the amount of ‘the. goodwﬂl Separable 1ntang1ble assets that are not deemed to have .;'

T imdeﬁmte hves continue to be amornzed over their useful hves ,

The Companv has apphed the new accounnng rules to goodwrll and 1ntang1ble assets z.ll of Wthh Wwere acqmred pnor to ]uly

"0, 72001, The Company tested. goodwill for i 1mpa1rment as of, March 1,2004, as. reqmred b\ SEAS. No 142, unhzmg a combination f
of Valuanon technlques mcludmg the: e*{pected present value of futiire cash’ flows and: 1l marl.et mulnple approach “This analvsm

o

‘

. Cl.lCl not result.in Jmpan:ment at May 31 2004 The Companv o longer amortzes acqu_lsmon related goodwill. The: table belcm

‘ shows the perrods ended \lay 31, 2004 2003 and 2002 on a comparatwe basrs glven the adopnon of SFAS l\lo 142
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) T‘hc'Elood]i:nercoqtfnues

For the Yea.r Ended May 31
2004 L 2T 12003 - 2002

Neti mcome as reported o 1‘,?3‘%12_,53_71,806‘:-' j:'-“$‘14,‘369,7_.5‘7“‘ . " 38, 794 910:
T 922,166

~ Y Add Goodwdl amorniatxon net of ta\(es - RS
i ’;312,'5,3,‘7-,8(‘_3_6;; LT §14369,757. - 9,717,076

D \Iet mcome 4s ad]usted for SFAS No 142

T ‘\Iet incomé per common share\ S R ST
- tred: s042_ L8051 5036 UL
55042-_, TS0 8030 e e
' As zeported Csom T sew o s
As adjusted .5'80.40 _._;‘;_j S s047 o $0.38 . 7T
- ) 1 Accumu]ated ) ‘Net Book - -
U .- Amortization’, -+ ¢ Value s
SR . “May 31, 2004 TR U T e T e T
ce ..'- Customer L]St Lo 81,700,000 T 8475000 o 551,225,000'.."
. L May3l, 2003 T A e T Y
) " ) e Customer Llst * S 081,700,000 T $390,000 ¢ 81,310,000 R RIS

Amormzanon expense recorded on, tie Customer LlSt for the years ended \'Iav 31 2004 2003 and 2002 was 385 OOO for each year
o respecmvely The Customer List i 1s bemg amoruzed ower a u%eful lifé of 20 years.. . The esumated amoruzauon e\pense relatmg to the
Customer Lxst for each of the next ﬁve ﬁscal years and thereqfter is as follows : 7,: : . Sy

T R 2006 T RS 000 L e T T
RN ._-_2007 ‘ ;],85 000" - o el e
T 008 85,000 ., SRR

'. . 2009 TR R 83000! Sl T e
Y » ’ ‘:‘_'_Thereafter‘ :. ".‘,. 800 OOO L BRI B
ERT ,. ‘ e $1,225,0001u..-‘
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’i'MMUiC‘OR INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

: ‘SCHEDULE - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
.“'YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2004 2003 AND 2002_'1. o

TV",VBalan‘ceat:-._ Chargedto . .. 7 Balance .

Beginning ~ . Costsand _ ' .. "‘Deductions,lf, - atEnd o .
o o : R ofPerio‘d RIS F_.xpense S (Notel) ~of Period |, - )
2004 L Lk - PR e o
. A_llowance for doubtful accounts el $1 678, 361 ¢ »‘15206 223 Lo S(354279) - T $1,330,305 -
Aﬂowance for doubtful accounts R ,,$1 483, 688'.' S “3641 996 cot $(447,323) - - 81,678,361 '
- 2002 N o T T T -
; Allowance for doubtful accounts’ L $1 244 488 . <. 5819 167 S S(5A79,967) A 51},483,6‘88‘ L

\Iote lA “Deducnons” for the ‘Allowance for, doubtful accounts” represent accounts wrrtten off dunng the penod less recovenes of Cl

‘accounts preV 1ouslv ertten off and exchange drfferences generated

AN

Citem 9. | :Chan’g',e's' in and 'Di's:agre"em‘ént'sj Wi‘th Accountants on“Accou_nting‘apdF»ihanci'al,Diéelosu're; ’

s

s

'Item 9A ICohtroIs ahd P:ro'cd'e"clute‘é.g o

As of the end of the penod covered bv thls report the Compam carned ouat an evaluanon undet the supervtston and mth the »

; parncipanon of the Companys management Jncludrng the Company s. Chlef E‘(ecutrve Ofﬁcer and Chref Fmanclal Ofﬁcer o{ the 7. i

etfectr\ eness of the -design and operar_lon of the Compam s-disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a- 15{e) and 15(d)-
15(e) undet the, E\change Act. Based upon that’ evaludtion, the Chief EYecuttve Ofﬁcer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the:

ompanvs drsclosure controls and procedures are effecnve There were no changes in the Compan\ s mternal control over ﬁnanaal

' repotting or in other factors identified i in connecnon wrth that evaluation that occurred durmg the Companv s fourth ﬁscal quarter of
" the period ¢ COVered by this report that has matcrlallv affected or is reasonablv hkelv to materlallv aftect the Compan\ s rntetnal control .

- over; ﬁnanclal reporr_mg

"y . K e s X S s i o

i } PART m L

‘ltem 10 | Dlrectors and Executlve Offlcers -of the Reglstrant SO

The 1nformanon contalned under “Proposal One - The Electlon of Dltectors and “Sectton 16(a) Beneﬁcml Ow netship Repornng
Comphance i the Companys deﬁmtrve prox; statement related tolits 2004 annual meenng of shareholders, “which! the, Companv will

" file with the Securmes and E\;change Commxsslon no later than September 28 2004 is mcorporated hefein b\ reference

- - -

1

Code' of Ethics R . L E )

3 . I.mmucor has adopted a code of busmess conduct and ethrcs for directors, ofﬁcets and employees known as the Code ot' Conduct
" The Codé of Conduct 18 avadable on the Company website at http Y WWWlmmucor com/ s1te/ aum corporate GOV, ernance ]sp

rShqreholders may request a free Copy ¢ of the Code of Conduct by wrmng to: Steven C Ramsev Vrce Prestdent - Chref Fmancral

o Ofﬁcer and Secretarv Immucor Inc 3130 Gatewav Drlve PO Box 3625 Norctoss GA 30091 5625 R

L . oy

'»Immucor Inc has reta.lned the sernces of TeleSentrx LLC to pronde a 24 hour a da), seven day a \xeel\, anommous hotlrne servrce :
for shareholder repornng of suspected vrolanons of the Code of Conduct Shareholders in the US mav access the hothne semce at

. '(888) 883-1499.. Internatlonal shareholders may access the hothne by dJahng 203 557 8604

§- - N R _: ,
b . . EEN

‘Coipgrate GoVefnan’ce. and Nominating ‘Cofnm/'t:tee‘ C:fiz,‘ér'te'r'

" -~Iramucor has adopted the Corporate. Governance and Nominating Committee Charter, which. is-available, on the Corhpany’s website at
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o The:'Blo‘odli,ne"Cont‘lnues

- http / / wwwrmmucor com/ srte/ aum_ corporate _governance’ sp Shareholders may request a free copy of the Corporate Governance ;,-',
~and Nommanng Commlttee Chatter bv writing to:  Steven!C. Ramsev Vice President * Ch1ef Fmancral Ofﬁcet and Secretar;, A
‘Immucor Inc 3130 Gateway Drive, PO BO\ 5625 Norcross GA 30091 5625 S

ﬂltem 11 l‘Exec;u_ti'v‘e *Cb_mpe‘nsja'tio‘n.;’,,“-ﬁ_-"-

: 'The mformanon conta.tned under “Execunve Compensanon m the Companvs deﬁmnve proxy statément related to: ltS 2004 annual
) ‘meetmg of shareholders whlch the Companv \vrll frle Wl[l’l the Securltles and Exchange Comrmsslon no later than September 28, 2004

is mcorpotated herern by reference

-,p_f’ltem 12_ lSecurlty Ownershlp of Certaln Beneflmal Owners and Management

and Related Stockholder Matters

PR ’ - PERRY
¥ G e N A
w

- The mformatmn requlred b) Item 20l(d) of Regulanon SK appears under “Market for Regrstrants Common Equrty Related
Stockholder Mafters and- Issuer Purchases of Equrt\ Secunnes — Stock Repurchase Program above. The remalnder ‘of the
mformanon called for by thrs 1tem wrl be contamed under “Secuntv Ownershlp of Certam Beneflclal Owners and Management i

- .the Companvs defnmve prow statement related to its 2004 annual meenng of shareholders WhJch the. Compam \Vlll file wn:h the o

‘Secunnes and E\change Commlssron né- later than September 28 2004 s mcorporated heteln b) reference T o ', ’ “

S ~"Item 1 3. | Certarn Relatlonshlps and Related Transact|ons L e

. The mformatton contatned under “Certam Relatlonshlps and Related Trans'tcnons in the Companys deﬁmnve proxy statement _

g related o its 2004 annual meenng of sha_reholders whlch the Company thl ﬁle \Vlth the Secunnes and Exchange Commlssmn no later -
than September 24, 2004 is 1ncorporated hereln by reterence ‘v P : T ;

‘u . <

ltemgli,4x | Prmcrpal Accountant Fees and Servrces

The 1nforman0n contamed under “Audlt Cornn'uttee Report and “Independent Pubhc Accountants in the Companys deﬁmove :
" proky statement related 1o fits 2004 annual meenng of shareholders which. the Companv wrll ﬁle wrth the Secunnes and F‘(change '

IR

M

s Commlssron no later that September 28, 2004 1s 1ncorporated hereln b) reference o

PART IV

"lte‘m-‘ 15 l Exhlblts Frnancral Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8 K Q o

’ (‘a)fljocu‘rnénts ftled a‘s;part.of this report: e

BRI

l . = ‘Consohdated Frnancral Statements : . .
' ".The Conso rdated Flnancnl Statements Notes thereto and Report of Independent Regrstered Pubhc Accounnng
o Flrm thereon are 1ncluded in Part II Item 8 of thrs report . \
. ~x“ -‘ u «—v:l',l‘_l‘l‘:

2 T ‘ o ,_C:on‘so’lidatedl:jnancial _Statement'Schedule lncluded i l’artlll, Item 8 of lthis_/r'e‘port- .

. Schedule T — Valuatior and Qualifying Accoants -~

“Other flnancial'statem'ent schedules are'omitted as they are not required 'or':__npt applicable.

RN T Exhiblts e T .
3 o v Amended and Restated Arncles of Incorporanon (1ncorporated by reference to’ Exhrblt 3. 110 Immucor lnc s
: L quarter.l) report on’ Form 10 Q ﬁled on ]anuarv 16, 2001) ’ )

. . B
i N “32 ¢ ‘,— L Amended and Restated Bvlaws (amended and restated as of October 17 2003)
‘ 4.1 - . 'Amended and Restated Shareholder Rrghts Agreement dated as of November 20 2001 between Immucor lnc
' ‘ and EqurServe Trust Companv, NA2s Rrghts Agent (mcorporated by reference to Txhlbrt 41 to Immucor Inc s
: ';quarterlv report on Form 10 Q ﬁled on ]anuary 14 2002) O PR :
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lOl g ’ Standard Industrlal Lease dated julv 21 1982 between the Companv and Colony Center Ltd (1ncorporated bV
B . reference to Exhibit 10 2 to Immucor lnc s Annual Report on, Form 10 K for the ﬁscal vear ended Mav 31, 1985) .

N "]f).l;l; - ) "Lease Amendment dated ]une 28 1989 between thie: Companv and Colony Center Ltd (mcorporated by reference
S V“’_\‘ to EXl’llblt 10.1- l to Immucor Inc s Annual Report on Form lO K for the ﬁscal vear ended May 31, 1989)
S - l‘.VQ:llZ v Le"tse Amendment dated November 8 1991 between t_he Companv and Colony Center Ltd (mcorporated byl
_‘-, T . _'i B “',reference to Ex.hlblt 10.1- 5K to Immucor Inc s Annua.l Report on. Form 10- l\ for the - ‘ T
TR ‘ﬁsca_l year ended May 31, 1992) ’ i
_n ‘ 10‘.1"-3('.' ‘..' ‘F‘Lease Agreement dated Februar\r 2 1996 bet\veen the Company and Connecttcut Genera.l Ltfe Insurance N .
» o ) e Company (mcorporated by reference to Exlublt 10. l 3 to Immucor Inc s, Annual Report on Form 10 I\
' ‘ for the ﬁscal year ended \lav 31 1996) ; - '
o .'.‘1‘0.1-‘4_‘_ L "'Lease Amendment dated March 8 1998 between the Compam and Connecncut General L1fe Insurance ‘
R 'Company (Jncorporated by reference to E)rhlblt 10:1-4.to Immucor Inc s Annual Report on Form 10 K
o for the ﬁscal year ended \/lay 31 1998) SN T R

' lOl—S : Lease Amendment dated August 11 1999 between the Companv and Connecttcut General ere Insurance o e o
_— R Companv (mcorporatedby reference ‘to EYl’llblt lO 1- 5 to Immucor Inc s Annual Report on Form lO l\ .
el LT for the flscal year ended \lav 31 1999) : Lo ’

102 B “ ‘Agreement dated \Iarch ll 1983 between the Compam rtnd The Kansas Clt} Group, as amended through
PR January 21, 1985 (mcorporated by reference to Exhlblt 10, 2 to Regrstranon Statement \lo 33 162 /5 on Form - ])

T i \. s 103 . ‘v ',Agreernent dated August 27 1987 between the Companv and the Kansas City Group amendlng Exhrbrt 10 2

.-

S - ;¥ (incorporated l)V reference to Exlnbrt 10.3 to Immucor Tnc s Annual Report on Form 10 K for theé ﬁscal \rear
T e endedMav31 1989) ‘ ' ST } o

f - S . _"w Co o . N . [

N 104 M .Umted States Department of Health and Human Serwces Estabhshment Llcense dated December 28 1982, for .
. e o lthé manufacture of’ blolOglcal products (mcorporated l)V reference to Exh1b1t lO 12 to Regrstranon Statement No
: ‘ 37 966 on- FormSl) SRRt T - :
L }10;‘5“ ' ';Umted States Department of Health and Human Serv1ces Product chense dated Dccember 28 1982 for the : R

; manufacture and sale of reagent red blood cells (mcorporated l)V reference to Exhlblt 10. 13 to Reglstxanon
"‘-Statement No 33- 966 on Form S: l) ‘ ; i “ . ;

106 Umted States Department of Health and Human Servlces Product Ltcense dated \/la) 20, 1983 for the
G RER S manufacture and sale of blood grouplng sera (mcorporated by reference to EYl’ublt 10 14to: Regrstratlon Statement
‘No 33 966 on Form S- l) o o ,"" ‘j B T P AL

:

r
PN

107 s “f"Umted States Department of Health and. Human Ser\ ices Product Llcense date November 18 1983 for the Do
R manufacture and. sale of ant: human serum (1ncorporated bv reference to. Exh1b1t 10Q. 15 to Regrstranon Statement

B No 33- 966 on Form St l)

- ‘ 108* . '-“:" Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Opt\on Plan

l

k 109* : » _-1 ‘,Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Optlon Plan o . - :‘ .

. " 10.10* - Amended and Restated 1995 Stock Opnon Plan

. lOll* - llcl90 Stock Opt]on Plan 1ncludmg form of Stock Opnon Agreement used thereunder (mcorporated bv reference
o ‘_to Exhlblt lO 15 to. lmmucor Inc s Annual Report on Form 10 K for the ﬁscal )ear ended Max 3l 1995)

o 1012* ' EmplovmentAgreetnent dated October 13 1998 between the Compan\ and Steven C. Ramsev (1ncorporated R
T by ; reference to Exhrblt 10. 20 to Immucor Inc 3 Annual Report on Form 10°K for the ﬁscal year ended
‘*',May31 1999) e T T E A SR SRR
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The Bloodline Continues -

S 1'10}13 , Loan Agreement among Immucor Inc 3 Dommron Bloiogrcals Ltmxted and Immucor Medrzmxsche Dlagnosnk cn L
' GmbH s borrowers ‘and Wachoviy Bank, Nanoml Assocrauon as Iender dated as of February 23 L ‘ o

" Ss ! 2001 (mcorporated bv reference to. Exhrbrt 10 23 to Immucor Inc S quarterlv teport on Form 10 Q ﬁled i
Aprﬂ23 2001) e e AR C

O e 10 14 Loa_n Mod.lﬁcauon No 1 dated as of September 11 2001 between Immucor Inc Domrruon Blologrcals lerted -
R Immucor \/[ed_lzmlsche Dlagnoquk GmbH and \Y’achowa Ba.nk Natlonal Assocratlon (mcorporated by reference to“" ey
‘ - port on Form 10 Q ﬁled ]anuary 14 2002) T

Exhlblt 10 21 to lmmucor Tad, swquarted ;

L Loan Modrﬁcanon No 2 dated as of ]ul\r.l'S, 2002 bet\x cen Immucor Inc Domrruon Brologrcals lexted e . _v ‘
et LT Immucor Medrzmisehe Dragnostlk GmbH and \Vachovra Bark, Nanonal Assocratlon (mcorporated by reference Cal
. o L s to Exhrb]t 10 23 to Immucor Inc’s s Annual Report on Form 10 I\ for the ﬁscaJ year ended Mav 31, 2002) '

- R “l(\J‘.‘I,‘S” '4"‘ Human Extraceﬂula.r Matrrx Mesh Supplv Agreement dated june 30 2003 bet\veen the Companv and P
o ol Itmmed Corporatlon o S . R .

‘11\0..19* : Employment Agreement dated Mav l 2004 bet\veen the Company and Edward L Gallup

R K L . ;'z
. FR St ,A<' . N

. 1020* - EmpIO}ment Agreement dated \lay l 2004 between the Companv and Raiph A Eat7

S e e '
’ ‘1.0.'22*‘ Amendment No 1 dated Max 1, 2004 to the Emplovment Agreement between the Companv : ’
. v CL and Dr Gloacchjno De Chmco 7-;, e e T e - ol
T o Dot ;' Subsidis‘.ries ‘of'me,RegiStrd._._,u,;j : ; , )

231 e Con'sent ot: llndep'end.ent Registered‘Pubijc "Ae‘eoun‘tjn‘g F_irm‘_, i

U N ‘ A - . . - a . R ¢~ ST - . PRI . 4

s 3].1 . Cernﬁcauon of Prmclpal E\ecutrve Ofﬁcet Pursuant to Rule l3a 14(a) and RuJe 1:>d 14(a) .
) 312 Certlﬁcatron of Prmcrpal Fmancml Ofﬁcer Pursuant to RuJe 13a 14(a) and Rule 15d 14(a) . e : . i

v,

T ) a 32:2 _‘ ”:‘t . Certrﬁcmon of Chref Fmanclal Ofﬁcer Purmant to, Sectlon 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

i ; On March 31 2004 the Companv ﬁJed a Cu.trent Report on Form 8 K to furmsh the Compam”s tthd quarter 2004 eammgs relea%e
_’dated *\fIatch 25 2004 and 2 transcrrpt “of the mvestor conference call also held on March 25 2004 RN - .

Y

R -.'(c)'.l K See Ezrhlbrts hsted under Item la(a)(?:)

) (d) Notapphcable See Item 15(a)() ] ’ ‘

.
Lo
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s_lq'N?A‘i'UnEs Lot L R
Pursuant w0 the requrremems of. Secuon 13 or 15(d) of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant. has duly mused thlS report e

: to be slgned on its. behalf by the underslgned thereunto duiy authorrzed

-

IMMUCOR INC. 5: JRR

“By. /s/ DR, GIOACCHINO DE CHIRICO. . - T e e
. - Dr. Gloacchmo De Chmco Pre<1dent and Chief Execume Oftlcer - o L
(Prrncrpal Executive Ofﬁcer) b
;' August 16 7004
B R,
Pursuant to the reqwrements of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, thrs report has been srgned below bx the followmg persons on

<

behalf of the regrstrant and in the capacrtres and on. the dates mdrcated

5 EDWARD 1. GALLUP L '
"Edward L. Gallup, Dlrector Charrman of the Board of Drrectors . ;

August‘lé 2004 - S - : o ’
/s/ DR. GIOACCHII\JO DE CHIRICO e . . L

Dr. Gioacchino De Chmco Dlrector Presrdent and Chref Execut!ve Ofﬂcer ": e -

(Prmcrpal E‘(ecuuve Ofﬁcer) : :
August 16, 2004 :
/s/ STEVEN CRAMSEY . . - LT : L
* Steven C, Ramsey, Vicé President - Chlef Fmancra.l Officer and Secretar\ . A o .
(Prmcrpal Finaricial and Accountmg Ofﬂcer) G R R AR T

Augu%th 2004 _ _',f“

/s/ RALPH Al EATZ

Ralph A Eatz, Drrector Semor Vlce Presldent - Chlef Sclennﬁc Ofﬁcer '
August 16, 2004 : : : S

/ s/ ROS\WELL S. BOWERS
Roswell S. Bowers Dlrector

Augusth 2006, - T e e T T

Mark Krshel MD Dtrector o

August 16 2004 ) 1 : -

/s/ JOSEPHE ROSEN ' :

joseph E: Rosen, DJrector TR PO : ’ R ’ L ")’ |
Augustlé 2004 G T e ’
‘/s/JOH\lA H’A’RRIS’ SRR S .
johnA Harrrs Drrector o R RE AR » :

Augustlé 2004 ST S - T ) S L
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. EXAIBIT INDEX ~

' I}Iurribe‘r ,Descrrpdo‘n

31 ‘ Amended and Restated Arncles of Incorporanon (mcorporated bv reference-to E‘(h]blt 3 1 to Immucor Incs quarterly i :
‘ report on Form 10 Q fl.led on ]anuarv 16 7001) o :

: 3‘;2‘ Amended and Restated Byla\vs (arnended and restated as of October 17 2003) . VT _l' ; :

41 Amended and Restated Shareholder Rjghts Agreement dated as of \10\ ember 20 9001 between Immucor Inc, and

qutServe Trust Compam NA as nghts Agv 1t (mcorporated b\ reference to E)\hlblt 4 1 to Immucor Inc s T

quarterh report on Form 10 Q ﬁled on Janua/ 14, 2002)

: 101 : Standard lndustrlal Lease dated ]ulv 21 198 between the Companv and Colonv Center Led: (mcorporated by reference L

L ' to E*{hlb]t 10. 2 to- Immucor lnc s Annual Report on l*orm 10- K for the ﬁscal year endedIVIav 31, 1985)

1011 Lease Amendmcnt dated ]une 28 1989 between the Companv and Colonv Center Ltd (1ncorporated by. reference . S s
‘ :' to Fxhrbrt 10, 1 1 to Immucor Tnc S Annual Report on Form 10 K for the ﬁscal vear ended May 31, 1989)

= 10.1-2; Lease Amendment dated November 8 1991 between the Compan) and Colony Center Ltd (mcorporated by reference
' . to Exlnb1t 10 1 1 to Immucot Inc S Annual Report on Form 10 for the ﬁscal vear ended “vlav 31 1992) )

;-
R .

101-3 . Lease Agreement dated kebruary 2 1996 between the Company and Connectrcut General ere Insurance Company S - , '
R (1ncorporated by reference to' Exhibit 10 1- 3 10 Immucor Inc S Annual Report on Form 10 K for the fiscal year ended '
T S T TR ~

"<10.1 4 Lease Amendment dated \'Iarch 8 1998 between the‘Company and Connecncut General Llfe lnsurance Com_pam : 4. )
o (1ncorporated by reference to* Exh1b1t 10 1 4 tor Irnmucor Inc S Annual Report on Form ]O K for the fsca.l vear ended Eo
SN Mav 31 1998) R : : r . - o

“

I 1041-5 . Lease Amendment dated Augmst 11 1999 bet\veen the Company and Connecncut General Ler Insurance Company .
(1ncorporated bv reference to Exhrbrt 10 1- 5 to. Immucot Inc s Annual chort on Form 10-K for the, fscal year ended
May 31 1999) : ‘ i ’

10.2% Agreement dated March 11, 1983 bet\xeen the Compan\ and The I\ansas Crtv Group, as amended throughjanuarv 21
- 1985 (mcorporated bv reference fo E‘(hlblt 10. 2 to Recxstrat!on Statement ’\Io 33 16275 on Form S- 1)

' 1030 s Agreement dated August 27 1987 between the Companv and the I\'tnsas Clt\ Group amendlng Exhibit 10.2 (lncorpotated
. : by reference to ]:xl'ublt 10 3,to lmmucor Tnc S Annual Report o Forin lO K for the flscal \ear ended May 31 1989)

) 104 ' f-' Umted States Department of Health and Human Servrces Estabhshment Llccnse dated December 28, 1982 for the

manufacture of brologlca] products anorporated bv reference to E\lubrt 10. 17 to Regrstratron Statement No.

105 ; Umted States Department of Health and Human Serv1ces Product Llcense dated December 28 ]982 for the manufacture
. and sale of reagent red- blood cells (mcorporated bv reference o Eahlbrt 10 13 j¢e] Regxstratron Statement No 33- 966 on o
FormSl) ‘:‘""_'4";,»‘ ‘ T A S TP .
106 Untted States Department of Health and Human Ser\nces Product Lxcense dated Mav 20 1983 for the manufacture and sale :

: of blood grouprng sera (rncotporated by L ference to Ethbrt 10.14 to Regrstranon Statement No., 33 966 on Form S 1)
' “107’ Umted States Departrnent of Health and Human Servjces Product Llcense date Novembcr 18, 1983; for the manufacture
' ‘ and sale of ann hurnan serum (1ncorporated bv reference to Exhlbrt 10. 15 to Regrstranon Statement No 33-966 on' Form S- 1)

v
e

" 108% © Amended a'ndRe'st‘ate:d"‘ZOO_%‘:Stock'-OptiOn le AT CEE AR
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‘ .110,.9’f,‘ ‘“_Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Optlon Plan . PR o

1010* A"Amended and Restated 1995 Stock Optlon Plan e s .‘ (S i 5‘«‘ R L ‘,3“-"_"
U10.11% 1990 Stocl-_ Optlon Plan mcludmg form of Stock Optlon Agreement used thereunder (mcorporated by reference to .‘_b
ST "Exhlbnt 10. 15 to Immucor Inc s Annua.l Report on 'Form 10 K for the ﬂscal year ended \fa\ 31 1995)
10.12% ‘Employment Agreement dated October 13 1998 between the Companv and Stéven, C. Ramsey (mcorporated by -
ISR reference 10 E‘(hlblt 10. 20 o, Imrnucor'Inc 5. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yea.t ended \Iay 31 1999)

N ' :., ‘ 1013 ‘ Loan Agreement among Immucor Inc Domrmon Blologlcals ermted and Immucor Medrzxnlsche Dlagnost.lk GmbH as - -
. _' ' -borrowers and Wachowa Banl. Natlonal Assoclatron as lender dated as of’ February 23 2001 (mcorporated b\ reference S
R o to Exh1b1t 10, 23 to Immucor Inc: s quarterlv report on Form 10~ Q ﬂled Aprrl 23, 2001) P S
L N 710.14:' l '.Loqn I\Iod.lﬁcatton No l dated as of September ll 2001 between Immucor Inc Domlmon Blologlca.ls lelted Immucor e S

S Medlzrmsche DlagnosnL GmbH and “Wachovia Bank National Assoclanon (mcorporated by reference © Exhrbrt 10. 21 to "
: Immucor Inc s quarterly report on Form 10- Q ﬁled ]anuar\ 14 2002) : T '
1015* L Form’ of 1ndemnrﬁcatron agreement between the Company and certam dJrectors (mcorporated by reference to, E\h1b1t lO 2.
o to lmmucor Inc s, quarterly report on Porm 10- Q ﬁled January 14 2002)
_‘ “tl‘O.16 : Loan Modrﬁcatlon No 2 dated as of july 18 2002 between Immucor Inc, Dommlon Blologrcals lerted Immucor
R .‘.Medlzrmsche Dlagnostll\ Grnbl—l and \Y/achovla Bank Nat_tonal Assoclanon (mcorporated by’ reference to Exhibit- :‘.r
‘ . lO 23 to Immucor Inc s Annual Report on Form 10: ]\ for the ﬁscal year ended May 31, 2002) ‘ :

- #1017 Loan Agreement among Immucor Inc as borrower and SunTrust Bank as, lender dated as of December 18 2003
: ‘ '(tncorporated bv reference o, Exhibrt 10 1 to Immucor Inc S’ quarterly report on. Form lO Q ﬁled Aprrl 14 2004)
© 1018 f\, _Human E\tracel.lular Matnx Mesh Supplv Agreement dated ]une 30 2003 between the Compam and Inamed Corporanon

.. : -
RS

1019* ‘ Employment Agreement dated Ma\ 1, 2004 between the Companv and Edward E Gallup
- “1,Q.20% Employment Agreement dated ’\{ay 1 2004 between the Compam and Ralph A Eatz

) 10.21% Ernplovment Agreement dated December l 2003 between the Companv and Dr Groacchmo De Chrrlco."L S

v v Lo . '-.),
. . HR

Lk

: 1022* i Amendment No 1 dated May 1 2004 to t_he Employment Agreement between the compa.nv and N
LTt Dr G1oacch1_no De Ch1r1co S T e LT : <o R
21 o Sdbsldlaries of the' Regiétrapt.' ‘ ‘ ; '

~.‘2'3.1‘. o Consent of ‘-lndepender.it‘ RégvisteredfPublic;Acfcounting’él?irm.
. 31“1 o "‘Cernﬁcatlon of Pnnc1pal Executrve Ofﬁcer Pursuant to Rule 13a 14(a) and Rule 15d 14( )

1
: 2

B 312 Cernﬁcanon of Prmc1pal Flnanc1al Ofﬁcer Pursuant to: Rule l3a l4(a) and Rule 15d 14(a)

w -
. Do

. '.32:1“ ) Cernﬁcanon of Chlef Execunve Ofﬁcer Pursuant to Sectxon 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 3

<.,

e 322 B Certiflcation of"Chief Pinancial QfﬁcertRi‘irsuant to Se‘c'tion,906 'of e Sarban_es;Oxl_ey Act Qf;ZOOZf g_ SR -

T

" *Denotes 2 management Contract ot. compensatory plan or arrangement.. . : -
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Roswell S. Bowers
Retired. Executive Vice President
Bank of America

Dr. Gioacchino De Chirico
President & Chief Executive Officer

Ralph A. Eatz
Senior Vice President, Chief Scientific Officer

Edward L. Gallup
Chairman of the Board of Directors

John A. Harris

Retired, Executive Vice President Finance

and Strategic Planning and Treasurer Cerulean
Companies/Blue Cross Blue Shield of Georgia

Mark Kishel, M.D., FAAP
President & CEQ
Emedicine Solutions, Inc,

Joseph E. Rosen
Director - Business Development and
Planning for Biol.ife Plasma Services
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Edward I.. Gallup
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Dr. Gioacchino De Chirico
President and Chief Executive Officer

Ralph A. Eawz
Senior Vice President, Chief Scientific Officer

Steven C. Ramsey
Vice President
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Didier L. Lanson
Director of European Operations

John H. Adair, Jr.
Vice President, Worldwide Quality

Carolyn S. Gambino
Vice President, Worldwide Field Quality and
Technical Services

Wayne Gurthrie
Vice President, Worldwide Human Resources

J. Darren Head
Vice President, Worldwide Operations

David McCampbell
Vice President, Worldwide Information Systems

Mitch Moheng
Vice President, Worldwide Quality Systems

Michael C. Poynter
Vice President, Sales

Daniel L. Ruckman
Vice President, Worldwide Distribution
and Instrument Services

Lyle T. Sinor
Vice President, Research and Development

Patrick D. Waddy
Vice President, Finance

J. Scott Webber
Vice President, Worldwide Regulatory Affairs

Divisional Affzirs
Gamma Biologicals

Marilyn Moulds
Vice President, Education and Consultation

Thomas Frame
Vice Prasident. Research and Cevelopment

Deminion Biclogicals Limited

William Eberlie
Vice President, Operations and
Product Development

Brian Frappier
Vice President, International Sales
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Immucor, Inc.

3130 Gateway Drive

Post Office Box 5625
Norcross, Georgia 30091-5625
Phone: 770.441.2051

Fax: 770.441.3807

The Form 10-K, which includes the financial
statements and notes thereto, for the year ended
May 31, 2004, as well as other informarion
about Immucor, Inc., may be obtained without
charge by writing to Mr. Steven Ramsey, Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, at the
Company’s corporate offices.

AN TP P kS
ranefer Agent

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
PO Box 43023

Providence RI 02940-3023
www.EquiServe.com

Customer Service: 877-282-1169

Ernst & Young LLP
Atlanta, Georgia

e T . mh
WERRIE, LRUNDEI

Sutherland, Ashil & Brennan LLP
Atlanta, Georgja

Arnnuel Meeting
T

i

Sharenolders are invited to attend Immucor,
Inc.’s Annual Meeting of Sharcholders which
will be held at 1:30 PM on November 10,
2004 ac the Hilron Atlanta Norcheast, 5993
Peachiree Industrial Boulevard, Norcross,

Georgia 30092.

s Informelion

AT gmop et mmon e THE
Al ar SUIEN

v

The Company’s common stock is craded on
the NASDAQ stock market {national market)
under the symbol BLUD. As of September 3,
2004 there were 292 shareholders of record.

The following table shows the quarterly high
and low closing prices for Immucor’s common
stock reported by the NASDAQ stock market
for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2004 and

May 31, 2003.

Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2004

High Low
First Quarter 11.36 8.46
Second Quarter 158.50 10.67
Third Quarter 16.17 10.87
Fourth Quarter 20.96 10.50

Fiscal Year ended {May 31, 2003

High Low
First Quarter 8.56 4.82
Second Quarter 10.78 5.72
Third Quarter 11.52 7.00
Fourth Quarter 10.36 8.19

The Company distributed a three-for-two

stock split, effected in the form of 2 50%

stock dividend, on September 13, 2002, on
November 14, 2003 and on July 16, 2004. The
above stock prices have been restated to reflect
these stock splits. Cash dividends were paid
for fractional shares issued in regards to the
two most recent stock splits. The Company has
not otherwise paid, and has no current plans

to pay, cash dividends on its common stock.
The Company presently intends to retain its
carnings to finance growth and development of
its business.



R

IMMUCOR
GAMMA

Innovation. Productivity. Partnership.




